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AASAAN LOANS

We feel very proud and happy that we've the chance to be connected with you and earn your trust for the past
28 years. During this time, we've faced both good times and challenges. But what truly matters is how we've
handled tough situations, not just the problems themselves. At Akme Fintrade (India) Limited (AFIL), our
growthis aresult of the choices, we've made along the way. We've always focused on growingin the right way to
create astrong financialinstitution.

Our journey began 28 years ago with a goal to make positive changes in Rajasthan's financial system. We had
plenty of opportunities, even though there were difficulties. Looking back now, we feel proud of what we've
achieved - building an organization that has not only survived the test of time but has also improved the lives of
millions of people.

Every time, we've come out stronger because of the qualities we've developed over the years: being careful
(prudence), sensible (sensibility),and honest (honesty).

"Enthusiastically, we unveil our latest endeavours that pave the path for our mutual growth. We have launched
our digital lending platform, Aasaan Loans. This innovative platform marks a significant step forward in
providing convenient and accessible lending solutions to our valued customers. With Aasaan Loans, we are
committed to making the lending process simpler and more user-friendly, reaffirming our dedication to
meeting your financial needs.

Your Company's issue saw an overwhelming response from Institutional, High net-worth and Retail investors
and the issue was oversubscribed 56.48 times. Equity shares of your Company got listed on the BSE Ltd and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited on June 26,2024.

Our story, initially intertwined with the essence of India's hinterlands, is now gracefully expanding into vast
metropolises and urban vistas, all the while maintaining an unwavering dedication to placing our customers at

the forefront of our efforts.

Thank you for being a part of this journey with us. We're excited about what lies ahead as we continue to grow
andserve our customers even better.

"Linked by purpose, we charta course where growth knows no limits.”
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HISTORY

Decades of Resilient Growth

Loan Portfolio Rs.421.01 Crore,
Total Income 88.38 Crores, Loan
Disbursements Rs.53.78 Crore as
on March, 2021

2021

& &

Company issued Rated, Listed
unsubordinated, Secured, Transfer-
able, Redeemable, Non- Convertible
Debentures (NCDs) of Rs. 10 Crores
on aprivate placement basis to Union
Bank of India.

2020

%

New loan Products Added
Namely Three Wheeler & Four
Wheeler

2014

%

Care BB+ rating assigned by the
care to bank facilities.

2012

A group of youngenthusiasticand
energetic qualified professionals
joinhands together with a vision to
start a company in the field of
finance.

1995

M ®
11 T

Digital journey initiated through
launch of Aasaanloans.com

2022

AFIL has 50+ Retail offices &
collection points with manpower
strength 200. AUM Crossed Rs.
335.94 Crore & Disbursement
Rs. 269.53 Crore.

2018

Company got permission from
Bank of Baroda for multiple
banking arrangements AUM
achieved Rs. 5515 Crore & Loan
Disbursement Rs.71.16Crore.

2015

Company Started accepting
deposits from the public in the
form of FD, RD and providing
Small Finance to poor families in
rural area of Rajasthan.

2000

Akme Fintrade(India)Limitedgot
incorporated.Initiatedthejourney
asaPrivateLimitedcompany

1996

il

L
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2024

Successfullylistedthe EquityShares
of the Company on both stock
exchanges

Navigating the path of growth,
the Company embarked on an
IPO journey with listing on NSE &
BSE, elevating our financial

footprint
2023

Geographical reachedtoMadhya
Pradesh & Gujarat AUM Achieved
Rs. 142.8 Crore & Loan Disburse-
ment Rs. 18775 Crore. Company
launched new Products Business
(Secured) & SME Loans.

2017

Expanded business of operation
in Maharashtra.

2016

AFIL got registration with
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as
Deposit taking Non-Banking
Financial Company (NBFC) vide
Registration No.10.00092 dated
07.04.1999.

1999

Akme  Fintrade(India) Private
limited converted into Public
Limited Company.

1997

28™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 1



COMPANY OVERVIEW

MISSION

+ To promote a work culture that fosters individual growth, team spirit and
creativity to overcome challenges and attain goals.

« Toencourageideas, talents, and value systems.

« To uphold the guiding principle of trust, integrity and transparency in all
aspects of interactions and dealings.

VISION

To be a leading financial service provider in the semi urban and rural section, by
being the most preferred and trusted financial institution, excelling in customer
service delivery through commitment, caring and empowered employees to
transformrural lives and drive positive change in the communities.

CORE VALUE

We value professional and personal integrity above all else. We achieve our goals
by being honest and straightforward with all our stakeholders. We earn trust with
every action, every minute of every day.

PASSION : We play to win. We have a healthy desire to stretch, to achieve
personal goals and accelerate business growth. We strive constantly to improve
andbe energeticin everything thatwe do.

QUALITY : We take ownership of our work. We unfailingly meet high standards of
quality in both what we do and the way we do it. We take pride in excellence.

RESPECT : We respect the dignity of every individual. We are open and
transparent with each other. We inspire and enable people to achieve high
standards and challenging goals. We provide everyone equal opportunities to
progressand grow.

RESPONSIBILITY : We are responsible corporate citizens. We believe we can
help make a difference to our environmentand change lives for the better. We will
dothisinamanner that benefits our size and also reflects our humility.

SEEKING EXCELLENCE : We strive for perfection and excellence in all that we
do and it is this motto that has led to the sustained growth of AFIL, regardless of
upheavals in the economic environment. The sincerest efforts of every member
of the AKME family to uphold these values shows in the treatment of customers
and employees, while dealing with investors and clients and above all, in the
supportive andinspiring environment we workin.

- AKME FINTRADE (INDIA) LIMITED 28™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 -
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COMPANY OVERVIEW

TEAMWORK & COLLABORATION

The AFIL way is to ‘do it better together!” We believe in the collaborative approach; each person finds their niche
in the company and the best manner in which to serve its needs, rather than chasing individual gains. Teamwork
brings out the best in people and at AFIL, we feel that positive, constructive and efficient collaboration can
ensure success.

PROFESSIONAL LEADERSHIP

The management teamis led by qualified and experienced visionaries, who are supported by competent professionals. AFIL
is chaired by Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain, Chartered Accountant by Profession, an industry expert with more than 25 years of
experienceinthe Finance industry,

GEOGRAPHIC FOOTPRINT

The Company commencedits journey from Udaipur, Rajasthan, in 1995. Apart from our Registered Office located at Udaipur,
Rajasthan, we have network of 12 branches, spread across 4 states, Rajasthan, Maharashtra, Gujrat and Madhya Pradesh.
Apartfrom our branch network we have our reach to 25 locations digitally.

DIFFERENTIATED MODEL

AFIL is selected to serve the needs of finance customers in the low and middle income segments of sub-urban
and rural India, contrary to the industry preference of servicing customers in metro cities and urban clusters. AFIL
could have addressed large, visible and conventionally credit worthy loan seekers instead the company chose to
focus on customers excluded from the country’s formal banking system on account of their inadequate
documents forincome validation.

ACCOUNTABILITY & OWNERSHIP

Accountability is allabout answerability; the willingness to accept a task and be responsible for completingit to the
best of one’s abilities. Ownership, on the other hand, requires not only taking onus of the task at hand, but
responsibility for the outcome of it, whatever that may be while workload and responsibilities are often shared at
AFIL, each person feels completely accountable for the job they do. Employee diligence and dedication form the
very foundation on which happy, successful companies are built.

HUMAN CAPITAL

AFIL comprises dedicated and qualified professionals like Chartered Accountants, Company Secretaries,
Lawyersand MBAs from reputed institutions enhancing a culture of outperformance.
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SARAL UDHYOG LOAN BUSINESS LOAN SOLAR LOAN
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FARM EQUIPMENT FINANCE WORKING CAPITAL LOAN CORPORATE LOAN

)

LOAN AGAINST PROPERTY COMMERCIAL/ MAHILA UDHYOG LOAN
NON-COMMERCIAL
VEHICLE LOAN (2/3/4 WHEELER)

- AKME FINTRADE (INDIA) LIMITED 28™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24




( COMPANY OVERVIEW ) ( STATUTORY REPORT ) ( FINANCIAL STATEMENT )

EXTENSIVE BUSINESS NETWORK

Rajasthan

Gujarat 5~ Madhya Pradesh

" Maharashtra

==

Points of presence in 4 states

Rajasthan
01 Registered Office 09 Branches and 19 Locations with digital presence.

Madhya Pradesh
02 Branches and 02 Locations with digital presence.

Maharashtra
02 Branches

Guijarat
01 Regional Office 02 Branches and 04 Locations with digital presence.
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KEY HIGHLIGHTS 2023-24
40372 Lakhs 20478.25 Lakhs

ASSET UNDER MANAGEMENT BORROWINGS OUTSTANDING

1852.92 Lakhs 49.86%

PAT CRAR %

9705.00 Lakhs 8.36%

DISBURSEMENT RETURN ON EQUITY

43604.98 Lakhs 21968.11 Lakhs

TOTAL ASSET NET WORTH (Tangible)

6965.56 Lakhs  14.53%

GROSS REVENUE COST OF BORROWINGS

5.85 2375.63 Lakhs

EPS PBT

PARY 22323.87 Lakhs

OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY SHAREHOLDERS FUND

1.74%

NPA %




FINANCIAL
INDICATORS
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A CONSISTENT PERFORMANCE TRAJECTORY
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A CONSISTENT PERFORMANCE TRAJECTORY

A CRAR(%) A NPA(%)

[l GROSS NPA (%) [l NET NPA (%)
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COMPANY OVERVIEW

We are thrilled to share that your Company has successfully achieved a significant
milestone by listing its shares on BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India Limited on
June 26, 2024. This landmark event represents a transformative moment in your
Company's history and underscores our commitment to growth andinnovation.




COMPANY OVERVIEW

NITIEC IFINT

raae (India) |A\kme Fintrade (Ir

- ‘ - —
; *4 3 T
& e S E
} e s i -
= i -
§ 2 :
-
)
J —
-
> 2 # !
A % ¥ i /
o
% S ‘)ﬂ‘




COMPANY OVERVIEW

We're excited to share the snapshots from an inspiring event where we discussed our
vision, strategies, and growth potential.
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MR. NIRMAL KUMAR JAIN

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
(DIN: 002404471)

BRIEF PROFILES

Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain, is the Chairman and Managing Director of our Company. He has been one of
the foremost proponents of asset finance in India. He is a Qualified Chartered Accountant with more
than 25 years of experience in the finance and development terrain. He with his close associates
founded Akme Fintrade (India) Limited in 1995. With his focus on business excellence and industry
development, he has played a significant role in shaping policy guidelines on matters relating to the
mortgage finance industry.

il e g il
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( COMPANY OVERVIEW ) ( STATUTORY REPORT ) ( FINANCIAL STATEMENT )

MR. RAJENDRA CHITTORA

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(DIN: 08211508 )

Mr. Rajendra Chittora is an Executive Director with more than two
decades of experience in the auto/CV/CD/TW finance companies. He also
has ample experience of fund raising and equity participation in current
organization. He has done Msc in Electronics and MBA in Business
Development from University of Udaipur.

MR. RAMESH KUMAR JAIN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(DIN: 07441707)

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain did his Masters in Marketing & Finance from
University College of Udaipur. He is appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in Year 2016. Currently he is handling Maharashtra Region
Business andlooking after all the activities of Mumbai Office.

MR. VIMAL SARDARSINGHJI BOLIA

NON- EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
(DIN: 03056586)

Mr. Vimal Sadarsinghji Bolia is a qualified Chartered Accountant and
appointed as an Non- Executive Independent Director in the company. He
is a Business leader with expertise in sales and marketing along with
business management and business development with proficiency in
formulating and implementing marketing strategies into business to
achieve exceptional growth. He is also having in depth experience in two
wheelerloansegment.

M ® M
@ 111 ] IS 111l &I D
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MR. SANJAY DATTATRAY TATKE

NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
(DIN: 09848265)

Mr. Sanjay Dattatray Tatke is an Non-Executive Independent Director of
our Company. He is a quintessential banker with over 37 years of experience
in banking operations and technology. He joined as a Probationary Officer
with State Bank of India in 1985 and has a career journey spanning over
various banks, NBFC, IT and ITES in the public and private sectors in India,
Africaand the Middle East. He currently acts as an advisor and consultant to
Banks and NBFC. Sanjay is a science graduate and an MBA from BK School
of Business Management, Ahmedabad. He is a Lead Auditor for ISO 9000
anda CAIIB.

MR. NISHANT SHARMA

NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
(DIN: 08951697)

Mr. Nishant Sharma is an Non-Executive Independent Director of our
Company. He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India since 2011, DISA qualified from ICAIl, and also qualified as a forensic
auditor (FAFD) from ICAI He is also a member of Institute of Internal
auditors (llIA florida). He has a rich exposure with large multinationals and
national level enterprises in the domain of risk assessment, due diligence,
Internals audits, revenue audits, policies and SOP formulation. He has
served overseasclientin Middle East and Far East.

MS. ANTIMA KATARIA

NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
(DIN: 09788502 )

Ms. Antima Kataria is a qualified company secretary having vast
knowledge in various compliances of secretarial matters, legal due
diligence, incorporations, drafting and vetting of various Legal agreements
& Documents & Secretarial Audit of Listed and unlisted Companies,
Startups registration, NBFC Compliances, Scrutinizing of General Meeting,
Conversion of Loan into Equity, Shifting of Registered office from one state
to another. She has been a regular speaker at various training programs
conducted by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

il
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( COMPANY OVERVIEW ) ( STATUTORY REPORT ) ( FINANCIAL STATEMENT )

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELS

MR. AKASH JAIN
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Akash Jain is a Chartered Accountant with more than two decades of
work experience in various fields that include Management Consultancy,
Audits, Fundraising for corporates and other entities through Equity and
Debt, Taxation, Company Law Matters, Information System Audit, IT
System Consultancy, etc. He has been associated with various NBFCs and
HFCs and advised them on various operational, procedural, and compliance
matters. He has been instrumental in designing and implementing various
enterprise software for corporates and other entities.

MS. RAJNI GEHLOT

Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Rajni Gehlot is the Chief Financial Officer of the company. She is a
qualified chartered accountant and has more than 10 years of financial
leadership experience and knowledge of all aspects to explore
opportunities in Finance. Experienced in policy and process development
and plan execution. Further deeply involved in software planning and its
implementation and handled all legal aspects and compliances of RBI and
Treasury Management.

MR. SHIV PRAKASH SHRIMALI
Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Shiv Prakash Shrimali is the Chief Operating Officer of our Company.
Accomplished professional with over 4 decades of experience, he is a
science graduate from Rajasthan University, M.B.A. (Marketing) from
Punjab Technical University and M.A. (History) from Rajasthan University.
Impressive success in driving consistent improvement in top & bottom-line
performance of the banks; improved balance sheet size from INR 8,600
Crores to INR 19,000 Crores (by 125%) in just 5 years while working as
Chairman with Rajasthan Marudhara Gramin Bank.

M ® M
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MR. MANOJ KUMAR CHOUBISA

Company Secretary & Compliance officer

Mr.ManojKumar Choubisa holds a Master’sin Commerce from Mohan Lal
Sukhadia University, Udaipur, and is a certified Company Secretary (ICSI).
Boasting over 7 years of expertise, he excels in secretarial compliance,
accounting, and income tax practices, contributing significantly to

‘ I company’ssuccess.

MANAGEMENT TEAM:-

MR. SURESH CHANDRA GUPTA
Chief Risk Officer

Mr. Suresh Chandra Gupta is a retired senior manager of a bank, joined as
probationary officer in a bank and having experience of more than 36 years
in banking industry. He worked at different positions during his career span.
Mr. S.C. Gupta worked as a head of Credit Department, having vast
experience in handling court cases, legal matters, also handled several
cases of bankin DRT & DRAT. He has expertise in scrutiny of title documents
of properties and assessment of the risk of financial transaction.

il e g i1l @

MR. DIPESH JAIN
Chief Relationship Officer

Mr. Dipesh Jain is the friendly face behind client relationships at Aasaan
Loans, powered by Akme Fintrade India Limited (AFIL). As the Chief
Relationship Officer, Dipesh goes above and beyond to ensure that clients,
partners, and stakeholders feel heard, valued, and satisfied. With over 5
years of experience in the finance industry, he excels at understanding what
clients truly need and providing tailored financial solutions that work best
for them. Dipesh's hands-on approach and dedication to excellent service
help him build strong connections, making sure every client's journey with
Aasaan Loansis smooth and rewarding. Whetherit's finding the right loan or
simply providing guidance, Dipesh's commitment to putting clients first has
math'ﬁhn essential part of the team, driving both trust andSuccess at
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CHAIRMAN'S
FOREWORD

Dear Shareholders,

It is with diametrically opposite feelings of pride and humility
thatlam connecting with all of you this year. February 05,1996 is
a date that has remained etched in our memories, the day that
saw the birth of your Company. June 26, 2024 is another date
that would remain indelibly in our heart and soul, the day that
saw your Company emerge as a listed entity. Both these were
moments of immense pride. But the way the entire listing
panned out showed me how it is important to remain humble
amidstallachievementsandglory.

IPOis one of the mostimportant dreams of every entrepreneur.
The feelings of an entrepreneur at the time of his / her
Company'slisting are the same as the feelings experienced by a
mother who sees her son or daughter reach a coveted position
in the world. Words are inadequate to express those emotions. /
And | experienced this moment for myself when the clock /
struck 10 am on June 26, 2024. It was a long journey that A

culminated when we rang the bell in the National Stock MR. NIRMAL KUMAR JAIN

Exchange to commence the listing of your Company's shares,
butby no meanswas thisjourney aneasy one. CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR

| firmly believe, responsible businesses are sustainable businesses in the long run. Beyond being recognized as India's
most reliable financial services provider, we function as a powerful means of fostering inclusivity and empowerment
across all segments of society. Our commitment to accountability seamlessly aligns with this underlying business
ideology. Evaluating our achievements over the past year requires considering the lens of responsible value generation
for every stakeholder.

I'm delighted to share with you the Annual Report of Akme Fintrade (India) Limited for the fiscal year 2023-24. Our
extensive coverage, profound grasp of customer requirements, efficiency, speedy service, and trustworthiness
persistently position us as the favoured choice in retail financing, even amidst these demanding circumstances. This truly
reflects our joint efforts over the years to fulfill our goal- fostering financial access and improving the lives of people
acrossallsocietal levels.

Economiclandscape

Onamacro level, the global economy observed a moderation in growth due to a convergence of multiple factors that had
an impact on the majority of the major economies. In the context of India, the GDP growth stood at 8.2%, which was less
than the previously predicted 9.6%.
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In the field of industries, the year 2023-24 has shown positive results for Non-banking Finance Companies (NBFCs),
indicating an encouraging growth trend for the sector. The RBI took various steps to enhance the management and risk
oversight of NBFCs and create new avenues for these companies to secure funds and ensure their financial stability.
NBFCs are actively exploring innovative methods to finance their expansion, and the RBI is aiding this process by
simplifying the system. NBFCs have a vital role in sustaining demand for consumption as well as facilitating capital
formationin the smalland medium-sized industrial sector, making themindispensable to the Indian financial landscape.

Performanceinperspective

We remained on track in ensuring consistent performance. In the year being evaluated, our loan assets under
managementincreasedtoRs.40,372.00 /- Lacs,comparedto Rs. 35,416.00/- Lacsinthe previousyear.

Our total revenue during the year is Rs. 7350.12/- Lacs compared to Rs. 6,956.82/- Lacs in the previous year, whereas our
profitafter tax Rs.1,852.92/- Lacs compared to Rs.1,451.86/- Lacsin the previous year.

These numbers highlight the strong commitment within our company. We have kept growing steadily over time, and I'm
delightedto share that our collective efforts have helped us achieve a net worth of Rs. 21,968.11/- Lacs and an Earnings per
Share of Rs.5.85/- as of March 31,2024.

Responsibleineverysense

Aligned with our core mission of empowering the often neglected sections of society, we also channel our efforts into
fostering comprehensive progress. | can confidently affirm that anyone who has been linked with our organization can
attest to the fact that our aim extends beyond mere profit generation; rather, it encompasses a profound drive to catalyse
meaningful change in individuals' lives. Our dedication to community well-being seamlessly integrates with our strategy
foradvancement.

The well-being of our esteemed shareholders, who have shown their confidence in the Company, has consistently ranked
as a top priority for the Board of Directors. Your backing and motivation hold great significance in propelling our company
towards success. Both the Board and the executive leadership acknowledge their duty to ensure your investment in us
translatesinto valuable returns.

We look forward to the future with renewed optimism as AFIL is focused on measurable outcomes. Our Future plans
offersaclear roadmap and we believe that we have a bright opportunity ahead of us. Our targets are set, aswe getready to
explore and create more milestones ahead. We owe a debt of gratitude to all the employees for helping build your
Company and its businesses. We could not have done this without our shareholders and the communities we operate
within. | envision greater achievements for your Company in the years to come and look forward to a successful year
ahead.

Warmregards

Nirmal Kumar Jain
Chairman &Managing Director
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Global Economic Overview

The globaleconomy has shown remarkable resilience despite enduring repeated and overlapping shocks, coupled with unprecedented
monetary tightening measures. Growth in the US and several key emerging market economies (EMESs) has outperformed expectations.
While, manufacturing activity has remained subdued, services have exhibited strength. The global economy grew by 31% and is
anticipated to slow down to 2.9% in 2024. Although, headline inflation has decreased across countries, the decline in core and service
inflation has been gradual, given the persistent tightnessin labour markets. Major central banks in advanced economies (AEs) have kept
policy rates on hold to ensure alignment of inflation with targets.

Following a two-year surge, global inflation exhibited signs of easingin 2023, although it remained elevated compared to the 2010-2019
average. After peaking at 81% in 2022, the highest in nearly three decades, global headline inflation declined to an estimated 5.7% in
2023. Projections indicate a further decrease to 3.9% in 2024, driven by the continued moderation in international commodity prices
and reduced demand amid monetary tightening measures. While developed economies witnessed a notable slowdown ininflation, core
inflation rates remain relatively high, influenced by increasing service sector prices and tight labour markets. Furthermore, inflation in
most developing countries peakedin 2023 and is expected to continue moderatingin 2024.

Indian Economic Overview

India has solidified its position as the world's third-largest fintech economy, ranking behind only USA and the UK. Furthermore, it has
surged ahead of Hong Kong to claim the fourth spot in global stock markets. This accomplishment stems from both domestic and
international investor confidence, strengthened by sustained IPO activity. Initiatives like the Skill India Mission, Start-Up India, and
Stand-Up India have played a pivotal role in fostering greater women's participation in human capital development. Despite global
economic uncertainties, India's GDP grew by 8.2% in FY 2023-24, driven by increased public sector investments, a resilient financial
sector, andsignificant growthin non-food credit.

Going forward, the country is likely to remain the world's fastest-growing major economy on the back of growing demand, moderate
inflation, stable interest rate regime and robust foreign exchange reserves. The economy is poised to achieve nearly 7% growth in FY
2024-25. The catalysts for this projected growth are likely to be robust domestic demand, private consumption and investment, and
Government reforms and initiatives implemented over the past decade. The Government's investments in both physical and digital
infrastructure, coupled with measures to increase manufacturing have strengthened the supply side. Together, these developments are
likely to provide animpetus to the country's economic activity.

India is making significant strides to achieve its futuristic growth targets. The Indian economy is projected to cross the USD 4 Trillion
mark during FY 2024-25, further escalating to USD 5 trillion by FY 2026-27. Additionally, the Government has set an ambitious goal of
transforming into a developed country by 2047. India will sustain its upward growth track, propelled by stable and robust domestic
demand, expanding private consumption andinvestments, and ongoing structural reforms.

The challenges to the growth trajectory are geo-political risks, food inflation triggered by heatwaves and climate risks, rising non-fuel
commaodity input prices of corporates andjob creation for arising population.

Industry Overview

Financial Industry: The Indian financial servicesindustry is a dynamic and evolving sector, poised for further growth andinnovation. Itis
a vital component of the country's economy, providing arrange of financial products and services to individuals and businesses alike.
Over the past two years, the financial services industry has demonstrated its ability to successfully navigate unprecedented levels of
uncertainty. The industry is diverse, with a mix of traditional players such as commercial banks, insurance companies, and NBFCs, along
with newer entities such as payment banks and small finance banks. The sector is well-regulated by the RBI, which has also allowed
fintech companies to enter the fray, bringing innovation and efficiency to the industry. Digital transformation has been an important
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driverinincreasing the reach of financial servicesin the country and transparency.

India's financial services sector is undergoing a profound transformation, driven by the widespread adoption of digital technologies,
shifting consumer preferences and heightened competition. This dynamic landscape is reshaping the sector's growth direction.
Additionally, the integration of rapid technology has revolutionised the way Indians access and pay for services, with even street vendors
embracing QR code payments. Consequently, the Boston Consulting Group anticipates a remarkable surge in India's digital payments
market, projecting a threefoldincrease from USD 3 trillion to USD 10 trillion by 2026.

NBFC Industry: Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) are financial intermediaries that conduct financial transactions and offer
almost all banking services except for issuing self-drawn checks and demand drafts. They solicit funds from the public, directly or
indirectly, and execute loans to parties having repayment capacity. They provide credit to the unorganized sector and small local
borrowers, such aswholesale/retail merchants, smalland medium-sized businesses, and sole proprietors.

In the face of market competition from banks, NBFCs will retain their significance due to their extensive outreach, enhanced flexibility,
personalized services, and innovative digital offerings. NBFCs' GNPA ratio has dropped from 59% (September 2022) to 4.6%
(September 2023), approaching pre-pandemic levels, reflectingimproved asset quality. With the decline in GNPAs, the capital position
of NBFCsalso remains robust.

Company Overview:

Akme Fintrade (India) Limited (hereinafter referred as "AFIL" (‘the Company") is an Udaipur based diversified Non-Banking Finance
Company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Incorporated in 1996, the Company is engaged in providing
specialized retail financing services to the lower income and middle-income groups of the society. Since over two decades, the
Company primarily caters to the financially underserved masses spread across urban, semi-urban, and rural areas in the formal and
informal sectors. The Company offers a wide range of retail finance products such as micro enterprise loans, SME loans, two-wheeler
loans, used car loans and commercial vehicle loans to satisfy the varied needs of customers. A highly experienced management team,
huge borrower base, diverse product mix, efficient liability management, and a well-spread branch network underpin the operations of
the Company. The Company shares relevant applications with multiple lenders, increasing the probability of securing a loan and
providing choices to the lenders to select the bestloan for their portfolio.

Distribution Network

The distribution network of the company is characterized by its efficiency and customer-centric approach. The Company has
established a strong distribution network and believesin offering best-in-class services at the doorstep of its customers. The Company
has presence across Gujarat, Maharashtra, Rajasthan and Madhya Pradesh around 15 branches and 25 Business Points.

The well-entrenched network enables the Company to serve underserved masses and capture a significant share of the untapped
demand in the hinterlands ensuring last-mile delivery of credit. AFIL is focused on catering to the borrowing needs of lower income and
middle income groups of the society spread across urban, semi-urban andrural areas, in the formal and informal financial sectors.

Till 31 March, 2024, AFIL has catered to more than 2,00,000 customers through its robust network of 15 branches and 25 Business
Points.

OVERVIEW OF COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE

In a volatile economic environment, the Company focused on capital preservation, collections, stringent operating expenses
management and strengthening Balance Sheet. The credit rating of the Company is "ACUITE BBB". The new initiatives undertaken by
the Company continue to show positive impactin all areas during the currentyear.

DisbursementsandLoan Assets

The disbursements for the yearincreased fromRs. 7834.00/- Lacsin FY 2022-23 to Rs. 9705.00/- Lacsin FY 2023-24.

The focus of the Company was on maintaining the portfolio quality and focusing more on credit tested customers. Total Loan Assets as
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on 31" March, 2024 on stood at Rs. 40372.00/- Lacs against Rs. 35416.00/- Lacs for the previous year.

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS

Opportunity
. Proven track record and powerful brand recognition among small income groups of the society including urban, semi urban,
andrural areas.
. Embracingdigitalinitiatives
. Understanding the customer'sapproach
. Easy and simplified sanction procedure and disbursement
. Flexible operation &ability toinnovate
. Successful track record of catering to the MSME sector.
. Operatesinunderpenetrated business segmentwith huge growth potential.
. Initiatives by the Government to further boost MSME sector.
. Untapped credit needs of MSME segment.
. Consolidation and shift towards digital and organized space.

Threats
. Sharper monetary tightening.
. Rise in competitive intensity due to Strong and dynamic competitors.

. External political risk.
. New Entriesin same space with Digitisation.

. Unpredictable policy changes by the Government.
. Higher exposure to semi-formal and informal sector customers.
OUTLOOK

In the face of market competition from banks, NBFCs will retain their significance due to their extensive outreach, enhanced flexibility,
personalized services, and innovative digital offerings. The role of NBFCs in the larger financial sector is expected to gain in strategic
importance. NBFCs have become anintegral part of the financial system, complementing the role of traditional banks and contributing
to the inclusive growth of the economy. They cater to the diverse financial needs of different customer segments and play a significant
role in promoting financial access and deepening financial markets. Being predominantly digital natives, there is already a trend towards
greater use of digital tools and technology amongst NBF Cs in their processes and customer outreach. This will enhance their efficiency
parameters, going forward.

Additionally, as NBFCs cater to those at the bottom of the pyramid, both at the individual as well as enterprise level, it is assumed that
while their clients rise in economic status, they will continue to patronise the financiers that have introduced them to the formal financial
sector, assuming that they receive good service and suitable products. Within this evolving scenario, AFIL has clarity on the path ahead
withrespecttoitsapproach to Asset Creation and Liability Management.

Furthermore, NBFCs are increasingly adopting digitisation to enhance operational efficiency, elevate customer experiences, drive cost
savings and ensure compliance with regulatory standards. Despite facing stiff competition from public and private sector banks and
Microfinance Institutions (MFls) across market share, customer acquisition, asset quality and technological innovation, NBFCs have
spearheaded innovative digital initiatives. Through frugal innovation, they leverage cutting-edge technologies like cloud computing,
low- code/no-code platforms, data lakes and artificial intelligence (Al). These technologies propel multiple concepts like application
modernisation, super apps, data transparency and robustinformation security.

This digital transformation enables NBFCs to compete effectively with larger institutions for customer engagement, while delivering
seamless experiences for both customers and employees. In recent times, NBFCs have surpassed banks in terms of new credit
disbursals, leveraging technology to reach underserved sectors and capitalising on banks' limitations in swiftly expanding operations
and adaptinginflexible policies.

M ® /\/
2 11| EEEEECNENS 111l &R D



(' COMPANY OVERVIEW ) (_ STATUTORY REPORT ) ( FINANCIAL STATEMENT )

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 28" Annual Report on the affairs your Company together with the Audited Statement of
Accountsand the Auditor's Report of your Company for the Financial Year ended March 31,2024

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF THE COMPANY

The Financial performance of your company for the year ended 31" March, 2024 is summarized below:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Total Income 735012 6956.82
Total Expenditure 4974.49 507991
Profit Before Tax 2375.63 1876.91
- Current Tax 64799 478.82
- Deferred Tax -125.28 -5376
Net Profit 1852.92 1451.86
Profit Brought Forward 6496.23 533475
Profit Available for Appropriation 1852.92 1451.86
APPROPRIATIONS:

Transfer to reserve u/s 45-1A of RBI Act, 1934 370.58 290.37
Surplus carried to BS 797857 6496.23

A. LENDING OPERATIONS:

The Loan disbursement of the Company as at the end of Financial Year 2024 was Rs. 9705.00 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 7834.00

Lakhsinthe previousyear.

B. NETWORTH:

The Net worth of your Company is worth Rs. 22324.00 Lakhs as on 31" March, 2024 as against Rs. 20,471.03 Lakhs during the

previousyear.

C. EARNINGSPERSHARE (EPS):

The Company's aim of maximizing Shareholders wealth is clearly reflected in the growth of Earnings Per Share (EPS) viz Rs. 5.85/-
at31"March, 2024 as against Rs. 5.38/-as at 31" March, 2023.

The AUM of your Company stood at Rs. 40372.00 Lakhs as at 31" March, 2024 as against Rs. 3541612 Lakhs in the previous

D. ASSETUNDERMANAGEMENT (AUM)
financial year.
2. DIVIDEND
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Your Directors feel that it is prudent to plough back the profit for future growth of your Company and do not recommend any
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dividend for the year ended 31" March, 2024.
3. SHARECAPITAL
. Authorized Share Capital
Thereisno changeinthe Authorized and Paid-up Share Capital of the company during the year.

The authorized share capital of your Company as on 31" March 2024 is Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Fifty Crores Only) divided into
5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each.

. Issued and Paid-up Capital

The Issued and Paid Up Equity Share Capital as on 31" March 2024 is Rs. 31,67,49,960/-.(Rupees Thirty One Crore Sixty Seven
Lakhs Forty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty Only) divided into 3,16,74,996 (three Crore Sixteen Lakhs Seventy Four Thousand
Nine Hundred Ninety Six) equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each

Capital Structure After Financial Year But Before The Date of Annual Report:

There is change in Paid -up Share Capital of the Company after the end of Financial Year but before the date of Annual Report: -
The Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company increased from Rs. 31,67,49,960 (Rupees Thirty One Crore Sixty Seven Lakhs
Forty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty Only) divided into 3,16,74,996 (three Crore Sixteen Lakhs Seventy Four Thousand Nine
Hundred Ninety Six) equity shares of Rs10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each to Rs. 42,6749,960 /- (Rupees Forty Two Crores Sixty
Seven Lakhs Forty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty only) divided into 4,26,74,996 (Four Crore Twenty Six Lakhs Seventy
Four Thousand Nine Hundred and Ninety Six only) by way of Initial Public Offering (IPO) of 110,00,000 (One Crore Ten lakh)
equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) consisting of Freshissue of equity shares.

4. THEPROPOSED AMOUNTSTO CARRY TOANY RESERVES

During the year the Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserves and has transferred Rs. 370.58 Lakhs to
Special Reserve. The company have Rs.19156.37 Lakhsin account of Reserves and surplus.

5. THESTATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

The company has adopted the various business excellence models, quality management system (QMS), Environmental
managementsystem (EMS), The Company's committed efforts towardsimproving efficiency and service levelinits operations.

During the year, in addition to the already existing policies the Company has adopted certain policies, programmes and code of
conduct pursuant to listing of its Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013; SEBI (Listing
Obligations Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and any other applicable acts, rules,
regulations, guidelines, circulars, notifications as may be applicable thereto.

The Company has also adopted materiality policy for determining material group Companies and the same has been disclosed on
its website.

6. CORPORATEGOVERNANCE

The Company has framed internal Corporate Governance guidelines, in compliance with the Directions issued by RBI for NBFCs,
in order to enable adoption of best practices and greater transparency in the business operations, which have been hosted oniits
website www.aasaanloans.com. This report outlines compliance with requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(the 'Act’), the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Regulations of RBI for
Non-Banking Financial Companies (the 'NBFC Regulations'), as applicable to the Company. A report on corporate governance is
attachedand forms part of thisreport (Annexure V).
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end of the financial
year to which this financial statement relate on the date of thisreport exceptas below:

The company has passed resolution vide EOGM dated 07" December, 2022 for issue of equity shares of the company through
initial public offering and it has filed DRHP with the SEBI and other concerned authorities for their approval. The Proposed Initial
Public offering (IPO)is of Rs.132 Crores through primary issue of shares.

The company had filed application with BSE Limited for delisting its debt securities from the stock exchange as the debentures
were matured and the repayment of interest and principle amount of said debt securities is made by the Company. The application
isapproved by the stock exchange.

MATERIAL CHANGES BETWEEN THE DATE OF THE BOARD REPORT AND END OF FINANCIAL YEAR:

There have been material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred
between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statementsrelate and the date of the report:-

Your Company has come up with Initial Public Offer with Fresh issue of 1,10,00,000 (One Crore Ten Lakh) equity shares got listed
on BSE Ltd and National Stock Exchange of India Limited on June 26,2024.

CHANGE INNATURE OF BUSINESS

The Company continues to carry out the same activities. There has been no change in the nature of the business of the Company
duringthe year underreview.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the Company's going
concernstatusand future operations.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE ORINVESTMENT UNDERSECTION 186

Pursuant to Section 186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, except sub-
section (1), do not apply to a loan made, guarantee given, security provided or investment made by a finance company in the
ordinary course of business.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of Eight [8] Directors of which One [1]is Chairman & Managing Director; Two
[2] are Executive Directors; One [1] is Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director; Four [4] are Non-Executive Independent
Directoras onMarch 31,2024 who bringin awide range of skills and experience to the Board.

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31,2024 isas under: -

Composition of the Board:

Sr.No. Name of the Director Designation DIN

1 Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain Chairman & Managing Director 00240441
2 Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain Executive Director 07441707
3 Mr. Rajendra Chittora Executive Director 0821508
4 Mr. Shiv Prakash Shrimali Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director 09188385
5 Mr. Vimal Sardarsinghji Bolia Non-Executive Independent Director 03056586

il e S i

I % 28™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 25



26

Composition of the Board:

(' COMPANY OVERVIEW ) (_ STATUTORY REPORT ) ( FINANCIAL STATEMENT )

Sr.No. Name of the Director Designation DIN

6 Ms. Antima Kataria Non-Executive Independent Director 09788502

7 Mr. Sanjay Dattatray Tatke Non-Executive Independent Director 09848265

8 Mr. Nishant Sharma Non-Executive Independent Director 08951697
KMP'S:

1 Ms. Rajni Gehlot Chief Financial Officer BGEPG8519D
2 Mr. Bobby Singh Chandel Chief Executive Officer ADCPC2792C
3 Mr. Manoj Kumar Choubisa Company Secretary and Compliance officer BDSPC6848L

Change in the Board:
During the year following changes took place in the Board of Directors/KMP:

Sr. No. [ Name of the Director/ Designation Appointment/ Date of
KMP Resignation Event

1 Ms. Jayashree P Sharma Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Appointment 29.05.2023

2 Mr. Prashant Karulkar Additional Non-executive Independent Director | Resignation 12.07.2023

3 Ms. Jayashree P Sharma Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Resignation 01.01.2024

4 Mr. Manoj Kumar Choubisa | Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Appointment 01.01.2024

Changes in Key Managerial Personnel Between the Date of the Board Report and End of Financial Year:

Sr. No. [ Name of the Director/ Designation Appointment/ Date of
KMP Resignation Event

1 Mr. Bobby Singh Chandel | Chief Executive Officer Resignation 06.07.2024

2 Mr. Akash Jain Chief Executive Officer Appointment 1.07.2024

3 Mr. Shiv Prakash Shrimali Non-Executive Non-Independent Director Resignation 22.07.2024

4 Mr. Shiv Prakash Shrimali Chief Operating Officer Appointment 29.07.2024

Retirement of Director by Rotation

Inaccordance with the provisions of Section 152 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Mr. Rajendra Chittora (DIN:
08211508) Executive Director of the company is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 28" Annual General Meeting and being eligible
offershimself for reappointment.

13. DECLARATIONOFINDEPENDENTDIRECTORS

The Independent Directors have confirmed that they satisfy the criteria prescribed for Independent Directors as stipulatedin the
provisions of Section 149(6) of the Act. The names of all the Independent Directors of the Company have been included in the
Independent Directors data bank maintained by Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA). The Company has obtained
declaration of independence from all the Independent Directors of the Company that they meet the criteria of independence as
laid down under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as amended by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, which have
been relied upon by the Company and were placed at the Board Meeting. None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationship or
transactions with the Company.

None of the Directors of the Company are related to each other. They have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being
appointed as Directorsin terms of Section 164 of the Act and are not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of any
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SEBI order or any other such authority. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the necessary criteria for
independence as stipulated under the statutes.

The Board has formed the opinion that the Independent Directors have requisite expertise and experience required by the
Company based on their skills, knowledge and competencies.

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the
Company other than the sitting fees, commission, if any and reimbursement of expenses incurred for the purpose of attending
the meetings of the Board or Committees of the Company.

14. AUDITORS
. Statutory Auditors

At 25" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30" September, 2021, the members had appointed M/s. Valawat &
Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN:003623C) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of S yearsi.e.up
to the Conclusion of Annual General Meeting of the Company to be heldin the year 2026.

The Company hasreceived consent from the Statutory Auditors and confirmation to the effect that they are not disqualified
to be appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in terms of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
framed there under.

. Internal Auditors

In terms of Section 138 read with other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and on the recommendation of
audit committee the Board of directors of the company in its meeting held on 29" May, 2023, had appointed M/s. Pachori
Rupesh & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No: 024651C) as the Internal Auditor of the Company for
the Financial Year 2023-24.

. Secretarial Auditors

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s. Ronak Jhuthawat & Co., a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries was appointed as Secretarial
Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. The secretarial auditors have submitted their report for fiscal year
2024 and the report does not contain any qualification. The report of the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as Annexure -1 to
thisreport.

15. EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR
DISCLAIMERMADE:

(i) StatutoryAuditors:

There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark raised by Statutory Auditor in Auditor's report for the year under
review. The Comments made by M/s. Valawat & Associates, Auditors of the company in their Auditor's report read with
relevant notes thereon are self-explanatory in nature and hence do not call for any further comments.

(ii) Secretarial Auditors:

There is no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer in audit report except penalty levied by stock exchange,
issued by the Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The Comments made by M/s Ronak Jhuthawat & Co, Secretarial
Auditors of the company in their reports are self-explanatory in nature and hence do not call for any further comments.

16. COMPLIANCEWITHSECRETARIAL STANDARDS

In terms of provisions of Section 118 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is in compliance with Secretarial Standards on
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Meetings of the Board of Directors and Secretarial Standards on General Meetingissued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India (ICSI).

PERSONNEL

The disclosure as required in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for fiscal 2024 is givenin Annexure -lil.

LOANS FROMBANKS.:

As part of its liability management, the Company endeavors to diversify its resource base in order to achieve an appropriate
maturity structure and minimize the cost of borrowed funds. For requirement of more Working Capital, the company has
approached various Bankers including Existing Bankers and Financial Institutions and the details of Loan sanctioned and
disbursed by the Bank and Financial Institutions are more particularly givenin Notes forming part of the Financial Statement.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY:

Your Company's stand-alone capital adequacy ratio was at 49.86% on 31" March, 2024, which we believe provides an adequate
cushion to withstand businessrisks and is above the minimum requirement stipulated by the RBI.

CREDITRATING:

The Company has been assigned Credit Rating from Acuite Rating & Research Limited.

SR.NO. |FACILITIES LIMITS (IN CR) TENURE RATING

1

Fund Based (Bank Facilities) 170 Long Term ACUITE BBB (Acuite Triple B) Outlook Stable

2

Fund Based (Bank Facilities) no Long Term IVR BBB (IVR Triple B) Outlook Stable

21.

22.

23.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND ITSADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal controls and processes in place with respect to its financial statements, which provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements. These controls
and processes are implemented through various policies, procedures and certifications which commensurate with the size and
nature of the Company's business. The processes and controls are reviewed periodically. The Company has a mechanism of
testing the controls at regular intervals for their design and operating effectiveness to ascertain the reliability and authenticity of
financialinformation.

The Board is accountable for evaluating and approving the effectiveness of the internal controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls. The internal control system is subject to continuous improvement, with system effectiveness assessed
regularly.

These systems provide reasonable assurance in respect of providing financial and operational information, complying with
applicable statutes, safeguarding of assets of the Company, prevention and detection of frauds, accuracy and completeness of
accounting records and ensuring compliance with Company's policies.

RBIGUIDELINES AND CODES

The Company has been following the various Circulars, Notifications and Guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) from
time to time. The Circulars and the Notifications issued by RBI are also placed before the respective committees at regular
intervals along with the compliance of the same.

THERBINORMS AND ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

To comply with RBI directions, your company has closed its Book of accounts for the full year ending March 2024, and your
Company continues to comply with the directivesissued as well as the norms prescribed by Reserve Bank of Indiafor NBFCs.
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24. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTIONAND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are as follows:
A) Conservationofenergy:

The Company does not fall under any of the industries covered by the Companies (Disclosure of particulars of Directors)
Rules, 1988. However, your Company has taken adequate measures for conservation of energy and usage of alternative
source of energy, wherever required.

B) Technology absorption:

Your company has implemented a next generation, core virtual solution, with the purpose of aligning itself with the fast-
growing technology evolution and leveraging operational capabilities, while reducing the time taken for whole loan process.

Withinter-connection of different branches with the head office in a safe, secure andreliable cloud based platform.

For the aforesaid purpose, your company has signed-up with Kugelblitz Private Limited (Graviton) and customized it with
the practical needs to area of operation of Company, which resultsin following benefits:

1. Digitization of documents.

2. Centralization of allbranches with corporate/registered office.

3. Speed-uptheloanprocess.

4. Single-Click Report Generation.

5. Inter-departmental solution (robust the collaboration).

6.  Android/IOS app-based system for field staff to submitinitial documents and verification remarks.

7. Savingcostinlogistics, handling, printing, and mitigating risk of physical movements.

8.  Improvesthe quality of creditanalysis.

9.  SecuredandSafe cloud-based system with end to end encryption.

10.  Predefined roles with maker-checker concept, with final approval authority to Managing Director/Authorized
Personnel.

1. Keeping of Digital trails which can keep the whole loan process details in one click and useful during audit(s) and tracing
purpose.

12.  Simplification of work flow, with regular MIS.

Kugelblitz Private Limited as a service provider / software vendor will provide applicable upgrades and latest security
protocols.

Your company and its software vendor conducts its IT audit through external agencies at regular intervals. The scope
of IT audit is to identify the areas of risk, check vulnerabilities & cyber security etc. at periodic intervals. The external
agencies suggestions and recommendations are reported to the Audit Committee &implemented wherever feasible.

C) ForeignExchangeEarningsand Outgo

Your company does not have any foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review, However Company has
obtained External Commercial Borrowings in earlier years and EMI, Interest of the Loan has been paid in foreign currency
duringtheyear.

25. RELATEDPARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, your Company has not entered into any transactions with Related Parties which are notin the ordinary course of its
business or not on an arm's length basis and which require disclosure in this Report in terms of the provisions of Section 188(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, no particulars are being provided in Form AOC-2. Related Party disclosures, as per IND-AS have
been providedin Notes to the financial statement.
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26. ARM'SLENGTHPRINCIPLES

The transactions between the Company and its group companies are to be undertaken on an arm's length basis. The following
broad principlesshall be adhered to at the time of undertaking such transactions:

a) Alltransactionsshall have the substantive characteristics of a transaction betweenindependent parties.
b)  Thetransactionsshallbe enteredintoinaneedbased manner and shallbe based on principle of impartiality.
c) The pricing for specific transactions shall be at market related rates and would be benchmarked against comparable quotes

for similar transactionsin the market between independent parties.
d) The transactions shall comply with all statutory/regulatory guidelines, internal policy norms and procedures (including

appropriate documentation) applicable to such transactions, if engaged with independent parties with similar background.

27. WEBLINKOFANNUAL RETURN

In pursuance to the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder and amended time
to time, the Annual Return of the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 is available on the website of the
company i.e. www.aasaanloans.com and the web link of the same is https://aasaanloans.com/investor-relation/financials/.

28. ARISKMANAGEMENTPOLICY OF THE COMPANY

Financing activity is the business of management of risks, which in turn is the function of the appropriate credit models and the
robust systems and operations.

Your Company continues to focus on the above two maxims, and is always eager to improve upon the same. Your Company
continues to give prime importance to the function of receivables management, as it considers this the ultimate reflection of the
correctness of marketing strategy as well as appraisal techniques.

The Board of Directors has adopted a risk management policy for the Company which provides identification, assessment and
control of risks which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company. The Management identifies and
controlsrisks through a properly defined frameworkin terms of the aforesaid policy.

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy and introduced several measures to strengthen the internal controls
systems and processes to drive a common integrated view of risks, optimal and mitigation responses. This integration is enabled
through a dedicated team and Risk Management, Internal Control and Internal Audit systems and processes.

29. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

The Company's CSR policy is committed towards CSR activities as envisaged in Schedule VIl of the Act. The Details of CSR policy
of the Company are available on the website of the Company at www.aasaanloans.com. The Annual Report on CSR activities as
required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is attached to thisreport as Annexurell.

30. DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION &
REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees at workplace. The Company has
in place a Policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment, in line with the requirements of the “Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013." Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress
complaints, as and when received, regarding sexual harassment and all employees are covered under this Policy. During the year
under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

3. NUMBEROF MEETINGS
A. Boardmeeting

A total of 8 (Eight) Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year ended 31" March 2024. The maximum gap between
any two Board Meetings wasless than 120 days:
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S.No. | Date of Board meeting | Total No. of Directors associated as on the date of meeting | No. of Directors Attended
1 16.05.2023 9 8
2 29.05.2023 9 8
3 27062023 9 8
4 31072023 8 8
5 0311.2023 8 8
6 01.01.2024 8 8
7 26.02.2024 8 8
8 28.03.2024 8 8
Independent directors Meeting:
S.No. | Date of Board meeting | Total No. of Directors associated as on the date of meeting | No. of Directors Attended
1 26.02.2024 4 3

B. General Meeting

S.No. |Date of Type of Meeting Total No. of Members associated entitled to No. of Members
meeting attend meeting Attended
1 30.09.2023 AGM 718 10
C. Committee Meetings
No. of Committees: 5
Name of the Committee Date of meeting Total No. of Directors No. of Directors Attended
associated as on the date of
meeting

Audit Committee 16.05.2023 3 3

29.052023 3 3

26.06.2023 3 3

29.09.2023 3 3

0311.2023 3 3

26.02.2024 3 3
Nomination & Remuneration |29.052023 3 2
Committee 31072023 3 3

01.01.2024 3 2
Stakeholder's Relationship | 31.07.2023 3 3
Committee 26.02.2024 3 2
Corporate Social 031.2023 3 3
Responsibility Committee 01012024 3 3

26.02.2024 3 3
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Name of the Committee Date of meeting Total No. of Directors No. of Directors Attended
associated as on the date of
meeting

Risk Management 031.2023 2 1

Committee 26022024 2 2

32. SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANY

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate and joint venture company within the meaning of Section 2(87) and 2(6) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and no new subsidiary, associate andjoint venture Company was formed during the year under review.

33. DELISTINGFROMSTOCKEXCHANGE OF NONCONVERTIBLEDEBENTURE

The Company has allotted the Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures on 30" June 2020 with the maturity period of 3 years.
The Company has made full repayment of principal and interest amount of the said allotted debentures on 30" June 2023. As the
debentures are redeemed, the Company had filed application with the stock exchange for the delisting of such debentures and
the sameisapproved by the stock exchange.

34. DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your Directors
make the following statementsin terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013:

a. thatin the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b.  that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have been selected and applied
consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2024 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended onthat date;

c.  thatproper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and otherirregularities;

d.  thatthe AnnualFinancial Statementshave been prepared onagoing concernbasis;

e.  that proper Internal Financial Controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were operating
effectively;

f that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and operating
effectively.

35. MANAGEMENTDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Master Direction issued by the Reserve Bank of India a detailed analysis of the
Company's performance is discussed in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

36. HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Many initiatives have been taken to support business through organizational efficiency, process change support and various
employee engagement programmes which has helped the organization achieve higher productivity levels. A significant effort has
also been undertaken to develop leadership as well as technical/ functional capabilitiesin order to meet future talent requirement.

M o M
2 11| TS 111l &R



(' COMPANY OVERVIEW ) (_ STATUTORY REPORT ) ( FINANCIAL STATEMENT )

A. TRAINING&DEVELOPMENT

In the field of Human Resource Development, your company stresses on the need to continuously upgrade the
competencies of its employees and equip them to keep abreast of latest developments in the sector. The Company
operates in a knowledge intensive business and is committed to enhancing these skills of its employees. In order to achieve
this, the Company has an annual training plan to assess the various training needs. Necessary professional skills are also
imparted across all levels of employees through customized training interventions.

B. HUMANRESOURCE MANAGEMENT

The Company had 125 employees on its rolls at various levels of organizational structure as on March 31, 2024. Our
employees remain one of the company's greatest assets. We as an organization, believe in recognizing and appreciating
employees for their valuable contribution and loyalty. We offer equal opportunities to all our employees irrespective of
gender to learn and grow in the organization. For the convenience of our employees and bringing new ways of working, we
are promoting digitalization for our employees as well as our customers.

Your Company lays great emphasis on upgrading the skills of its Human Resource. It benchmarks its practices with the best
practices being followed in the corporate world. This, apart from other strategic interventions, leads to effective
management of Human Resource thereby ensuring high level of productivity. Your Company enjoys a very cordial and
harmonious relationship withits employees.

C. WELFAREMEASURES

Your Company follows good management practices to ensure welfare of its employees through a process of inclusive
growth &development. The Company follows an open door policy whereby the employees can access the top management
thereby contributing in the management and growth of the company. Commitment of the workforce is ensured through an
effective package of welfare measures which include comprehensive insurance, medical facilities and other amenities which
inturnlead to a healthy workforce.

37. OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS

Most of the NBFCs Customer profile is concentrated either in unorganized sector or on the self-employed segment, NBFCs have
also ventured into riskier segments such as real estate, unsecured loans, purchase finance for used commercial vehicles, etc.
These factors increase their risk profile which could have adverse impact on the financial health of NBFCs and have immense
business potential from the segment untapped by commercial banks. The changes in the regulatory frame work have made
NBFCs very competitive and responsible. The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has introduced guidelines under which bank loans to
NBFCs are not considered priority-sector loans, which reduces incentives from banks to lend directly to NBFCs and will increase
the latter's funding costs. Access to stable funding from banks, institutional investors and capital markets is a key factor in the
stable outlook on the sector, and any disruptionin funding access could lead to negative growth as well asrating action.

38. AUDITCOMMITTEE

The Company has constituted an Audit Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, RBI
directions, and SEBI Listing Regulations. Details on Audit committee, terms of reference and meetings appear on the Report on
Corporate Governance annexed to thisreport. Allrecommendations of Audit Committee were accepted by your Board during the
financial year 2023-24.

39. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

The provision of section 148 of the Act relating to maintenance of cost records and cost audit are not applicable to the Company.
Hence, the Company is not maintaining Costrecords.

40. DEPOSITS (SECTION73 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013)

Your Company is a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company. The Company has not accepted any deposit during the
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year under review. Further, the Company had also passed a resolution to the effect that the company has neither accepted public
deposit nor would acceptany public deposit during the year under review from public.

APPLICATION ORPROCEEDING UNDERINSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

According to the 2016 Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, no such applicationhasbeen made.

VIGIL MECHANISM AND WHISTLE BLOWERPOLICY

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower policy to enable Directors, and Stakeholders, including individual
employees and their representative bodies to report, in good faith, unethical, unlawful orimproper practices, acts, or activities and
the same have been disclosed on the website of the company www.aasaanloans.com.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, neither the statutory auditors nor the secretarial auditor has reported to the Audit Committee,
under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or
employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in the Board's report, which forms part of this Integrated Annual
Report.

EVALUATION OF BOARD AND SENIORMANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own
performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. Further, the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee has carried out the performance evaluation of Senior Management including the Company Secretary,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. The manner in which the evaluation was carried out has been
explainedin the Corporate Governance Reportwhich forms part of thisreport.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has framed a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior
Management and their remuneration. As and when need arises to appoint Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company will determine the criteria based on the specific requirements.
NRC, while recommending candidature to the Board, takes into consideration the qualification, attributes, experience and
independence of the candidate. Director(s), KMP(s) and Senior Management Personnel appointment and remuneration will be as
per NRC Policy of the Company. The salient features of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company has been
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, whichis a part of this report. The said Policy is available on the Company's website
on https://aasaanloans.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Nomination-and-Remuneration-Policy.pdf.
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ANNEXURE -I
FORM MR-3 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

(For The Financial Year Ended March 31%,2024)
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

AkmeFintrade (India) Limited

Akme Business Centre (ABC), 4-5Subcity Centre Savina
Circle, Opp. KrishiUpaz Mandi, Udaipur -313002

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Akme Fintrade (India) Limited (hereinafter called "The Company"). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us areasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, | hereby report thatin my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024, complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place
to the extent, inthe manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Akme Fintrade (India)
Limited for the period ended on 31.03.2024
according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the Rules made thereunder; (Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period)

3. TheDepositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI
Act') to the extent applicable to the Company: -

a.  TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

b.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period)

c.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

d.  TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 - (Not Applicable to
the Company during the Audit Period)

e.  TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008

f The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
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regarding the Companies Actand dealing with client

g.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 - (Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period)

h.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - (Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period); and

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to
the extent applicable to the company.

5. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of External
Commercial Borrowings;

6.  Rules,regulations, directions and guidelinesissued by the Reserve Bank of India as are applicable to the Company;
7. lhavealso examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)  Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (5S-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i)  During the period under review, the Company has complied with provisions of the Act, Rules, applicable Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

Ifurtherreportthat:

A.  The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Director and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors that took place during the period under review were carried outin compliance with the provisions
of the Act;

B.  Adequate notice was givento all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda were sentin advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation atthe meeting;

C. Alldecision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried unanimously as recordedin the minutes of the Meetings
of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be;

| further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the Company and on the basis of the Compliance
Certificate(s) issued by the Company Secretary and taken on record by the Board of Directors at their meeting(s), | am of the
opinion that the management has adequate systems and processes commensurate with its size and operations, to monitor and
ensure compliance with allapplicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines except the following:

| further report that during the review period there were no other specific events/action having a major bearing on the Company
affairsin pursuance of the above referredlaws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

For Ronak Jhuthawat & Co.
(Company Secretaries)

Dr.Ronak Jhuthawat
Proprietor
FCS:9738CP:12094

Peer Review No:1270/2021
UDIN-F009738F000792586

Place: Udaipur
Date:22.07.2024

Note: Thisreportisto be read with our letter of even date whichisannexed as "ANNEXURE A" and forms anintegral part of thisreport.
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"ANNEXURE A"

To,

The Members

AkmeFintrade (India) Limited

Akme Business Centre (ABC), 4-5 Subcity Centre Savina
Circle, Opp. KrishiUpaz Mandi, Udaipur -313002

My reportof evendateisto be read along with thisletter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express
an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. Ihave followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in Secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for my
opinion.

3. Ihavenotverified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, | have obtained the Management representation about compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happenings of eventsetc.

5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the
management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.  TheSecretarial Audit Reportis neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Ronak Jhuthawat & Co
(Company Secretaries)

Sd/-

Dr.Ronak Jhuthawat
Proprietor
FCS:9738CP:12094

Peer Review No:1270/2021
UDIN-F009738F000792586

Place: Udaipur
Date:22.07.2024
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“Annexure - II”
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

[Pursuant to clause (o) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of The Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1.  Abriefoutline on CSRpolicy of the Company:

Corporate Social Responsibility is a Company's sense of responsibility towards the community and environment in which it
operates. Itis the continuing commitment by business to behave ethically and contribute to economic development of the society
atlarge. A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmers proposed.

The Company may also undertake such CSR projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and the Company's CSR Policy is
available atwww.aasaanloans.com.

2. TheComposition of CSR Committee: The Company's CSR Committee consists of two executive directors & one non executive
independentdirector of the Company. The composition of the Committee isset out below:

S.No. DIN Name of Director Designation Number of Number of
meetings meetings
of CSR of CSR Committee

Committee attended during
held during the Year

the year
1 00240441 | Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain Managing Director 3 3
2 09788502 | Ms. Antima Kataria Non-Executive Independent Director |3 3
3 07441707 | Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain Executive Director 3 3

3. Weblink(s) for composition of CSRcommittee, CSR policy and CSR projects approvedby the Board:

The composition of the CSR Committee is available on our website at https://aasaanloans.com/committees-of-
directors/.

The Committee, with the approval of the Board, has adopted the CSR Policy as required under Section 135 of the Companies
Act, is available on our website at https://aasaanloans.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Corporate-Social-
Responsibility.pdf.

4. Executive summary and web link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8,if applicable:Not Applicable

5. (a) Averagenetprofitofthe Company aspersub-section (5) of Section135:Rs.15,34,11,082.36/-
(b) Twopercentofaverage net profit of the company sub-section (5) of Section 135: Rs. 30,68,221.65/-
(c) Surplusarising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil
(d) Amountrequiredto be set off for the financial year, if any: Rs. 2,22,050.31/-
(e) Total CSRobligation for the financial year (5b+5c-5d): Rs. 28,46,171.33 /-

6. (@) AmountspentonCSRProjects(both OngoingProjectand otherthan Ongoing Project): Rs.39,07,615/-

(b) Amountspentin Administrative Overheads: Nil
©  AmountSpentonimpact Assessment: Not Applicable.
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(d) Totalamountspentforthe Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]:Rs.39,07,615/-
(e) CSRamountspentorunspentforthe Financial Year:

Rs. 39,07615/- Nil - - - -

(f) Excessamountforsetoff,ifany: Rs.10,61443.66/-

1 Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) 30,68,22165/-
2 Less: Excess amount spent in previous year 2,22,050.31/-
3 Total CSR Obligation during the Financial Year (1-2) 28,46,171.33/-
4 Total amount spent for the Financial Year 39,07615/-
5 Excess amount spent for the financial year 10,61,443.66/-
6 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if |-

any
7 Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 10,61,443.66/-

7.  Detailsof Unspent CSRamount for the preceding three financial years:

Name of the | Amount (in Date of
Fund Rs.) transfer
NIL

8. Details of capital assets created or acquired during the financial year:

The number of capital assets created / acquired: Nil
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the
financial year: Nil

CSR Registration [ Name Registered
Number, if address
applicable

Not Applicable

il e il
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9. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5):
Not Applicable

Forandonbehalf of the Board
AkmeFintrade (India) Limited

Sd/-
Nirmal Kumar Jain
Chairman, CSRcommittee

Date: July 29,2024
Place: Udaipur
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“Annexure - lIl”

DETAILS OF MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

Information under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The statement of disclosure of Remuneration under sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

Ratio of remuneration of each Director of median remuneration of employee of the company for the FY-2023-24

S.No |Requirements Remuneration
1 Ratio of remuneration of each Director & KMP of |1 Nirmal Kumar Jain 2320
median remuneration of employee of the company |2. Ramesh Jain 6.82
forthe FY2023-24 3. Rajendra Chittora 441
4. Bobby Singh Chandel 16.29
5. Rajni Gehlot 487
6. Manoj Kumar Choubisa 0.51
2 Percentage Increase/ (Decrease) in Remuneration of |1 Nirmal Kumar Jain 2.08%
each director, CFO, CEO, CS, if any, in the Financial |2. Ramesh Jain 50.00%
Year 3. Rajendra Chittora 49.87%
4. Bobby Singh Chandel 309.52%
5. Rajni Gehlot 413%
6. Manoj Kumar Choubisa -
3 The Percentage Increase in the median Remuneration [ 10.00%
of Employeesin Financial Year
4 No. of Permanent Employee on the roll of Company |[125
5 Average percentile already made in the salaries of the | The average percentage Increase in remuneration of all employees
employees other than the managerial personnelin the | (other than Key managerial personnel's (KMP's) For the FY-2023-
last financial year and its comparison with the|24) stood at 6.92% where as the average Percentage increase in
percentile increase in the managerial remuneration | the remuneration of KMP's was at (7.95)%.
and justification thereof and point out if there are any
exceptional circumstances for increase in managerial
remuneration.
6 Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the | Yes, itis affirmed that the remuneration is as per the remuneration
remuneration policy of the Company policy of the company.

il
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Note:
1. Calculation of remuneration have been made on comparable and annualized basis.
2. Theremuneration of KMP's was taken from Audited Financial statement for FY.2023-24.
3. Remuneration comprises of salary (Fixed and variable), allowances, perquisites/taxable Value of perquisites.

For,and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-

Nirmal Kumar Jain RajendraChittora
ManagingDirector Director

DIN 00240441 DIN 08211508
Registered office

AKME Business Center (ABC)
4-5Subcity Center Savina Circle
Opp.Krishi Upaz MandiUdaipur.313002

Date: July 29,2024
Place: Udaipur
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“Annexure - IV”

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The report on Corporate Governance pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Securities Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”) and forming part of
the Directors' Report for Financial year 2023-24is presented below:

Company's philosophy on Code of Governance

"Good corporate governance helps to build an environment of trust, transparency and accountability necessary for fostering long-term
investment, financial stability and businessintegrity, thereby supporting stronger growth."

Akme Fintrade (India) Limited ("the Company") is committed towards achieving the highest standards of Corporate Governance by
staying true to its core values of Customer First, Transparency, Integrity and Professionalism. The Company continually works towards
implementing robust, resilient and best-in-class corporate practices in every facet of its operations, and in all spheres of its activities,
thereby generating higher returns and maximizing shareholder value.

Company's believesin adopting and adhering to the best standards of Corporate Governance. It consistently benchmarksiitself against
such standards. The Company duly acknowledges its fiduciary role and responsibility towards all of its Stakeholders including
Shareholders and strives hard to meet their expectations. The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance enshrines the goal of
achieving the highest levels of transparency, accountability and equity in all spheres of its operations and in all its engagements with the
Stakeholders. It understands that best Board practices, transparent disclosures, ethical conduct of business and Shareholder's
empowermentare necessary for creating sustainable Shareholder value.

Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance encompasses simple tenets of integrity, transparency, accountability and fairnessin
whatever the Company does and what it basically aims at achieving is a complete adherence to the applicable laws while at the same
time ensuring complete commitment to values and the highest ethical standards in every facet of its operations and in each of its
functional areas. This together with meaningful social activities has enabled your Company to earn the trust and goodwill of itsinvestors,
business partners, employees and the communities in which it operates. In line with the nature and size of operations, the Corporate
Governance framework of the Company, is based on the following main principles:

. Constitution of a Board of Directors of appropriate composition, size, varied experience and commitment to discharge their
responsibilities and duties.

. Transparency andindependence in the functions of the Board.

. Ensuring timely flow of information to the Board and its Committees to enable them to discharge their functions effectively.

. Independent verification and assuredintegrity of financial reporting.

. Timely and balanced disclosure of all material information concerning the Company to all stakeholders and protection of
theirrightsandinterests.

. Asoundsystem of risk management, internal control, anti-bribery and anti-corruption business practices.

. Compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulationsin letter and spirit.

. Number of Board and Committee meetings more than the statutory requirement, including meetings dedicated for
discussing strategy, operating plans andrisks.

. Board comprises of directors from diverse backgrounds and substantial experience, who are able to provide appropriate
guidance to the executive managementasrequired.

. Complete and detailed information provided to Board members in advance to enable them to evaluate matters carefully for
meaningful discussions.

Your Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse Board inits success which is enriched with appropriate balance of
skills, experience, diversity of perspectives, thereby ensuring effective Board governance. The Board of Directors of your Company is at
the core of the Corporate Governance practices and oversees how the management serves and protects the long-terminterest of the
Stakeholders. Your Company's Corporate Governance framework ensures that it makes timely and appropriate disclosures and shares
factualand accurate information. Given below is the report of the Directors on Corporate Governance in accordance with the provisions
of the SEBILODR Regulations.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company plays a key role, as they oversee the functioning of the organization and ensure that it continues
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to operate in the best interest of all the stakeholders. Thus, the Company strives to keep its Board well-informed, independent and
actively involvedin theimportant decision-making process pertaining to the Company.

The Board of Directors represents the interest of Company Shareholders, in optimizing long-term Value by providing the Management
with the guidance and strategic direction on the shareholder's behalf. The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its
consideration and decision, which includes reviewing corporate performance, ensuring adequate availability of financial resources,
regulatory compliance, safeguarding the interest of shareholders and reporting to shareholders.

The Directors attend and actively participate in Board Meetings and meetings of the Committees in which they are Members. The
Board'sresponsibilities include various matters, inter-alia, including:

a) Overall direction of the Company's business, including projections on capital requirements, budgets, and revenue streams,
expenses and profitability;

b)  Review of quarterly/annually results andits business segments.

c) Compliance with variouslaws and regulations;

d)  Addressing conflicts of interest;

e) Ensuringfair treatment of borrowersand employees;

f)  Ensuringinformationsharing with and disclosures to various Stakeholders, including investors, employees and regulators;

g) Developingacorporate culture that recognizes and rewards adherence to ethical standards;

The Company has a broad-based Board of Directors, constituted in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and in accordance with highest standards of Corporate Governance in its
management, which ensures an appropriate mix of Executive/Non-Executive and Independent Directors with demonstrated skill sets
andrelevant experience.

The Board members have professional knowledge and experience, in diverse fields viz. finance, banking, public policy and legal/judicial,
thereby bringing about an enabling environment for value creation through sustainable business growth.

A. Compositionof the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Board of the Company represents an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors as well as Independent
Directors, who possess varied professional knowledge and experience in diverse fields like finance, banking, insurance, economics,
corporate laws and administration. The Board of your company is headed by the Executive Director (designated as Chairman and
Managing Director).

The Board is expertise in making informed decisions, expediently with the bouquet of a variety of perspectives and skills that work
togetherinthe bestinterest of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of Eight[08] Directors of which One [1]is Chairman & Managing Director; Two[2] are
Executive Directors; One [1] is Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director; Four [4] are Non-Executive Independent Director as on
March 31%,2024.

In addition, the organization is led by our KMPs i.e. Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), and a Company
Secretary & Compliance Officer. The Company is in compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, with regard to composition of
Board of Directors. None of the Director on the Board is a Member on more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5
Committees, acrossall the Companiesinwhich heisa Director.
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+  The Composition of the Board of Directors & KMP as on 31" March, 2024 is given below:

NAME OF DIRECTOR/KMP | DESIGNATION DIN/PAN NO. OF QUALIFICATION/
SHARES (EXPERIENCE

Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain Chairman & Managing Director 00240441 11410090 [ CA, ICWA

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain Executive Director 07441707 100000 MBA

Mr. Rajendra Chittora Executive Director 08211508 52508 MSC & MBA

Mr. Shiv Prakash Shrimali* Non-Executive & Non-Independent | 09188385 0 B.SC, MA & MBA

Director

Mr. Vimal Sardarsinghji Bolia | Non-Executive Independent Director | 03056586 0 Chartered Accountant

Ms. Antima Kataria Non-Executive Independent Director | 09788502 Company secretary, BCom,
LLB & Diploma in Labour Law

Mr. Sanjay Dattatray Tatke Non-Executive Independent Director | 09848265 0 B.SC, MBA

Mr. Nishant Sharma Non-Executive Independent Director | 08951697 0 Chartered Accountant,
B.Com

Mr. Bobby Singh Chandel** | Chief Executive Officer ADCPC2792C 100000 B.Com

Mr. Akash Jain*** Chief Executive officer AEIPJ8748L 43000 Chartered Accountant,
M.Com & Post Graduate
Diplomain BA

Mrs. Rajni Gehlot Chief Financial Officer BGEPG8519D |107500 Chartered Accountant,
M.Com & Post Graduate
Diplomain BA

Mr. Manoj Kumar Choubisa Company Secretary & Compliance BDSPC6848L (O Company Secretary & M.com

Officer

* Resignation of Mr. Shiv Prakash Shrimali from the post of Non-Executive Non Independent Director w.ef. July 22,2024
** Resignation of Mr. Bobby Singh Chandel from the post of Chief Executive Officer w.ef July 06,2024.
*** Appointment of Mr. Akash Jain on the post of Chief Executive Officer w.ef July 11,2024.

During the year and after the closing of financial year following changes made in the Board structure and KMP:

Sr. No.

Name of the Director/KMP

Description

1

Mr. Prashant Karulkar

He has resigned from the post of Additional Non - Executive Independent Director w.ef.
July 12,2023

2 Ms. Jayashree P Sharma She was appointed as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company w.ef.
May 29, 2023. Further, she resigned from the post of Company Secretary & Compliance
Officer wef. January 01, 2024

3 Mr. Manoj Kumar Choubisa He was appointed as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company w.ef.
January 01, 2024

4 Mr. Bobby Singh Chandel He has resigned from the post of Chief Executive Officer w.ef, July 06, 2024

5 Mr. Akash Jain He was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company w.ef, July 11, 2024

6 Mr. Shiv Prakash Shrimali He has resigned from the post of Non- Executive Non- Independent Director of the

Company w.ef, July 22, 2024. Further he was appointed as Chief Operating Officer of the
Company w.ef, July 29, 2024.
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B. Boarddiversity

In compliance with the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board through Nomination and Remuneration Committee
('NRC") has devised a policy on Board Diversity. The Board comprises of adequate number of members with diverse experience
and skills, such that it best serves the governance and strategic needs of the Company. The present composition broadly meets
this objective. The directors are persons of eminence in areas such as profession, business, industry, finance, law, administration,
research, banking, etc. and bring with them experience/skills which add value to the performance of the Board. The directors are
selected purely on the basis of merit with no discrimination onrace, colour, religion, gender or nationality.

C. Coreskills/expertise/competencies

Brief profile of directorsis available on the website of the Company at www.aasaanloans.com. As stipulated under schedule V to
the SEBI Listing Regulations, core skills/expertise/competencies as required in the context of the business and sector for it to
function effectively and those actually available with the Board have beenidentified by the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors of the company possess following Core skills/expertise/competencies:

Management&Governance

Financial Services

Consumer behavior, sales, marketing and customer experience
Technology and Innovation

Understanding of accounting and financial statements

Risk, Assurance and Internal Controls

Regulatory, Public policy and economics

Human Resource

Business Transformation & Strategy

D. Directors'Profile

The Board of Directors comprises highly renowned professionals drawn from diverse fields. They bring with them a wide range of
skillsand experience to the Board, which enhances the quality of the Board's decision making process.

The details of the Directors, as at March 31, 2024, including the details of their board directorship reckoned in line with Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, committee membership and
theirshareholdinginthe Company.

E. Directorshipsand Membership of the Directorsin other Companies/Committees

All the Directors of the Company are compliant with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing
Regulations to the extent applicable with respect to their number of Directorship in other Companies and
chairmanship/membership on various Committees.

NAME OF THE DIRECTOR DIN *NUMBER OF *MEMBER/CHAIRPERSON OF THE
DIRECTORSHIPS COMMITTEE
MEMBER CHAIRPERSON

Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain 00240441 (2 1 0

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain 07441707 3 0] 0

Mr. Rajendra Chittora 08211508 1 0] 0

Mr. Shiv Prakash Shrimali*** 09188385 (2 1 0]

Mr. Vimal Sardarsinghji Bolia 03056586 |3 0] 0

Ms. Antima Kataria 09788502 |1 1 1

Mr. Sanjay Dattatray Tatke 09848265 |1 0 0

Mr. Nishant Sharma 08951697 2 1 1
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*Inclusive of directorships heldin Private Limited Companies.
**Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders 'Relationship Committee hasbeen considered.
***Resignation of Mr. Shiv Prakash Shrimali from the post of Non-Executive Non- Independent Director w.ef July 22,2024

F. Evaluationof Performance of Directorsand Board

With the objective of enhancing the effectiveness of the board, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee formulated the
methodology and criteria to evaluate the performance of the board and each director. The evaluation of the performance of the
board is based on the approved criteria such as the board composition, strategic planning, and role of the Chairman, Non-
Executive Directors and other senior management, assessment of the timeless and quality of the flow of information by the
company to the board and adherence to compliance and other regulatory issues.

Some of the specificissues and questions that should be considered in a performance evaluation of the entire Board by
IndependentDirectorsare setoutbelow:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is effective in decision making.
The Board of Directorsis effective in developing a corporate governance structure that allows and encourages the Board to
fulfillits responsibilities.

3. The Company'ssystems of control are effective foridentifying material risks and reporting material violations of policies and
law.

4.  TheBoardreviews the organization's performance in carrying out the stated mission on aregular basis.

5. TheBoardof Directorsis effective in providing necessary advice and suggestions to the Company's management.

6. IstheBoardasawhole up to date with latest developmentsin the regulatory environment and the market.

7. Theinformation provided to Directors prior to Board Meetings meets your expectationsin terms of length andlevel of detail.

8. Board meetings are conducted in a manner that encourages open communication, meaningful participation, and timely
resolution of issues.

9.  The Board Chairman effectively and appropriately leads and facilitates the Board meetings and the policy and governance

work of the Board.

10.  TheBoard appropriately considersinternal auditreports, management'sresponses, and steps towardsimprovement.

1. The Board oversees the role of the Independent Auditor from selection to termination and has an effective process to
evaluate the Independent Auditor's qualifications and performance.

12. TheBoard considers the Independent Audit plan and provides recommendations.

G. BoardMeetings

The Company holds at least four Board meetings in a year, one in each quarter. Apart from the four scheduled Board Meetings,
additional Board Meetings are also convened to address the specific requirements of the Company, as and when required. In case
of urgency or business exigencies, matters are also approved by way of circular resolution as per the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 and subsequently noted at the next Board meeting.

The Functional/business heads of the Company periodically give presentations covering their respective operations,
performance, plans and strategies and discuss the areas of improvements and prospective opportunities. The Agenda along with
comprehensive notes and background material are circulated well in advance before each meeting to all the Directors.
Presentations are made by the Senior Management on the Company's performance, operations, plans and other matters on a
periodic basis. The proceedings of the meetings of the Board and its Committees are recorded in the form of minutes, which are
circulated to the Board for perusal. The important decisions taken at the Board / Committee meetings are promptly
communicated to the concerned departments. The information as given to the Board either as a part of the agenda of the
meeting or by way of presentation during the meeting; inter aliaincludes:

. Minutes of various committees of the Board.
. Annual operating plans, budgets and business strategies and performance.
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. Information on the exits and recruitmentsincluding the remuneration of senior officials just below the Board level.
. Significant transactions, related party transactions and arrangements.

. Update on non-fulfillment or defaults by the Company of any financial liability/obligations of material nature.

. Update onshareholders' grievance redressal process, significant regulatory matters.

. Risk evaluation and control mechanism.

. Details ofinvestments and deployment of capitalissue proceeds.

During the financial year 2023-24, Eight (8) Board meetingswere heldasunder:

Sr. No. | Date of Board meeting | Total No. of Directors associated as on the date of meeting | No. of Directors Attended

1. 16.05.2023

29.05.2023

2706.2023

31072023

0311.2023

01.01.2024

26.02.2024

o[ N[o[u[s][w[N
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28.03.2024

|| 0| OC]| 0| O]|O0K]|O®

The details of the sitting fees and the attendance of the Directors at the Board Meeting and attendance at the Annual General Meeting
held during the year 2023-24 are asbelow.

S. NAMEOF THEDIRECTOR NO.OF MEETING BOARD OF SITTING FEES PAID WHETHER ATTENDED LAST

NO. MEETINGS AGM HELD ON 30.09.2023
(Y/N)
ENTITLED TO ATTENDED
ATTEND

1 Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain 8 8 NA

2 Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain 8 8 NA

3 Mr. Rajendra Chittora 8 8 NA

4 Mr. Shiv Prakash Shrimali 8 8 80,000 No
5 Mr. Vimal Sardarsinghji Bolia 8 8 80,000 No
6 Ms. Antima Kataria 8 8 80,000 No
7 Mr. Sanjay Dattatray Tatke 8 8 80,000 No
8 Mr. Nishant Sharma 8 8 80,000 No
9 Mr. Prashant Karulkar 3 0] 0 NA
H. IndependentDirectors

Independent directors play a vital role in deliberations at the board meetings and bring to the Company their wide experience and
knowledge in the fields of finance, housing, accountancy, law and public policy. This wide knowledge of both, their field of expertise
and boardroom practices helps foster varied, unbiased, independent and experienced perspectives. The Company benefits
immensely from theirinputsin achievingits strategic direction.
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The Audit Committee, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee have a majority of
Non-Executive Directors. These committees function within the defined terms of reference in accordance with the Companies
Act, 2013, the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable and as approved by the board, from time to time. The Board
members ensure that their work in other capacities do notimpinge on their fiduciary responsibilities as Directors of the Company.

All Independent Directors of the Company, at the time of their first appointment to the Board and thereafter at the first Board
meeting of the Board in every Financial Year, give a declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as provided under the
provisions of Section 149 of the companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the Board, each Independent Director possesses the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and knowledge asrequired.

Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors

During the year, as per the requirement of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a separate
meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 25" March 2024 without the attendance of Non-Independent
Directors and members of the management. Three (3) Independent Directors were present at the meeting, wherein they had
inter alia; reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; reviewed the performance of the
Chairman of the Company and assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company
managementand the Board.

RemunerationtoDirectors
. Non-Executive Directors
During the Year under review sitting fees has been paid to Non-Executive and Independent Directors.

There was no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive director's except the sitting fees paid to themw.rt.
the meetings attended by them vis a vis the Company during the Financial Year ended March 31,2024.

. Executive Director

The Executive Directors of the Company have been appointed, in terms of the resolutions passed by the shareholders at the
Annual General Meetings. Elements of the remuneration package comprise of salary, perquisites and other benefits are as
approved by the members at the Annual General Meeting. Details of the remuneration paid to the Executive Directors
during the year under review are providedin Annexure lIl.

COMMITTEES OF THEBOARD

With a view to have a more focused attention on business and for better governance and accountability, the Board has constituted
the following mandatory committees viz. Audit Committee, Stakeholders' Relationship Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Risk Management Committee. The terms of reference of
these Committees are determined by the Board and their relevance reviewed from time to time. Meetings of each of these
Committees are convened by the respective Chairman of the Committee, who also informs the Board about the summary of
discussions held in the Committee Meetings. The Minutes of the Committee Meetings are sent to all Directors individually and
tabled at the Board Meetings.

The Committees of the Board meet at regular intervals and have the requisite subject expertise to handle and resolve matters
expediently. The Board overlooks the functioning of the Committees. The Chairman of the respective Committees briefs the
Board on significant discussions and decision taken at their respective meetings. Minutes of the Committee Meetings are placed
in the subsequent Board Meeting for their noting.

A. AuditCommittee

The Audit Committee has been constituted by the Company in terms of provisions of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18
read with Part D of Schedule Il of SEBILODR Regulations and is chaired by Non-Executive Independent Director.
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At present the Audit Committee comprises of Three (3) Directors as its members, out of them two are Independent Directors and
oneis Managing Director. The composition of the Committee isin adherence to provisions of the Act, SEBILODR Regulations and
RBI Guidelines. All the Members of the Committee are financially literate and majority members including the Chairperson
possess financialmanagement expertise. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary to the Committee.

The Audit Committee acts as a link between the Statutory and Internal Auditors and the Board of Directors. Its purpose is to assist
the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities of monitoring financial reporting processes, reviewing the Company's
established systems and processes for internal financial controls, governance and reviewing the Company's statutory and internal
auditactivities.

The functions of Audit Committee are:

The Board of Directors has formed and approved a charter for the Audit Committee setting out the roles, responsibilities and
functioning of the Committee. In adherence to the provisions of the Act, and SEBI LODR Regulations to the extent applicable and
all other applicable regulatory requirements, the terms of reference of the Audit Committee are covered by its charter. Its
functioninginter alia broadly includes the following:

. oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statementis correct, sufficientand credible;

. recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

. approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

. reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to the
boardforapproval, with particular reference to:

a.  mattersrequiredtobeincludedinthe director'sresponsibility statement to be includedin the board'sreportin terms of
clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

changes, if any,inaccounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

major accounting entriesinvolving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
significantadjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

disclosure of any related party transactions (the term “related party transaction” shall have the same meaning as
assigned toitunder the SEBI Listing Regulations,and any amendment made to it);

g.  modifiedopinion(s)inthe draftauditreport;

+0 00T

. reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

. reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights
issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document /
DRHP / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights
issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up stepsin this matter;

. reviewingand monitoring the auditor'sindependence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

. approval orany subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

. scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

. valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever itis necessary;

. evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

. reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory andinternal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

. reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffingand
seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

. discussionwithinternal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

. reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

. discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

. tolookinto the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of
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non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

. toreview the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

. approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the
candidate;

. carrying outany other function asis mentionedin the terms of reference of the audit committee;

. reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary exceeding
R100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans/ advances /investments, if
applicable;

. considerand comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemesinvolving merger, demerger, amalgamation
etc, on the listed entity and itsshareholders.

The audit committee shallmandatorily review the followinginformation:

management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

management letters/ letters of internal control weaknessesissued by the statutory auditors;

internal auditreportsrelating tointernal control weaknesses; and

the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by the audit
committee.

statement of deviations: (a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable,
submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. (b) annual statement of funds
utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) of the
SEBIICDR Regulations.

INFRENEES

o

Powers of the Audit Committee:

y Investigating any activity within its terms of reference;
> Seekinginformation fromany employee;

y Obtaining outside legal or other professional advice; and

> Securing attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if itis considered necessary.

The Company held Six (6) pre-scheduled Audit Committee meetings annually and the maximum time gap between two Audit
Committee meetingsis notmore than One Hundred Twenty days.

The composition of the Audit Committee as at March 31, 2024 and details of the Members participation at the Meetings of the
Committeeareasunder:

Name of Members  Mr. Nishant Sharma Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain Ms. Antima Kataria

Category Non-Executive Independent Managing Director/ Non-Executive Independent
Director Executive Director Director

Status Chairman Member Member

Date Attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings

16.05.2023 YES YES YES

29.05.2023 YES YES YES

26.06.2023 YES YES YES

29.09.2023 YES YES YES

03.11.2023 YES YES YES

26.02.2024 YES YES YES
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All the Members on the Audit Committee have the requisite qualification for appointment on the Committee and possess sound
knowledge of finance, accounting practices and internal controls. The representatives of the Statutory Auditors are permanent
invitees to the Audit Committee Meetings. The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee.

. Self-Assessmentby the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has set in place a process to measure and benchmark its performance each year. The assessment
broadly covers composition, structure and committee meetings; overview of the financial reporting process; internal control
systems and overview of internal and external audits. The results of the self-assessment are presented to the Audit
Committee alongwith the action planin the areasrequiringimprovement.

B. Stakeholders'Relationship Committee

In compliance with the provisions of Section178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 read with Part D of the Schedule Il
of SEBILODR Regulations the Board has Constituted Stakeholders' Relationship Committee.

The Company has constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee for resolving the grievances of the security holders of
the Company including complaints related to transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends,
generalmeetingsetc.

The terms of reference of the Stakeholder Relationship committee are as follows:

. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer/transmission of
shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general
meetings etc.

. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being rendered by the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and
ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company.

The composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee as at March 31, 2024 and details of the Members participation at
the Meetings of the Committee are asunder:

Name of Members Category Status Attendance at the Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee Meetings
31.07.2023 26.02.2024
Ms. Antima Kataria Non-Executive Independent Director Chairperson | YES YES
Mr. Nishant Sharma Non-Executive Independent Director Member YES YES
Mr. Shiv Prakash Shrimali* | Non-Executive Non-Independent Director | Member YES NO

* Mr. Shiv Prakash Shrimali ceased to be member of Committee w.ef July 22, 2024 due to his resignation from the post of Non-
Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company.

99.96% Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized form. Bigshare Services Private Limited has been appointed and it has
been actingas the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company for carrying out transfer and other ancillary work related thereto.
Bigshare Services Private Limited has appropriate systems to ensure that requisite service is provided to investors of the Company in
accordance with the applicable corporate and securities laws and within the adopted service standards.

During the period under review, the Company has not received any investor's complaint and also no complaintis pending.
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C. Nominationand Remuneration Committee

The Company's Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees which is available on the
website of the Company i.e, www.aasaanloans.com. Further, the Company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of
Independent Directors, Board, Committees and otherindividual Directors.

The Company's remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding performance based on review of achievements periodically.
Theremuneration policy isin consonance with the existingindustry practice.

Your Company has in place a Nomination (including Board's Diversity), Remuneration & Evaluation Policy, which, inter-alia, lays
down the criteria for identifying the persons who are qualified to be appointed as Directors and/or senior management personnel
of the Company, along with the criteria for determination of remuneration of Directors, KMPs and other employees and their
evaluation and includes other matters, as prescribed under the provisions of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
19 read with Part D of Schedule Il of SEBILODR Regulations.

In compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, and applicable SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015 the Board has
constituted the “Nomination and Remuneration Committee”.

The terms of reference of the Committee inter alia, include the following:

. formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend
to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees;

. For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the
balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the
role and capabilities required of an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an
independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable
candidates, the Committee may: a. use the services of an external agencies, if required; b. consider candidates from a wide
range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and c. consider the time commitments of the candidates. formulation
of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;

. Devisinga policy ondiversity of board of directors;

. identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior managementin accordance
with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and removal;

. whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation ofindependent director.

. recommend to the board, allremuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

Review the performance of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Employees based on certain criteria as approved by
the Board. In reviewing the overall remuneration of the Board of Directors and Senior Management, the Committee ensures that
the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the best managerial talent, the relationship of
remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks and that the remuneration involves a
balance between fixed andincentive pay reflecting short term andlong term objectives of the Company.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as at March 31,2024 and the details of Members participation
atthe Meetings of the Committee are asunder:
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Name of Members Ms. Antima Kataria Mr. Nishant Sharma Mr. Shiv Prakash Shrimali*

Category Non-Executive Independent Non-Executive Independent Non-Executive Non- Independent
Director Director Director

Status Chairman Member Member

Date Attendance at the meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

29.05.2023 YES YES NO

31.07.2023 YES YES YES

01.01.2024 YES YES NO

* Mr. Shiv Prakash Shrimali ceased to be member of Committee w.ef July 22, 2024 due to his resignation from the post of Non-
Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company.

D. CorporateSocial Responsibility (CSR) Committee

The Company has voluntarily constituted the CSR Committee and to review the existing CSR Policy to make it more
comprehensive so as to indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies
Act, 2013, to provide guidance on various CSR activities undertaken by the Company and to monitor its progress.

The following Terms of reference:

. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a corporate social responsibility policy stipulating, amongst others, the guiding
principles for selection, implementation and monitoring the activities as well as formulation of the annual action plan.

. The annualaction planshallinclude the following:-

a) the list of corporate social responsibility projects or programmes that are approved to be undertaken in areas or
subjectsspecifiedin Schedule VIl of the Companies Act

b) themannerof execution of such projects or programs as specifiedin the rules notified under the Companies Act;

c) themodalities of utilisation of funds andimplementation schedules for the projects or programmes;

d)  Monitoringandreportingmechanism for the projects or programmes.

e) Detailsof needandimpactassessment, if required, for the projects undertaken by the company.

. Recommending the amount of expenditure to be incurred, amount to be atleast 2% of the average net profit of the company
inthe threeimmediately preceding financial years..

. Toidentify corporate social responsibility policy partners and corporate social responsibility policy programmes

. Tomonitor the corporate social responsibility policy from time to time;

. To review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred for the corporate social responsibility activities and the
distribution of the same to various corporate social responsibility programmes undertaken by the Company.

. To delegate responsibilities to the corporate social responsibility team and supervise proper execution of all delegated
responsibilities.

. To review and monitor the implementation of corporate social responsibility programmes and issuing necessary directions
asrequired for properimplementation and timely completion of corporate social responsibility programmes;

. To perform such other duties and function as the Board may require the CSR committee to undertake to promote the
corporate social responsibility activities of the company and exercise such other powers as may be conferred upon the CSR
Committeein terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act.

. To take note of the compliance made by implementing agency (if any) appointed for the corporate social responsibility of
the Company;

. Any such terms of reference as may be prescribed under the Companies Act.

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as at March 31, 2024 and the details of Members'
participation at the Meetings of the Committee are asunder:
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Name of Members

Category

Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain

Ms. Antima Kataria

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain

Executive Director

Non-Executive
Independent Director

Executive Director

Status Attendance at the Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) Committee Meetings
03.11.2023 01.01.2024 26.02.2024
Chairperson YES YES YES
Member YES YES YES
Member YES YES YES

E. RiskManagementCommittee

The Company has formed voluntarily Risk Management Committee of the Board for assisting the Board to establish a risk culture
and risk governance framework in the organization. The Committee was formed to supervise, guide, review and identify current
and emerging risks; developing risk assessment and measurement systems, establishing policies, practices and other control
mechanisms to manage risks, developing risk tolerance limits for Senior Management and Board approval, monitoring positions

againstapprovedrisk tolerance limits, reporting results of risk monitoring to Senior Management and the Board.

Terms of Reference of the Risk Management Committee inter aliainclude the following:

. Oversight of risk management performed by the executive management;
. Reviewing the BRM policy and framework in line with local legal requirements and SEBI guidelines;
. Reviewingrisks and evaluate treatmentincludinginitiating mitigation actions and ownership as per a pre-defined cycle;
. Defining framework foridentification, assessment, monitoring, mitigation, and reporting of risks;
. Reviewingandidentifyingriskin the area of cyber security and Management;

. Reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness and application of credit risk management policies, related standards and

procedures and to control the environment with respect to credit decisions;

Within its overall scope as aforesaid, the Committee shall review risks trends, exposure, and potential impact analysis and

mitigation plan.

The composition of the Risk Management Committee as at March 31, 2024 and the details of Members' participation at the

Meetings of the Committee are asunder:

Name of Members

Category

Attendance at the Risk Management

Committee Meetings

Mr. Suresh Chandra Gupta
Mr. Nishant Sharma

Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain
Mr. Bobby Singh Chandel*
Ms. Rajni Gehlot

Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain

Mr. Suresh Chandra Gupta

NA

Non -Executive
Independent Director

Executive Director
CEO
CFO

Executive Director

NA

03.11.2023

26.02.2024

Status
Chairperson [ YES
Member NO
Member YES
Member NO
Member YES
Chairperson |NA
Member NA

NA
YES

NA
NO
YES
YES
YES
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* Mr. Bobby Singh Chandel Ceased to be member of committee w.ef July 06, 2024 due to his resignation from the post of Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

. The Committee has been re-constituted on 01.01.2024 due to the change of Chairperson of the committee. Mr. Nirmal
Kumar Jain Executive Director of the Company and member of the committee was appointed as Chairperson of the
committee and Mr. Suresh Chandra Gupta, was ceased to be chairperson of the committee w.ef, 01.01.2024 and currently, he
ismember of the committee.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

A. AnnualGeneralMeeting

Details of Past Three Annual General Meetings held by the Company are given below:

FINANCIAL [LOCATION MEETING SPECIAL RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE AGM
YEAR DATE & TIME

2022-23 Akme Business Centre (ABC), 4- [30.09.2023
4-5,SubcitySavina Circle, Opp. AT 11:00 A.M.
Krishi Upaz Mandi Udaipur -
313002, - (RAJ) AT 11:00 AM.

Alterationin Articles of Association.

2021-22 Akme Business Centre (ABC), 4- |30.09.2022
4-5,SubcitySavina Circle, Opp. AT 11:00 A.M.
KrishiUpazMandi Udaipur -
313002, - (RAJ) AT 11:00 AM.

No special resolution was passed at the AGM.

2020-21 Akme Business Centre (ABC), 4- |30.09.2021 To fix remuneration of Mr. Rajendra Chittora (DIN:

4-5, Subcity Savina Circle, Opp. | AT 230 PM. 08211508)as executive director of the company.
Krishi Upaz Mandi Udaipur -

313002, - (RAJ) AT 2:30 p.m.

(Indian Standard Time) Through » Revision in remuneration of Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain (DIN:
Video Conferencing ("VC") or 07441707) executive director of the company.
Other Audio Visual Means
("OAVM")
SHAREHOLDERS RELATION:

Majorly, annual report is the main source of information to the shareholders of the Company which inter alia, includes the Directors'
Report, the shareholders' information, Report of Directors on Corporate Governance, Management Discussion and Analysis Report
and the audited financial results. Company emphasizes the importance of regular communication with its shareholders to ensure that
the Company's strategy is clearly understood. Since, shareholders have an opportunity to attend the Annual General Meeting at which
the business outlook is presented and relevant aspects of the Company's operations are discussed.

Along with the financial results, other information as per the listing guidelines such as may be required, are being uploaded on BSE portal
under “BSE Listing Centre” Onregular basis, quarterly results & performance of the Company is placed on the website of the Company
and furnished to stock exchanges for the benefit of the investors. The quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results of the Company
are communicated to the stock exchanges as per the provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and uploaded on Company's website
i.e, www.aasaanloans.com.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and the Companies Act, 2013, has taken a “Green Initiative” in corporate governance by
allowing paperless compliances by the Companies through electronic mode. The listing agreement with the stock exchanges and the
Companies Act, 2013 permits companies to send soft copies of the annual report to all those shareholders who have registered their e-
mail addresses with the Company/Depository participant. In every Annual Report, the Company has been requesting the shareholders
holding shares both in physical/demat form to register/update their e-mail addresses to the Company/depository participants.
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their e-mailaddresses with the Company/depository participants.

DISCLOSURES

A. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of the

Company atlarge.

The Company has not entered into any material transactions with Related Partiesin terms of the provisions of Section 188(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 Hence, no particulars are being provided in Form AOC-2. Transactions with related parties as per the

requirements of IND-AS are disclosed in the Notes forming part of the Accountsin the Annual Report annexed herewith.

B. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or

SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during thelast three years.

The details of non-compliance and penalties paid are asunder:

Regulation

Non Compliance

Period/
Quarter

Fines
levied

Corrective Action
taken by Company

Observations/Remarks of the
Practicing Company
Secretary)

Regulation 52(4)

Non-disclosure of line
items prescribed under
Regulation 52(4) along
with the half yearly
/annual financial results

Mar-22

Rs. 42,480

The Company has done
disclosure as required
under mentioned
regulation and paid the
fineslevied.

The Company has done
delayed filing under the
mentioned regulation.

The Company has duly paid
the fines levied by the stock
exchange.

Regulation 57(4)

Non-submission of
details of payable Interest
/dividend /principal
obligations during the
quarter.

Jun-22

Rs.1180

The Company has done
disclosure as required
under mentioned
regulation and requested
to stock exchange for
waiver of fineslevied.

The Company has done
disclosure as required under
mentioned regulation.

The stock exchange has
waived the fines levied on
the request of the company.

Regulation 52(1)

Non-submission of the
financial results within the
period prescribed under
thisregulation.

Dec-22

Rs. 1,800

The Company has filed
financial results and paid
the fineslevied.

The Company has done
disclosure as required under
mentionedregulation.

The Company has duly paid
the fines levied by the stock
exchange.

Regulation 52(7)
/(7A)

Non-submission of
statement indicating the
utilization of issue
proceeds/Material
deviation

Dec-22

Rs. 3,540

The Company has filed
statement as required
under mentioned
regulation and paid the
fineslevied.

The Company has filed
statement as required under
mentioned regulation.

The Company has duly paid
the fines levied by the stock
exchange.
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Regulation Non Compliance Period/ |Fines Corrective Action Observations/Remarks of the
Quarter |levied taken by Company Practicing Company
Secretary)

Regulation 52(4) [Non-disclosure of line|Dec-22 |[Rs.2,360 The Company has filed|e The Company has done

items prescribed under disclosure as required disclosure as required under

Regulation 52(4) along under mentioned mentionedregulation.

with the half yearly regulation and paid the

/annual financial results fineslevied. e The Company has duly paid
the fines levied by the stock
exchange.

Regulation 54(2) | Non-disclosure of extent | Dec-22 Rs. 2,360 The Company has filed|e The Company has done

and nature of security disclosure as required disclosure as required under

created and maintained under mentioned mentionedregulation.

with respect to secured regulation and paid the

listed NCDs in the fineslevied. ¢ The Company has duly paid

financial statements the fines levied by the stock

exchange.
Regulation 60(2) | Delay in submission of the | June Rs. 11,800 The Company has|e The stock exchange has

notice of Record Date 2022 requested to stock waived the fines levied on
exchange for waiver of the request of the company.
fineslevied.

Details of compliance with mandatory requirements

During the year 2023-24, the Company has complied with all mandatory requirementsin conformity with SEBI (LODR) guidelines,
2015 (to the extent applicable) has been detailed hereunder:

Chairman of the Board

The Chairman of the Board is the Managing Director of the Company. The Board of the Company is an appropriate mix of
Executive/Non-Executive and Independent Directors that have collective experience in diverse fields like finance, banking,
insurance, economics, corporate laws and administration.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the details of which are provided in this Report under the
section "Nomination and Remuneration Committee." The Committee recommends to the Board the remuneration payable
to Executive Director and also recommends the appointment/reappointment of Executive/Non-Executive Directors and
theirinduction onvarious committees of the Board.

Shareholder'sRights

The annual results are displayed on the website of the Company. The Company also communicates the annual financial
results by e-mail to shareholders who have registered their e-mail address with the Depository Participants/Registrar and
Transfer Agent.

Audit Qualification
Audit qualifications, if any explainedin the financial statements of the company.
Training of Board Members

During the year under review, the Company has provided with the necessary updation, documents, information, reports and
policies, as applicable to the Company, to the existing Directors of the Company. The Company regularly provides updates
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toits Board members onrelevantamendmentsin the statutory Acts/legislation, as applicable on the Company.
Mechanism of evaluation of non-executive Board Members

At present there is no formal mechanism for performance evaluation of Non-Executive Directors of the Company.

OtherDisclosure

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit of Companies

As stipulated by SEBI, a qualified Company Secretary in Practice has carried out a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to
reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services
(India)Limited ("Depositories") and the total issued and listed capital with the stock exchanges. The audit confirms that the
total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in physical form and the total
number of sharesin dematerialized form (held with Depositories).

RiskManagement

The Company has formulated a Risk Management framework, which lays down the procedures for risk assessment and
mitigation. The procedures and policies for risk assessment and minimization are regularly reviewed by the Board. A detailed
note on the risk identification and mitigation is included in the Management Discussion & Analysis, annexed to the Director's
Report.

Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices

In compliance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct
for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices for its Directors and designated employees. The code lays down guidelines, which
include procedures to be followed, and disclosures to be made while dealingin the shares of the Company.

The said code of conduct has been posted on the website of the Company i.e. www.aasaanloans.com the said codeisinline
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. In accordance with the said Code, the Company closesiits trading window for
designated employees and directors from time to time. As per policy, trading window closes at the beginning of the quarter
and reopens after 48 hours from the conclusion of Board Meeting, in which the respective quarterly/half yearly/yearly
financial results are approved.

Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors & Senior Management Personnel

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for its Board of Directors & Senior Management personnel, whichis applicable
to the Board of Directors & Senior Management Team (one level below the Board of Directors) of the Company. The Board
of Directors and members of the senior management personnel have provided their affirmation to the compliance with this
code. The code requires the Directors and employees to act honestly, ethically and with integrity and in a professional and
respectfulmanner. The said code hasbeen posted on the website of the Company i.e. www.aasaanloans.com.

Secretarial Audit

M/s. Ronak Jhuthawat & Co., a Practicing Company Secretaries, Udaipur, were appointed, to conduct Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. The Secretarial Audit Report addressed to the Members of the
Company is attached to this Annual Report. The Secretarial Audit Report confirms that the Company has complied with all
the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made under that Act to the extent applicable,
Depositories Act, 1996, and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed under that Act, Equity Listing Agreement with Stock
Exchanges, Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and all the Regulations of SEBI, as applicable to the Company
including The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2018, The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)Regulations, 2011 and The
Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and Guidelinesissued by RBI.

Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary (PCS)

A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice has been received stating that none of the Directors on the Board of the
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Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by

SEBI/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The same forms part of this Annual Report as an annexure
to the Directors Report.

. Accounting Standards

The Company has followed Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in the
preparation of its financial statements.

. Prevention of SexualHarassment of Women at Workplace:
Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace:

Your Company is sensitive to women employees at workplace. As required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has a formal policy to ensure safety of women
and prevention of sexual harassment and has set up Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) atits work place(s) to redress the
complaints of women employees. During the year, no complaint was filed with ICC and no complaint pending as on the end of
the Financial Year 31" March 2024.

. VigilMechanism/Whistle Blower Policy:

The Company has Policy on Vigil Mechanism for the Directors and Employees of the Company to report their genuine
concerns or grievances relating to actual or suspected fraud, unethical behavior, violation of the Company's Code of
Conduct or Ethics Policy, and any other event which would adversely affect the interests of the business of the Company.
Whistle Blowers may send their concerns/complaints to the Chairman of Audit Committee in a sealed envelope marked
confidential, for appropriate action. The details of establishment of such mechanism have been also disclosed on the
website of the Company. Itis affirmed that no personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

. Certificate on Corporate Governance

As required under the SEBI LODR Regulations, the Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of corporate
governance norms as enumerated in Chapter IV of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. M/s. Ronak Jhuthawat & Co., Company
Secretaries, Udaipur, Secretarial Auditors of the Company have certified that the Company has complied with the conditions
of corporate governance whichis part of this Annual Report.

. Compliance with Mandatory Requirements and adoption of the Non-Mandatory Requirements of Corporate
Governance:

During the period under review, Company has complied with all the Mandatory requirements of SEBI LODR Regulations to
the extent applicable. The Company has also adopted certain voluntary compliance requirements as stipulated in the Act,
SEBILODRRegulations, 2015 and other acts, rules, regulations & guidelines applicable to the Company.

. Means of Communication

Pursuant to the applicable regulations of SEBI LODR Regulations, your Company publishes financial results on annually,
quarterly and half yearly results basis which are duly reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the Board. The
Annual Report, Financial Results, and material events, are regularly submitted to stock exchanges in accordance with the
Listing Agreement and uploaded on the Company's website www.aasaanloans.com. The financial results of the Company
are generally publishedin the English and Hindi newspapers such as Financial Express and Jai Rajasthan.

. Shareholding Pattern of the Company as at March 31,2024:-
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Equity Shares:

CATEGORY NO OF SHARES

% OF SHAREHOLDING

1. Promoters’Holding
A. Promoters
a) Individuals 13269450
b) others 1277470

B. Promoter Group

a) Individuals 1398101
b) Body Corporates 1795805
Total (1) 17740826

2. Public Shareholding

a) Body Corporates moe49

b) Individuals 1219971

c) Others 614810
Total (2) 13934170
TOTAL (1+2) 31674996

4189
403

4.4
567
56.01

353
38.52
194
43.99
100.00

Address for Correspondence: -

AFIL Secretarial Department
ManojKumar Choubisa

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Akme Business Centre, 4-5Subcity Centre
Savina Circle, Udaipur 313002

Email: cs@aasaanloans.com

Registrar and Transfer Agents

Bigshare Services Private Limited

302, Kushal Bazar, 32-33, Nehru Place,

New Delhi-110019

Tele-011-42425004 , O11-47565852Tel: 0294-2489501
Email:investor@bigshareonline.com

Separate Section for Investor Information on Company's website

Shareholders are requested to visit www.aasaanloans.com for online information about the Company. The financial results and other
relevantinformation of the Company are posted on the website of the Company. Besides, the shareholders have the facility to post any

query to the Company directly from the website which are acted upon within 24 hours of receipt of query.

. Designated Exclusive Email-Id

The Company has designated an exclusive email id cs@aasaanloans.com which would enable the shareholders to post their
grievances and monitor its redressal. Any shareholder having any grievance or query may send the same to the said email

address forits quick redressal.
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. Share Transfer system

All the applications regarding physical transfer, transmission, splitting of share certificates, dematerialization and
rematerialisation are processed periodically by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, and the same are approved by
Stakeholder Relationship Committee periodically depending on the volume of transfers. In case of shares held in electronic
form, the transfers are processed by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (CDSL) through their respective Depository Participants. Share Certificates are dispatched back /credited
to the respective Depository Accounts of the allottees within the time prescribed under the Listing Agreement/SEBI
Guidelines. The Committee meets as and when required to approve share transfer received in physical form. The Company
obtains froma Company Secretary in practice, certificate of compliance with the share transfer formalities as required under
SEBI(LODR) Guidelines, 2015.

. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The Company's equity shares are in the list of compulsory dematerialization settlement by all investors. As at March 31,2024,
99.96% of the share capital of the Company representing 3,16,64,711 equity shares were held in dematerialized form.

. Accounting Standards
The Company has complied with the applicable Accounting Standards specified u/s 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
financial statements for the year have been prepared in accordance with and in compliance of Schedule Il notified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA).

. Repaymentand De-listing from Stock Exchange of Debt Securities:

Akme Fintrade (India) Limited debentures were listed on the BSE Limited.
The Stock Code: 959715

The Company has allotted the Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures on 30" June 2020 with the maturity period of 3
years.

The Company has made full repayment of principal and interest amount of the said allotted debentures on 30" June 2023.
As the debentures are redeemed, Company had filed application with the stock exchange for the delisting of such
debentures and the sameis approved by the stock exchange.

. Listing on Stock Exchange:

Your Company is a newly listed entity. The shares of the company got listed on 26" June, 2024 on both the stock exchanges
i.e BSE limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The details are as follows:

Sr. No. Name of Stock Exchange [Address of Stock Exchange |Scrip Code/ Type of Shares |No. of Shares
Symbol Listed Listed

1. BSE Limited Phiroze Jeejeebhoy 544200 Equity Shares 4,26,74,996
Towers, Dalal Street,
Fort, Mumbai - 400001

2. National Stock Exchange of [ Exchange Plaza, C-1,Block G, |AFIL Equity Shares 4,26,74,996

India Limited Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra

(E) Mumbai - 400051
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Note:

. Annuallisting fees for the Financial Year 2024-25 have been duly paid to the Stock Exchanges.
. ISINwithNSDL & CDSL: INE916YO1019

. Going Concern:

The directors are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue its business for the foreseeable future and
consequently consider itappropriate to adopt the going concern basisin preparing the financial statements.

. Other usefulinformation for Shareholders

The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Jaipur, Rajasthan. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN)
allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA") is U67120RJ1996PLCO11509.

> Electronic filing of compliances on Stock Exchange

In terms of SEBI(LODR), Guidelines 2015, all periodical compliance filings such as Company's financial results, corporate
announcement are electronically filed with the respective stock exchanges through BSE Listing Centre developed by BSE
Limited and NEAPS developed by National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

> SEBIComplaints Redress System (SCORES)

The Company is registered with SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES). Under SCORES the investor complaints are
processedinacentralized web-based complaints redressal system. The salient features of this systemare:

Centralized database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATR) by the concerned companies and online
viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaintandits current status.

> SharesheldinElectronicForm

Members holding shares in electronic form may please note that instructions regarding change of address, bank details,
nomination, emailaddress and power of attorney should be given directly to the Depository Participant.

> Sharesheldin Physical Form

Shareholders holding shares in physical form may please note that instructions regarding change of address, bank details,
nomination, email address and power of attorney should be given to the Company's RTA viz. Bighshare Services Private
Limited.

> Service of documents through electronicmode

Members, who are desirous of receiving the notice and other documents through email, may kindly intimate their respective
email address to the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Bighshare Services Private Limited or may send an
email from their respective emailid to cs@aasaanloans.com, with a subject "Registration of emailid".

> Financialyear:

The Company follows financial year starting from April " to March 31" each year.
> Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs / warrants:

No warrantis pending for allotment or conversion onas ondate.

> SEBI toll-free helpline service for investors: 1800227575 or 18002667575 (available on all days from 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
excluding declared holidays).

> SEBlinvestors' contact for feedback and assistance: tel. 022-26449188, e-mail: sebi@sebi.gov.in
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Akme Fintrade (India) Limited
Akme Business Centre (ABC),
4-5 Subcity Centre Savina Circle,
Opp. Krishi Upaz Mandi,

Udaipur, Rajasthan, India 313002

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of M/s Akme Fintrade
(India) Limited having CIN U67120RJ1996PLCO11509 and having registered office at Akme Business Centre (ABC), 4-5 Subcity
Centre Savina Circle, Opp. Krishi Upaz Mandi, Udaipur, Rajasthan, India 313002 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company"), produced
before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C
Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN)
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company &its officers, We hereby
certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2024 have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Jaipur
orany such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date ofcip::‘):::‘;ment in
1. Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain 00240441 25.081996
2. Mr. Ramesh Kumar Jain 07441707 18.02.2016
3. | Mr Rajendra Chittora 08211508 29122020
4. | Mr. Shiv Prakash Shrimali 09188385 0110.2022
5. Mr. Vimal Sardarsinghji Bolia 03056586 07122022
6. Ms. Antima Kataria 09788502 0712.2022
7. Mr. Sanjay Dattatray Tatke 09848265 05.01.2023
8. [ Mr. Nishant Sharma 08951697 05.01.2023
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Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For Ronak Jhuthawat & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Dr.RonakJhuthawat
Membership No.:F9738
CPNo.:12094
UDIN:FO09738F000792597
PeerReview:1270/2021

Place: Udaipur
Date: 22 July, 2024
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members of

AkmeFintrade (India) Limited
Akme Business Centre (ABC),
4-5Subcity Centre SavinCircle,
Opp. KrishiUpaz Mandi,
Udaipur, Rajasthan, India313002

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Akme Fintrade (India) Limited (“the Company”) for the
year ended on 371" March, 2024, as stipulated in Chapter IV of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance. Itis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance asspecifiedin chapter IV of the Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Ronak Jhuthawat & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Dr.Ronak Jhuthawat
Membership No.:F9738
CPNo.:12094

UDIN: FO09738F000792608
Peer Review:1270/2021

Place: Udaipur
Date:22 July, 2024
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VALAWAT & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

432-433, 2nd Floor, S. M. Lodha Complex, Shastri Circle, Udaipur-313001 (Raj.)
Ph.: 0294-2413482, 2414213, Fax: 0294-2414213, M.: 9414161934/9829044214
E.: jj24163@gmail.com/valawat@yahoo.co.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To,
The Members of
Akme Fintrade (India) Limited

Reportonthe Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Akme Fintrade India Limited (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31" March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statementsincluding a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements, give
the information required by the Actin the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally acceptedinindia,

a) Inthecase of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31" March, 2024
b) Inthe case of the Statement of Profitand Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
c) Inthecase of the Cash Flow Statement, cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013 ("Act™). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial
Results section of our report. We are independent of the Company, in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us in is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements for the financial year ended 31March 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our auditaddressed the matteris providedin that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the
responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Ind AS financial statements.
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Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment of financial assets (expected credit losses) (as described in note 6 of the Ind AS financial statements)

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to recognize impairment loss |« We read and assessed the Company's accounting policies for
allowance towards its financial assets (designated at amortized impairment of financial assets and their compliance with Ind
cost and fair value through other comprehensive income) using AS109.

the expected credit loss (ECL) approach. Such ECL allowanceis|e We tested the criteria for staging of loans based on their past-
required to be measured considering the guiding principles of Ind due status to check compliance with requirement of Ind AS

AS109including: 109. Tested a sample of performing (stage 1) loans to assess
« unbiased, probability weighted outcome under various whether any loss indicators were present requiring them to be
scenarios; classified under stage 2 or 3and vice versa.
« timevalue of money; «  We evaluated the reasonableness of the Management
e impact arising from forward looking macro-economic factors estimates by understanding the process of ECL estimation
and; andtested the controls around data extraction and validation..
« Availability of reasonable and supportable information without
undue costs.

Applying these principlesinvolves significant estimationinvarious |« Tested the ECL model, including assumptions and underlying

aspects,suchas: computation.

« grouping of borrowers based on homogeneity by using|s Assessed the floor/minimum rates of provisioning applied by
appropriate statistical techniques; the Company for loan products with inadequate historical

e Stagingofloansand estimation of behaviorallife; defaults.

« determining macro-economic factors impacting credit|s Audited disclosures included in the Ind AS financial
quality of receivables; statementsinrespect of expected creditlosses.

« Estimation of losses for loan products with no/minimal|s Ensured compliance with RBI Master Circular on 'Prudential
historical defaults. Norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and

« Considering the significance of such allowance to the overall Provisioning pertaining to advances' ('IRACP") read with RBI
financial statements and the degree of estimation involved in circular on 'Prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset
computation of expected credit losses, this area is considered Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances -
asakey audit matter. Clarifications' dated 12 November 2021, in relation to

identification, upgradation and provisioning of nonperforming
assets (NPAs); and

« Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of the related
presentation and disclosures in the accompanying financial
statements in accordance with the applicable accounting
standardsandrelated RBI circulars / guidelines.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the
informationincluded in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's reportincluding the Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does notinclude the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
ouraudit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other  information, we are required
toreport that fact. We have nothing toreportin thisregard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
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The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with
respect to the preparation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records  in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has norealistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor'sResponsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected toinfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence thatis sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the auditin order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls systemin place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue asa going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statementsrepresent the underlying transactions and eventsin amanner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factorsin (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatementsin the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesininternal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the publicinterest benefits of such communication.

Reporton Other Legaland Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), asissued by Central Government of India in terms of
Sub Section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we hereby give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3and4 of the Order to the extentapplicable..

2. AsrequiredbySection143(3) of the Act,based on our audit we report that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
forthe purposes of our audit;

b.  In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

c.  TheBalance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of accounts;

d.  Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of the Act read
with Rule 7 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e.  Onthe basis of written representations received from the Directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
Directorsis disqualified as on 31 March 2024, from being appointed as a Director interms of Section164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company'sinternal financial controls over financial reporting.

g.  Withrespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of The Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which wouldimpactits financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were any material
foreseable losses;

ii.  Therewerenoamountsrequiredtobe transferredto the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. Based onour examination, whichincluded test checks, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books
of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our auditwe did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

\% The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
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entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise
that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Y The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vii.  Based on the audit procedures that has been consider reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come
to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

vii.  The company hasnotdeclared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed final dividend for the year.

For: Valawat & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
FRN:003623C

Sd/-
CAJINENDRA JAIN
Partner

Membership No. 072995

Place: Udaipur
Date: 11.07.2024

UDIN:24072995BKAMSI3420
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“ANNEXURE-A"
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referredtoin paralunder “ReportonotherLegal and Regulatory Requirement” of our report of evendate)

1. According to theinformation and explanations given to us, in respect of the property, plantand equipment:
(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property,
plantand equipment. The Company does not have intangible assets and right of use assets.

(b) Asexplained to us, Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
discrepancies between the book records and the physical inventory have been noticed. In our opinion, the frequency of
verificationisreasonable inregards to size of the Company.

(c) Wereportthatthe Company doesnothave anyimmovable property as at the balance sheetdate.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right to Use assets) and intangible assets
duringthe yearand hence clause 3(i)(d) of the Orderis not applicable.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder, and hence clause 3(i) (e) of the Order is not
applicable.

2. (@) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the explanations and information given to us, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of Rs. 5 crores, However existing Cash Credit limit of Rs. 35.90 Crores with Bank of Baroda, cash credit limit of Rs. 3.20
Crores with State Bank of India and Cash Credit (DLOD) limit of Rs. 1.34 Crores with AU Small Finance Bank have been
renewed during the year.

3 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made investments in, and granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties. The Company has
not provided any guarantee or security to any other entity during the year. With respect to such investments and loans and
advances:

(@) TheCompany's principal businessis to give loans, and hence reporting under clause 3(jii)(a) of the Orderis not applicable.

(b) Theinvestments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the loans and advances in the nature of loans, during
the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company'sinterest.

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the repayments of principal amounts and interest are generally regular
considering the stipulation to repayment.

(d) The total amount overdue for more than 90 Days: Rs. 2.08 Crores. Reasonable steps are been taken by the Company for
recovery of the principal andinterest as stated in the applicable Regulations and Loan Agreement.

(e) TheCompany'sprincipal businessis to give loans and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the Orderis not applicable.

M o M
2 11| TS 111l &I D



(' COMPANY OVERVIEW ) (_ STATUTORY REPORT ) (FINANCIAL STATEMENT )

(f)  According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed, the Company has not
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period
of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable

4.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or
provided or securities to the parties covered under section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of
section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made or loans or guarantee or security provided to the parties covered under
section186.

5. Asperthe Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated March 31,2014 the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended, with regard to the
deposits accepted are not applicable to the Company. According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has
notaccepted any depositsduring the year.

6.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost
records under Sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the Company.

7. Accordingtotheinformation and explanations given to us:

a) The Company is generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, cess and any other statutory dues applicable to the Company to
the appropriate authorities.

b)  There are no undisputed statutory dues payable in respect of GST, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-
tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,2024 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

c) There were no dues referred in sub clause (a) above which have not been deposited on account of disputes as at March 31,
2024..

8.  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income were
surrendered or disclosed asincome in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961during the year.

9.  Accordingto theinformationand explanations given to us, inrespect of borrowings:

a) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender duringtheyear.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

(c) Duringtheyear, termloanavailed by the Company were applied for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

(d) Onanoverallexamination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not
been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and hence, reporting under clause
3(ix)(e) of the Orderisnotapplicable.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order
isnotapplicable
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10. (@) According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not raised moneys by way of Public Offer or
further public offer during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) during the year and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Orderisnot applicable.

1. (@) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company
hasbeen noticed orreported during the year.

(b) Noreportunder section143(12) of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the year and upto the date of thisreport..

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the
year.

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company; hence reporting under clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of The
Companies Act, 2013, wherever applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the notes on Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards

14.  (a) During the year, Internal audit has been carried out by the Independent firm of Chartered accountants. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the scope and coverage is commensurate with the size of the
Company and the nature of itsbusiness.

(b) Wehave considered theinternal auditreportsissued to the Company during the year and covering the period up to March 3],
2024.

15.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non- cash transactions with
Directors or persons connected with him under provisions of Section 192 of The Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, provision of
clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

16. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has registered as required under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934..

(b) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi) of the Order is not
applicable.

17. The Company has notincurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial
year.

18.  There hasbeen no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not
applicable.

19.  Onthe basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
Asset Liability Maturity (ALM) pattern, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans and based our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
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one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that thisis not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
asandwhenthey falldue.

20. The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and there is no unspent CSR
amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Act or special account in compliance with the
provision of section 135(6) of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Orderis not applicable.

21, According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have subsidiary, associate and joint venture.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Orderisnotapplicable.

For Valawat & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
FRN:003623C

Sd/-
CAJINENDRA JAIN
Partner

Membership No. 072995
Place: Udaipur
Date:11.07.2024

UDIN:24072995BKAMSI3420
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“ANNEXURE-B"
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred toin para2(f) under “Reportonother Legal and Regulatory Requirement” of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Akme Fintrade India Limited (“the Company”) as of March 3],
2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAl and prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act, 2013 to the extent applicable, to an audit of internal financial controls both issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained andif such controls operated effectively in allmaterial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
anunderstanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testingand
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor'sjudgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company'sinternal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. ACompany'sinternal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1)  pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
only inaccordance with authorizations of management and Directors of the Company; and
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(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

InherentLimitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion orimproper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on “the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reportingissued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

ForValawat & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN:003623C

Sd/-

CA JINENDRA JAIN
Partner

Membership No.072995

Place: Udaipur
Date: 11.07.2024

UDIN:24072995BKAMSI3420
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,
The Board of Directors
Akme Fintrade India Limited

Asper the “Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016", we hereby state that:
1. The Company hasbeenallotted registration from RBI, Jaipur as per section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;
2. TheCompanyisentitled to hold CORinterms of its Financial Asset/Income pattern as on March 31,2024;

3. The Company meets the required NOF requirement pursuant to provisions of Non-Banking Financial Company Non-
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016;

4.  Inthe case of aNon-Banking Financial Company not accepting public deposits:
a.  TheBoard of Directors has passed resolution for not accepting public deposits;
b.  The Companyhasnotaccepted public deposits during the year 2023-24

c.  The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, accounting standards, asset classification
and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts, as applicable, in terms of Non-Banking Financial Company Non-Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

For M/S Valawat & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN:003623C

Sd/-

CA JINENDRA JAIN
Partner

Membership No. 072995

Place: Udaipur
Date: 11.07.2024

UDIN:24072995BKAMSI3420
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Particulars

ASSETS

Financial Assets

- Cash and cash equivalents

- Bank Balance other than (a) above
- Loans

- Investments

- Other Financial assets

Total Financial Assets

Non- financial Assets

- Deferred tax assets (net)

- Property, plant and Equipment
- Other Intangible Assets

- Other non-financial assets
Total Non-Financial Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities

- Trade payables

- Debt Securities

- Borrowings (other than Debt securities)
- Subordinated Liabilities

- Other Financial liabilities

Total Financial Liability
Non-Financial Liabilities

- Current tax liabilities (net)

- Provisions

- other non-financial liabilities

il e S i

(INRin Lakhs)
NoteNo.  Asat31-03-2024 Asat31-03-2023

4 870.65 73739

5 17812 29477

6 39,0800 34,556.66

7 2044 2040

8 138740 136570

41,536.71 36,974.92

35 256.85 142.33
9 166116 178276

10 98091 m24
1 5135 3169

2,068.27 2,068.02

43,604.98 39,042.94

12 2507 2667
13 = 1,000.00
14 19,478.25 14,778.00
15 1,000.00 1,998.30
16 168.36 182.07
20,671.67 17,985.05

7 431.36 44041
18 13110 106.90
19 46.97 3955
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(INRin Lakhs)

Particulars Note No.  Asat31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
Total Non-Financial Liability 609.43 586.86
Total Liabilities 21,2811 18,571.91
Equity

- Equity Share capital 20 316750 316750
- Other Equity 21 19,156.37 1730353
Total Equity 22,323.87 20,471.03
Total Liabilities and Equity 43,604.98 39,042.94

Overview and significant accounting policies 1,2 & 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

In terms of our report of even date attached
For Valawat & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants AKME Fintrade (India) Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 003623C CIN : U67120RJ1996PLCO11509

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA. Jinendra Jain Nirmal Kumar Jain Rajendra Chittora
Partner Managing Director & Chairman Director
Membership No: 072995 DIN: 00240441 DIN: 08211508

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : Udaipur Rajni Gehlot Manoj Kumar Choubisa
Date: 11-07-2024 (CFO) (Company Secretary)
UDIN: 24072995BKAMSI3420 PAN: BGEPG8519D ACS: A66176
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PART-1I
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(INRin Lakhs)

For the year ended
Particulars Note No.
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Revenue From Operations

Interest Income 22 6,965.56 6,310.99
Fees and commission income 23 186.64 209.78
Gain / Loss on Derecognised financial assets 24 341 (6.52)
Other operating Income 25 13274 43712
Total revenue from operations (l) 7.281.53 6,951.37
Other income (Il) 26 68.59 545
Total Income (liI) = (1) + (II) 7,350.12 6,956.82
Expenses

Finance Cost 27 2,82810 2,800.79
Impairment of Financial Instruments (expected credit loss) 28 570.03 35912
Employee Benefits expenses 29 739.69 768.92
Depreciation and Amortisation expenses 30 50.79 5819
Other Expenses 31 785.88 1,092.89
Total Expenses (IV) 4,974.49 5,079.91
Profit before tax (V) = (lll) - (IV) 2,375.63 1,876.92
Tax expense (VI) 32

- Current Tax 648.00 478.82
- Deferred Tax (Net) (125.28) (5376)
Tax Expense 52271 425.06
Profit for the period / year (A) = (V) - (VI) 1,852.92 1,451.86
- Other comprehensive Income 36

(i) Item that will not be reclassified to profit & loss

Re-measurements of the defined benefit plan (Net of Tax) (0.08) 3206
(i) Item that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Fair value gain/(loss) on equity instruments (Net of Tax) - -

Other comprehensive income / (deficit) for the period / year, net of Income tax (0.08) 32.06
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(INRin Lakhs)

For the year ended
Particulars Note No.
31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Total Comprehensive Income 1,852.84 1,483.91
Earnings Per Equity Share (FV. of Rs. 10/- each) 37
Basic EPS (in rupees)* 5.85 538
Diluted EPS (in rupees)* 5.85 538

Significant accounting policies 1, 2 & 3
In terms of our report of even date attached
For Valawat & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants AKME Fintrade (India) Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 003623C CIN : U67120RJ1996PLCO1509

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA. Jinendra Jain Nirmal Kumar Jain Rajendra Chittora
Partner Managing Director & Chairman Director
Membership No: 072995 DIN: 00240441 DIN: 08211508

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : Udaipur Rajni Gehlot Manoj Kumar Choubisa
Date: 11-07-2024 (CFO) (Company Secretary)
UDIN: 24072995BKAMSI3420 PAN: BGEPG8519D ACS: A66176
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PART-III

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY

A) Equity Share capital

Particulars

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each at April 1, 2022
Change in equity share capital during the period
Add: Issued during the year

Add: Bonus shares allotted during the year
Balance as at March 31,2023

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each as at April 1, 2023
Change in equity share capital during the period
Add: Issued during the year

Add: Bonus shares allotted during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Number of shares

286,506

71,32,068
27,26,422
3,16,74,996

36,74996

3,16,74,996

(INRin Lakhs)
Amount

28165

71321
27264
3167.50

316750

3,167.50

B) Other Equity (INRin Lakhs)
Particular Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Total other
Income equity
attributable
to Equity
Share Special Retained | Impairment Equity Others Holders
Premium Reserve Earnings Reserve | Instruments
Reserve Through
Other
Comprehensi
ve Income
Balances as at April 1, 2022 3,834.39 160314 5,334.75 830.84 - - 1,603.12
Changes in equity for the year - - -
ended March 31,2023
Equity shares issued during the year 448914 - - - - - 448914
Less: Bonus Shares Issued during the (272.64) - - - - - (272.64)
year
Transfer to special reserve# - 29037 (290.37) - - - -
Profit for the year - - 1,451.86 - - - 1,451.86
Reversal of excess provision of income - - - - - - -
tax
Others - - - - - 3206 32.06
Balances as at March 31,2023 8,050.89 1,893.51 6,496.23 830.84 - 32.06 17,303.53
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(INRin Lakhs)

Particular Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Total other
Income equity
attributable
to Equity
Share Special Retained Impairment Equity Others Holders
Premium Reserve Earnings Reserve | Instruments
Reserve Through
Other
Comprehensi
ve Income
Balances as at April 1, 2023 8,050.89 1,893.51 6,496.23 830.84 - 32.06 17,303.53
Changes in equity for the year - - -
ended March 31,2024
Equity shares issued during the year - - - - - - -
Less: Bonus Shares Issued during the - - - - - - -
year
Transfer to special reserve# - 370.58 (370.58) - - - -
Profit for the year - - 185292 - - - 1,852.92
Others - - - - - (0.08) (0.08)
Balances as at March 31,2024 8050.89 2,264.10 7978.57 830.84 - 3198 19,156.37

For Valawat & Associates
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

AKME Fintrade (India) Limited

ICAI Firm registration number: 003623C CIN : U67120RJ1996PLCO11509

Sd/-

CA. Jinendra Jain
Partner

Membership No: 072995

Place : Udaipur
Date: 11-07-2024
UDIN: 24072995BKAMSI3420

Sd/-

Nirmal Kumar Jain

Managing Director & Chairman
DIN: 00240441

Sd/-

Rajni Gehlot

(CFO)

PAN: BGEPG8519D

Sd/-

Rajendra Chittora
Director

DIN: 08211508

Sd/-

Manoj Kumar Choubisa
(Company Secretary)
ACS: A66176
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PART-IV
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For The Year Ended March 31, 2024

Particulars

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

(INRin Lakhs)

For the year ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Profit before tax 2,375.63 1,876.92
Adjustment For:

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 50.79 5819
Provision for ECL 42545 4853
Bad debts Written-off 144.59 310.59
Interest on investment (0.78) (0.98)
Profit on sale of fixed assets - -
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 2,995.68 2,293.25
Changes in Working Capital:

Adjustments for (Increase) / Decrease in operating assets:

Loans (509347) (62867)
Other non- financial assets (19.65) 127m
Other financial assets (2170) 79217
Adjustments for Increase / (Decrease) in operating liabilities:

Trade Payables (.en 448
Decrease/(Increase) in Current Tax Liabilities (9.05) 212.89
Provisions 3497 115.93
Other financial liabilities 371 (74.26)
Other non-financial liabilities 742 (63.81)
Cash Credit (1,780.65) 18530
Net cash (used in) operations (3,901.77) 2,824.56
Direct taxes paid (net) (648.00) (478.82)
Net Cash from/ (used in) Operating Activities (A) (4,549.77) 2,345.74
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Investment in Fixed Deposits ne.65 (177.04)
Purchase of Fixed Assets (2321 (1,441.58)
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March 31,2024

Particulars For the year ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Sale of Fixed Assets 106.34 1590
(Increase)/decrease in investment (0.05) (0.05)
Interest income on Investment 078 0.98
Net Cash from / (used in) Investing Activities (B) 200.51 (1,501.80)

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares - 985.85
Proceeds from securities premium (net off utilisation) - 4,216.50
Other (0.08) 3206
Net Repayment of Borrowings during the period/year 4,482.59 (5415.02)
Net Cash from/(used in) Financing Activities (C) 4,482.51 (180.62)
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A)+(B)+(C) 133.26 663.32
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period/ year 737.39 74.07
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period/ year 870.65 737.39
Cash in hand 56.26 8146

Balances with banks

- Credit Balance in OD Accounts 414.39 45593
- In other deposit accounts (original maturity less than 3 months) 400.00 200.00
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period/ year 870.65 737.39
For Valawat & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants AKME Fintrade (India) Limited

ICAI Firm registration number: 003623C CIN : U67120RJ1996PLCOT11509

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA. Jinendra Jain Nirmal Kumar Jain Rajendra Chittora
Partner Managing Director & Chairman Director
Membership No: 072995 DIN: 00240441 DIN: 08211508

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : Udaipur Rajni Gehlot Manoj Kumar Choubisa
Date: 11-07-2024 (CFO) (Company Secretary)
UDIN: 24072995BKAMSI3420 PAN: BGEPG8519D ACS: A66176
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NOTES TO STANDALONE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For The Year Ended 31" March, 2024

1.  Corporatelnformation

Akme Fintrade (India) Limited (the 'Company") is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated on February 5,1996 under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company hasreceived a Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India (‘'RBI") on
April 7,1999 to commence / carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial Institution (‘'NBFC"). The company has surrendered Deposit
taking license and RBI hasissued new certificate as on 5th Sept, 2019 as Non-Deposit Taking Systemically Important NBFC.

As per RBI, vide the circular - 'Harmonization of different categories of NBFCs' issued on 22 February 2019 the Company has been
reclassified as "NBF C-Investment and Credit Company (NBFC-ICC)”

2. Basisof preparation
21 Statementof Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
along with other relevant provisions of the Act and the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company- Master Directions') issued
by RBI. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Company uses accrual basis of accounting exceptin
case of significantuncertainties.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2024, Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with
accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the NBFC Master Directions
(hereinafter referred as 'Previous GAAP"). These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 are the fourth set of financial
statements that the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The Company has applied Ind AS 101 'First-time Adoption of
Indian Accounting Standards', for transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

2.2 Presentation of financialstatements

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) which is also the functional currency of the Company. The financial
statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value. The
financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Management is satisfied that the Company shall be able to continue
its business for the foreseeable future and no material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the going concern
assumption. In making this assessment, the Management has considered a wide range of information relating to present and future
conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in Equity are presented in the format prescribed under
Division lll of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time, for Non-Banking Financial Companies (‘'NBFC")
that are required to comply with Ind AS. The statement of cash flows has been presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement
of CashFlows.

The Company presentsits Balance Sheetin order of liquidity.

The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the Balance Sheet. They are offset and
reported net only when Ind AS specifically permits the same or it has an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognized

M ® M
AKME FINTRADE (INDIA) LIMITED B 28™ ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 87
| i



(' COMPANY OVERVIEW ) (_ STATUTORY REPORT ) (FINANCIAL STATEMENT )

amounts without being contingent on a future event. Similarly, the Company offsets incomes and expenses and reports the same on a
netbasis when permitted by Ind AS specifically unless they are materialin nature.

2.3 Functionaland presentation currency

These Financial information are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. All amount have
beenrounded off to the nearestlakhs (two decimals), unless otherwise indicated.

2.4 BasisofMeasurement

The financialinformation has been prepared on Historical cost basis except for the followingitems:

Items Measurement basis

Financial Assets and Liabilities Fair Value/Amortised Cost, as applicable

Net defined benefit (Asset)/Liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of
defined benefit obligations

2.5 Criticalaccountingestimatesandjudgements

The preparation of the Company's financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires Management to make use of estimates and
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of Restated Financial
Information and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates.
Changesin estimates are reflected in the Financial Information in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are
disclosed in the notes to the Financial Information. Accounting estimates and judgments are used in various line items in the financial
statementsforeg.

. Business model assessment[Refer note no.3.4(1)]
. Fair value of financialinstruments[Refer note no.3.14 and 34]
. Effective Interest Rate (EIR) [Refer note no.31(1)]

. Impairment on financial assets [Refer note no.3.4(1), 6and 35]
. Provisions and other contingent liabilities [Refer note no.310and 30]
. Provision for tax expenses [Refer note no.3.6]

. Residual value and usefullife of property, plantand equipment [Refer note no.3.7(g)]
3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

31 RevenueRecognition
The Company earns revenue primarily from giving loans. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met
beforerevenueisrecognized:

(i) Interestincome
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The Company recognizes interest income using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) on all financial assets subsequently measured at
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). EIR is calculated by considering all costs and incomes
attributable to acquisition of a financial asset or assumption of a financial liability and it represents a rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments/receipts through the expected life of the financial asset/financial liability to the gross carrying amount
of afinancial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability.

The Company recognizes interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-
impaired assets. In case of credit-impaired financial assets [as set out in note no. 3.4(i)] regarded as 'stage 3', the Company stops
recognizing interest income on these accounts till the account is credit impaired. If the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired [as
outlinedinnote no.3.4(i)], the Company reverts to calculatinginterestincome on a gross basis.

Delayed payment interest (penal interest) levied on customers for delay in repayments/non-payment of contractual cashflows is
recognized onrealization.

Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) is recognized at the contractual rate of
interest.

(ii) DividendIincome

Dividendincome on equity shares is recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment is established and it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably,
whichis generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

(iii) OtherRevenuefrom Operations

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers (other than financial assets to which Ind AS 109 'Financial
Instruments' is applicable) based on a comprehensive assessment model as set out in Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with
customers'. The Company identifies contract(s) with a customer and its performance obligations under the contract, determines the
transaction price and its allocation to the performance obligations in the contract and recognizes revenue only on satisfactory
completion of performance obligations. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

(@) FeesandCommission

The Company recognizes service and administration charges towards rendering of additional services to its loan customers on
satisfactory completion of service delivery.

Feesonvalue added services and products are recognized onrendering of services and products to the customer.

Distributionincome is earned by selling of services and products of other entities under distribution arrangements. The income so
earnedisrecognized onsuccessful sales on behalf of other entities subject to there being no significant uncertainty of itsrecovery.

Foreclosure charges are collected fromloan customers for early payment/closure of loan and are recognized on realization.

(b) NetGainon Fair Value Changes

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVVTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI), as applicable. The Company recognizes gains/losses on fair value change of financial assets measured as
FVTPL andrealized gains/losses on derecognition of financial asset measuredat FVTPL and FVOCI.

(c) SaleofServices

The Company, on de-recognition of financial assets where aright to service the derecognized financial assets for a fee is retained,
recognizes the fair value of future service fee income over service obligations cost on net basis as service fee income in the
statement of profit or loss and, correspondingly creates a service asset in Balance Sheet. Any subsequentincrease in the fair value
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of service assetsisrecognized as service income and any decrease is recognized as an expense in the periodin which it occurs. The
embedded interest componentinthe service assetisrecognized asinterestincomein line with Ind AS109 'Financialinstruments'.

Other revenues on sale of services are recognized as per Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' as articulated above
in'other revenue from operations'.

(d) Recoveries of financial assets written off

The Company recognizes income on recoveries of financial assets written off on realization or when the right to receive the same
withoutany uncertainties of recovery is established.

(iv) Taxes

Incomes are recognized net of the Goods and Services Tax/Service Tax, wherever applicable.

3.2 Expenditures

(i) BorrowingCosts

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowings of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable
to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are

capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowings costs are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
accountonanaccrual basis using the effective interest method. [Refer note no. 31(i)].

(i) Feesand Commission Expenses

Fees and commission expenses which are not directly linked to the sourcing of financial assets, such as commission/incentive incurred
onvalue added services and products distribution, recovery charges and fees payable for management of portfolio etc., are recognized
inthe Statement of Profitand Loss on an accrual basis.

(iii) Taxes

Expenses are recognized net of the Goods and Services Tax/Service Tax, except where credit for the input tax is not statutorily
permitted.

3.3 CashandCashEquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to aninsignificant risk of changesin value.

3.4 Financiallnstruments

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Trade receivables and payables, loan receivables, investments in securities and subsidiaries, debt
securities and other borrowings, preferential and equity capital etc. are some examples of financialinstruments.

Loans are recognized when funds are transferred to the customer account. Debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are
originated. All the other financial instruments are recognized on the date when the Company becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the financialinstruments. For tradable securities, the Company recognizes the financial instruments on settlement date.

The classification of financialinstruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for managing
theinstruments. Financialinstruments are initially measured at their fair value, exceptin the case of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at fair value through profitandloss (FVTPL), transaction costs are added to, or subtracted from thisamount.
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(i) Financial Assets

Financial assets include cash, or an equity instrument of another entity, or a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
from another entity. Few examples of financial assets are loan receivables, investment in equity and debt instruments, trade receivables
and cash and cash equivalents.

Business modelassessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its
business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios
andisbased on observable factorssuchas:

a) How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and
reported to the Company's key management personnel.

b)  Therisksthataffectthe performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in
particular, the way those risks are managed.

c) How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the
assetsmanaged or onthe contractual cash flows collected).

d) Theexpectedfrequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company's assessment.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case' scenarios into
account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company's original expectations, the
Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such
information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

SPPltest

As a second step of its classification process, the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to identify whether they
meet SPPItest.

'Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of
financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/ discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of money and
credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as the period for which
theinterestrateisset.

In contrast, contractual terms thatintroduce a more than the minimum exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are
unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the amount outstanding. Insuch cases, the financial assetis required to be measured at F\VTPL.

Accordingly, financial assets are measured as follows based on the existing business model:

(@) Financial Assets carried atamortized cost

The Company measuresits financial assets at amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

. The assetis held within a business model of collecting contractual cash flows; and

. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sole Payments of Principal and Interest
(SPPI) onthe principalamount outstanding.

Bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables and other financial investments that meet the above conditions are measured at
amortized cost.
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The business model of the Company for assets subsequently measured at amortized cost category is to hold and collect
contractual cash flows. However, considering the economic viability of carrying the delinquent portfolios in the books of the
Company, it may sell these portfolios to banks and/or asset reconstruction companies.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost on effective interest rate (EIR). For
further details, refer note no. 31(i). The expected credit loss (ECL) calculation for debt instruments at amortized cost is explained
insubsequentnotesin thissection.

(b) Financial AssetsatFVOCI

The Company subsequently classifies its financial assets as F VOCI, only if both of the following criteria are met:

. The objective of the business modelis achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest
(SPPI) onthe principalamount outstanding.

Financial Assets included within the FVVOCI category are measured at each reporting date at fair value with such changes being
recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). The interest income on these assets is recognized in profit or loss. The ECL
calculation for debtinstruments at FVOClis explained in subsequent notes in this section.

Debt instruments such as long-term investments in Government securities to meet regulatory liquid asset requirement of the
Company's deposit program and mortgage loans portfolio where the Company periodically resorts to partially selling the loans by

way of assignment to willing buyers are classified as FVOCI.

Onderecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OClis reclassified to profit or loss.

(¢) FinancialAssetsatFVTPL

The Company classifies financial assets which are held for trading under FVTPL category. Held for trading assets are recorded
and measured in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Interest and dividend incomes are recorded in interest income and dividend
income, respectively according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to receive the same has been established. Gainsand
losses on changesin fair value of debtinstruments are recognized on net basis through profit or loss.

The Company's investments into mutual funds, Government securities (trading portfolio) and certificate of deposits for trading
and short term cash flow management have been classified under this category.

(d) Egquityinvestmentdesignated under FVOCI

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments' are measured at fair value. The Company has strategic
investmentsin equity for which it has elected to present subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The
classificationis made oninitial recognition andisirrevocable.

All fair value changes of the equity instruments, excluding dividends, are recognized in OCl and are available for reclassification to
profitor loss on derecognition of investments. Equity instruments at FVOCl are not subject to animpairment assessment.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) when:

. Therighttoreceive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under an assignment arrangement and the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. Once the asset is derecognized, the Company does not have any
continuinginvolvementin the same.

The Company transfers its financial assets through the partial assignment route and accordingly derecognizes the transferred
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portion as it neither has any continuing involvement in the same nor does it retain any control. If the Company retains the right to
service the financial asset for a fee, it recognizes either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. Aservice
liability in respect of a service is recognized at fair value if the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the Company
adequately for performing the service. If the fees to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation for the
servicing, aservice asset is recognized for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of the carrying
amount of the larger financial asset.

Onderecognition of a financial assetinits entirety, the difference between:
. the carryingamount (measured at the date of derecognition) and
. the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ECL model, for evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those
measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). ECL are recognized for financial assets held under amortized cost, debt
instruments measured at FVOCI, and certain loan commitments.

Financial assets where no significant increase in credit risk has been observed are considered to be in 'stage 1" and for which a 12
month ECL is recognized. Financial assets that are considered to have significant increase in credit risk are considered to be in

'stage 2' and those which are in default or for which there is an objective evidence of impairment are considered to be in 'stage 3'.
Lifetime ECL isrecognized for stage 2 and stage 3 financial assets.

Atinitial recognition, allowance (or provision in the case of loan commitments) is required for ECL towards default events that are
possibleinthe next12months, or less, where the remaininglife isless than 12 months.

In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, allowance (or provision) is required for ECL towards all possible default events
over the expected life of the financialinstrument (lifetime ECL").

Financial assets (and the related impairmentloss allowances) are written offin full, when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
Treatment of the different stages of financial assets and the methodology of determination of ECL.

(@) Creditimpaired (Stage 3)

The Company recognizes a financial asset to be credit impaired and in stage 3 by considering relevant objective evidence,
primarily whether:

. Contractual payments of either principal or interest are past due for more than 90 days;

. Theloanis otherwise considered to bein default.

Restructured loans (Except loan restructured under the RBI Covid 2.0 framework), where repayment terms are renegotiated as
compared to the original contracted terms due to significant credit distress of the borrower, are classified as credit impaired. Such
loans continue to be in stage 3 until they exhibit regular payment of renegotiated principal and interest over a minimum
observation period, typically 12 months- post renegotiation, and there are no other indicators of impairment. Having satisfied the
conditions of timely payment over the observation period these loans could be transferred to stage 1or 2 and a fresh assessment
of the risk of default be done for suchloans.

Interestincomeisrecognized by applying the EIR to the netamortized costamounti.e. gross carryingamountless ECL allowance.

(b) SignificantIncreasein Credit Risk (Stage 2)

An assessment of whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition is performed at each reporting period by
considering the change in the risk of default of the loan exposure. Considering the marketin which company is primarily operating
and the class of customers which primarily comes from rural background where financial literacy is very poor and banking and
collection facilities are not present at all places, management considers that unless identified at an earlier stage, 60 days past due
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is considered as an indication of financial assets to have suffered a significant increase in credit risk. Based on other indications
such as borrower's frequently delaying payments beyond due dates though not 60 days past due are included in stage 2 for
mortgageloans.

The measurement of risk of defaults under stage 2 is computed on homogenous portfolios, generally by nature of loans, tenors,
underlying collateral, geographies and borrower profiles. The default risk is assessed using PD (probability of default) derived
from past behavioral trends of default across the identified homogenous portfolios. These past trends factorin the past customer
behavioral trends, credit transition probabilities and macroeconomic conditions. The assessed PDs are then aligned considering
future economic conditions that are determined to have abearingon ECL.

(c) WithoutSignificantIncrease in Credit Risk since Initial Recognition (Stage 1)

ECL resulting from default events that are possible in the next 12 months are recognized for financial instruments in stage 1. The
Company has ascertained default possibilities on past behavioral trends witnessed for each homogenous portfolio using
application/behavioral score cards and other performance indicators, determined statistically.

(d) Measurementof ECL

The assessment of credit risk and estimation of ECL are unbiased and probability weighted. It incorporates all information that is
relevant including information about past events, current conditions and reasonable forecasts of future events and economic
conditions at the reporting date. In addition, the estimation of ECL takes into account the time value of money. Forward looking
economic scenarios determined with reference to external forecasts of economic parameters that have demonstrated a linkage
to the performance of our portfolios over a period of time have been applied to determine impact of macro-economic factors.

The Company has calculated ECL using three main components: a probability of default (PD), a loss given default (LGD) and the
exposure at default (EAD). ECL is calculated by multiplying the PD, LGD and EAD and adjusted for time value of money using a
rate whichis areasonable approximation of EIR.

. Determination of PDis covered above for each stage of ECL.

. EAD represents the expected balance at default, taking into account the repayment of principal and interest from the
Balance Sheet date to the date of default together with any expected drawdowns of committed facilities.

. LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the
mitigating effect of collateral value at the time itis expected to be realized and the time value of money.

Amore detailed description of the methodology used for ECL is coveredin the 'credit risk' section of note no. 35.
(e) Write-offs

Financial assets are written off when there is a significant doubt on recoverability in the medium term. If the amount to be written
offis greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance thatis then applied
against the gross carryingamount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to the statement of profitandloss.

(ii) FinancialLiabilities
Financial liabilities include liabilities that represent a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another
entity, or a contract that may or will be settled in the entities own equity instruments. Few examples of financial liabilities are trade
payables, debtsecurities and other borrowings and subordinated debts.

Initialmeasurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilitiesinclude trade payables, other payables, debt securities and other borrowings.
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Subsequentmeasurement

After initial recognition, all financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR [Refer note no. 31(i)]. Any
gains orlosses arising on derecognition of liabilities are recognizedin the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Embeddedderivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract with the effect
that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a standalone derivative. An embedded derivative
causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified
interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index or prices or rates, credit rating or credit
index, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, itis not specific to a party to the contract. A derivative
that is attached to a financial instrument, but is contractually transferable independently of that instrument, or has a different
counterparty from thatinstrument, is notan embedded derivative, but aseparate financial instrument.

Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognizedin profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedginginstruments.

Derecognition measurement
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

(iii) Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.
The Company did not reclassify any of its significant financial assets or liabilities in the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 3],
2023.

(iv) Offsettingof Financiallnstruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsetand the netamountis reportedin the Balance Sheet only if there isan enforceable
legal right to offset the recognized amounts with an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

3.5 InvestmentinSubsidiaries
The Company does not have any Subsidiary.

3.6 Taxes

(i) CurrentTax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) prescribed therein. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.
Current tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in

OCl or directly in other equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situationsin
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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(ii) DeferredTax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carryingamounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible
temporary differences to the extent thatit is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized

deferredtaxassets, if any, are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent thatit has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or
theliability is settled, based on taxrates (and taxlaws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred taxrelating to items recognized outside profit or lossis recognized eitherin OCl orin other equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxesrelate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3.7 Property, Plantand Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
consistentwith the criteria specifiedinInd AS16 'Property, Plantand Equipment'.

Depreciation on property, plantand equipment
() Depreciationisprovided ona pro-ratabasis for all tangible assets on straight line method over the useful life of assets.

(b) Useful lives of assets are determined by the Management by an internal technical assessment except where such
assessment suggests a life significantly different from those prescribed by Schedule Il - Part C of the Companies Act, 2013
where the usefullife is asassessed and certified by a technical expert.

(c) Depreciationonleaseholdimprovementsis provided onstraightline method over the primary period of lease of premises or
Syearswhicheverisless.

(d) Depreciation on addition to assets and assets sold during the year is being provided for on a pro rata basis with reference to
the monthinwhich such assetis added or sold as the case may be.

(e) Assetshavingunitvalue uptoRs.5000is depreciated fully in the financial year of purchase of asset.

(f) Anitem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included under

otherincomein the Statement of Profitand Loss when the asset is derecognized.

(g) Theresidualvalues, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plantand equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.8 Intangible assetsand amortizationthereof
Intangible assets, representing software's are initially recognized at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
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amortization and accumulated impairment. The intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over a period of
five years, which is the Management's estimate of its useful life. The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Impairment of non-financialassets

An assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date to ascertain whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of asset is determined. If the carrying value of relevant asset is
higher than the recoverable amount, the carrying value is written down accordingly.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of
resources and areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will
not, require an outflow of resources. The Company also discloses present obligations for which a reliable estimate cannot be
made. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is
remote, no provision or disclosure ismade.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company's financial statements are presentedin Indian Rupee, whichis also the Company's functional currency.

Initialrecognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange
rate betweenthereporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are re-translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non- monetary items,
which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction.

Exchange differences

312
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Allexchange differencesare accountedin the Statement of Profitand Loss.
Employmentbenefits

Post-employment benefits

Defined Contribution plan

The Company's contribution to provident fundis considered as defined contribution plan and is charged as an expense as they fall
due based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when the services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity
A defined benefit planis a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company's net obligationin

respect of defined benefit plansis calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earnedinthe currentand prior periods.
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The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
When the calculation resultsin a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset
ceiling"),if any. In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding
requirements.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling
(if any, excludinginterest), are recognised in OCI. The Company determines the netinterest expense (income) on the net defined
benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognisedin profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service
('past service cost' or 'past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss on the earlier
of:

. The date of the planamendment or curtailment, and
. The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.
i.  Short-termemployee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to
be paidif the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay thisamount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimatedreliably.

313 Lease

Company has applied Ind AS 116 “Leases” for all lease contracts covered by the Ind AS. Under Ind AS 116 a contract is, or contains a
lease, if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The
Company undertook an assessment of all applicable contracts to determine if a lease exists as defined in Ind AS 116. This
assessment will also be completed for each new contract or change.

Measurement of Lease Liability

At the time of initial recognition, the Company measures lease liability as present value of all lease payment discounted using the
Company'sincremental cost of borrowing rate. Subsequently, the lease liability is

i) Increase by interest onlease liability

i)  Reducebylease paymentsmade

Measurement of Right-of-Use asset

At the time of initial recognition, the Group measures 'Right-of-Use assets' as present value of all lease payment discounted using
the Group's incremental cost of borrowing rate w.rt said lease contract. Subsequently, 'Right-of-Use assets' is measured using
cost model ie. at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses adjusted for any re-
measurement of the lease liability specifiedin Ind AS 116 'Leases'. Depreciation on 'Right-of-Use assets'is provided on straight line
basis over the lease period.

In contract going forward. The Company has further elected not to recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for leases of low
value assetsand for short-termleases (less than 12 months).

3.14 FairValue Measurement
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The Company measuresits qualifying financialinstruments at fair value on each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received against sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurementis based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place in the accessible principal market or the most advantageous accessible market as
applicable.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchyinto Levell, Levellland Levellllbased on the lowest levelinput thatis significant to the fair value measurement asawhole.
For adetailedinformation onthe fair value hierarchy, refer note no. 34.

For assets and liabilities that are fair valued in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy.

315 Segmentreporting-Identification of sesgments:

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to
make decisions for which discrete financial information is available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108
Operating Segments, the CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various
performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

316 Earningspershare

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share in accordance with Ind AS 33, Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings
per equity share is computed by dividing net profit / loss after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed and
disclosed by dividing the net profit/ loss after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year after givingimpact of dilutive
potential equity shares for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares
outstanding during the year, except where the results are anti-dilutive. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if
their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive
equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The
dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value. Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially
dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate. Partly paid equity shares
are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid
equity share during the reporting period.

3.17 Cashflowstatement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue
generating, financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated. Cash flows in foreign currencies are accounted at
the actualrates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

318 Standardsissuedbutnotyeteffective
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Ministry of Corporate Affairs has issued Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 on March 23, 2022,
which contains various amendments to Ind AS. Management has evaluated these and have concluded that there is no material
impactonthe Company's financial statements.

Note 4: Cash and Cash Equivalents INRin Lakhs
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 414.39 45593
Bank deposit with maturity of less than 3 months (Refer Note 311) 400.00 200.00
Cashin hand 56.26 8146

Total 870.65 737.39

Note: Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of up to three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
company and earninterestat the respective short-term depositrates

Note 5: Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents INRin Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Fixed Deposit with Banks

- In earmarked accounts 2143 220.60

- Held as margin money or security against borrowings 156.70 7417
Total 17812 29477

Note: Fixed depositand other balances with banks earninterest at fixed rate or floating rates based on bank deposit rates.

Note 6: Loans (at Amortised Cost) INRin Lakhs
Particulars Asat

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
A.Based on nature
Term Loans 40,372.00 354161
Less: Impairment loss allowance (1,379.05) (953.61)
Total Net 38,992.95 34,462.51
Others (ICD) 8715 9416
Total Loans 39,080.10 34,556.66
B. Based on security
Secured by tangible assets 40,372.00 354161
Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees - -
Unsecured - -
Total Gross 40,372.00 35,416.1
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Note 6: Loans (at Amortised Cost) INRin Lakhs
Particulars As at

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Less: Impairment loss allowance (1,379.05) (953.61)
Total Net 38,992.95 34,462.51
Others (ICD)

Secured - -
Unsecured 8715 9416
Total Loans 39,080.10 34,556.66

C.Based onregion
Loans in India

Public Sector - -

Others 40,372.00 354161
Total Gross 40,372.00 35,416.1
Less: Impairment loss allowance (1,379.05) (953.61)
Total Net 38,992.95 34,462.51
Others (ICD) 8715 9416
Total Loans 39,080.10 34,556.66

Loans outside India - -
Less: Impairment loss allowance - -

Total Loans 39,080.10 34,556.66

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interestincome for the Company. The
carrying value may be affected by changesin the credit risk of the counterparties.

Loans granted by the Company are secured by equitable mortgage/registered mortgage of the property and/or undertaking to
create asecurity and/or personal guarantees and/or hypothecation of assets and/or assignments of life insurance policies.

ii. Loanswhere fraudhasbeencommitted/ reported forthe yearended 31March 2024: Nil (31March 2023: Nil)

iv. ~ The Company hasnot provided any loans or advances to promoters, directors and KMPs. The loans provided to the related parties
have been separately disclosed in Related party Disclosures. (Refer Note 40)
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6.1) An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount* and the corresponding ECL allowances INRin Lakhs
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Caring amount 32,881.96 914.27 1,619.88 3541611 22,279.95 11129.51 172233 3513179
opening balance
Less: Assets repaid (416190)| (225.30) (21761) | (4,604.80)| (392043)| (329799) (2054)| (723897)
(excluding write offs)*
Transfers from Stage 1** (1557.33) 709.64 84769 -| (72669) 42732 29938 -
Transfers from Stage 2** 56461 (57856) 13.95 - 711881 (7239.29) 120.49 -
Transfers from Stage 3** 75478 0.32 (75510) - 321.39 0.34 (321.73) -
Less: Amounts written off (100.83) - (4376) (144.59) (25.05) (105.62) (180.04) (310.71)
New assets originated 9,604.16 10112 -| 970528| 7834.00 - -| 7834.00
Gross carrying amount 37,985.46 92149 1,465.05(40,372.00| 32,881.96 914.27 1,619.88( 35,4161
closing balance
The gross carrying value includes Vehicle Loans, MSME/ Business Loans and other Loan & Advances.
* Excludes the unmortised component of souring cost/ income whichis adjusted as part of loan balances.
** Represents the balance outstanding as at beginning of the year, net of repayments made during the year, if any.
Therepaymentsare forming part of " Assets repaid (excluding write offs)".
Inter-Corporate Deposits INRin Lakhs
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage1| Stage2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Caring amount 9416 - - 9416 60.40 - - 60.40
opening balance
Asset derecognised or (7010 - - (701) (250) - - (250)
repaid (excluding write-off)
Assets partially repaid - - - - - - - -
Roll forwards to higher - - - - - - - -
stages
Roll forward from lower - - - - - - - -
stages
Roll back from higher stages - - - - - - - -
Roll back to lower stages - - - - - - - -
Amount written off - - - - - - - -
New assets originated/ - - - - 36.26 - - 36.26
incremental accretions
Gross carrying amount 8715 - - 8715 9416 - - 9416
closing balance
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6.2) Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below: INRin Lakhs
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Stage1| Stage2 Stage 3 Total Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening 521.69 3239 39953 95361 27735 33141 296.31 905.08
balance
Net Addition during the year 6753 (4.37) 362.29 42545 24433 (299.02) 103.22 4853
ECL allowance - closing 589.22 28.02 761.82| 1379.05 521.69 32.39 399.53 953.61
balance
Note 7: Investments INRin Lakhs
Particulars As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

(A) At fair value through profit or loss
(i) In Mutual Funds - -
(ii) In Government Securities 19.24 19.20
(iii) In Certificates of Deposit - -
Total (A) = (i + i+ i) 19.24 19.20
(B) At fair value through other comprehensive income
0] In Government Securities - -
(i) In Equity Instruments - -
Equity Shares (Quoted) - -
Equity Shares (Unquoted) 120 120
Total (B) = (i + i) 120 120
(C) At Amortized Cost
In Pass Through Certificates (PTC) representing securitisation of loan receivable - -
Total (C) - -
(D) Cost
Investment - -
Total (D) - _
Total (A+B+C+D) 20.44 20.40

* Investments are made in India
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Note 8: Other Financial Assets INR in Lakhs
Particulars As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Unsecured, considered good

Interest accrued but not due on Loans 275.81 2631
Other Receivables 209.21 216.06
Security deposit (Assets) 56.93 3124
Other Advances-current 845.45 855.29
Total 1,387.40 1,365.70
Note 9: Property plant and equipment INRin Lakhs
Particulars Gross carrying value Depreciation Net carrying value

As at| Addition| Adjustm As at Asat| Forthe| Adjustm As at As at As at
March 31, during ents/|March 31,| April O1, year ents/|March 31,|March 31,|March 31,

2023( the year| Deducti 2024 2023 Deducti 2024 2024 2023

ons ons

during during

the year the year
Land & Building 161725 840 96.46| 152919 842 469 - 131 1516.08| 1608.83
Godown 40.82 - - 40.82 032 0.64 - 0.96 39.86 40.50
Furniture & Fixtures 144.41 0.64 - 145.04 95.58 1377 - 109.35 3569 48.83
Vehicles 15647 - 3855 1792 7647 14.99 2867 62.80 5512 79.99
Computers & printer 1n2.25 784 - 120.09 Mmoo 207 - 13.07 702 125
Office Equipment 64.64 471 - 69.36 64.51 079 - 65.29 4.06 014
Mobile 6.84 162 - 846 362 1.51 - 513 333 322
Total 2,142.68 23.21| 135.00{2,030.88| 359.92 38.46 28.67| 369.72| 1,66116| 1,782.76

Company choose to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognized as at April 1,2019, measured
as perthe previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plantand equipment.

Particulars Gross carrying value Depreciation Net carrying value
As at| Addition| Adjustm As at Asat| Forthe| Adjustm As at As at As at
March 31, during ents/|March 31,| April O1, year ents/(March 31,|March 31,|March 31,
2022| the year| Deducti 2023 2022 Deducti 2023 2023 2022

ons ons

during during

the year the year
Land & Building 37576| 132755 86.05| 161725 570 272 - 842 160883 370.06
Godown 40.82 - - 40.82 - 0.32 - 0.32 40.50 40.82
Furniture & Fixtures 142.53 188 - 144.41 82.02 13.56 - 9558 4883 60.51
Vehicles 13257 2463 074 156.47 6148 14.99 - 7647 79.99 71.09
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Particulars Gross carrying value Depreciation Net carrying value
As at| Addition| Adjustm As at Asat| Forthe| Adjustm As at As at As at
March 31, during ents/|March 31,| April O1, year ents/(March 31,|March 31,|March 31,
2022| the year| Deducti 2023 2022 Deducti 2023 2023 2022
ons ons
during during
the year the year
Computers & printer 10.78 147 - 12.25 10.78 0.22 - m.oo 125 -
Office Equipment 64.64 - - 64.64 6199 2.51 - 64.51 014 265
Mobile 6.37 047 - 6.84 238 125 - 362 322 400
Total 873.48| 1355.99 86.79| 2142.68| 324.36 35.57 -] 359.92| 1782.76| 54913
Note 10: Other Intangible assets
Particulars Gross carrying value Amortisation Net carrying value
Asat| Additio| Adjustm As at Asat| For the| Adjustm As at As at As at
March | nduring ents/| March| April O1, year ents/| March| March March
31,2023 | the year | Deducti| 31,2024 2023 Deducti| 31,2024 | 31,2024 | 31,2023
ons ons
during during
the year the year
Jaguar Software 4295 - - 4295 2104 859 - 2963 1332 2191
SOFTWARE 19.59 - - 19.59 15.85 374 - 19.59 - 374
DEVELOPMENT
Software 85.59 - - 85.59 - - - - 85.59 8559
Development
(Aasaan Loan)
Windows Licence 357 - - 357 357 - - 357 - -
Fees
Total 151.70 - - 15170 40.46 12.33 - 5279 98.91 m.24
Particulars Gross carrying value Amortisation Net carrying value
As at| Additio [ Adjustm As at Asat| For the [ Adjustm As at As at As at
March | n during ents/| March| April O1, year ents/| March| March| March
31,2022 | the year | Deducti| 31,2023 2022 Deducti| 31,2023 ( 31,2023 | 31,2022
ons ons
during during
the year the year
Jaguar Software 4295 - - 4295 1245 8.59 - 2104 2191 3049
SOFTWARE 19.59 - - 19.59 11.93 392 - 15.85 374 766
DEVELOPMENT
Software 85.59 - 85.59 - - - - 85.59 -
Development
(Aasaan Loan)
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Particulars Gross carrying value Amortisation Net carrying value
Asat| Additio| Adjustm As at Asat| For the| Adjustm As at As at As at
March | n during ents/| March| April 01, year ents/| March| March March
31,2022 | the year | Deducti| 31,2023 2022 Deducti| 31,2023 ( 31,2023 | 31,2022
ons ons
during during
the year the year
Windows Licence 357 - - 357 357 - - 357 - -
Fees
Total 66.1 85.59 - 15170 27.95 12.51 -| 40.46 m.24 3815
Note 11: Other Non-Financial Assets INRin Lakhs
Particulars As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Prepaid Expenses - -
Prepaid Rent - -
Other Advances - -
Duties and taxes 5135 3169
Total 51.35 31.69
Note 12: Payables INRin Lakhs
12.1 Trade payables
Particulars As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - -
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 25.07 26.67
Total 25.07 26.67
To related parties - -
Others 25.07 2667
Total 25.07 26.67
Trade payables (Ageing Schedule)
The following schedules reflect ageing of trade payables with respect to the date of transactions.
As at March 31, 2024:
Particulars Unbilled Not Due <lyear 1-2Years| 2-3Years > 3years Total
(i) MSME - - 146 - - - 146
(i) Others - - 14.37 849 075 - 2361
(iii) Disputed Dues- MSME - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues-Others - - - - - - -
Grand Total - - 15.83 8.49 0.75 - 25.07
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As at March 31, 2023:

Particulars Unbilled Not Due <lyear 1-2Years| 2-3Years > 3years Total
(i) MSME - - 113 - - - 113
(i) Others - - 2357 160 - 0.37 2554
(iii) Disputed Dues- MSME - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues-Others - - - - - - -
Grand Total - - 2470 1.60 - 0.37 26.67
13.1 Details of terms of redemption/repayment and security provided in respect of debt securities and borrowings
et As at
Particulars Repayment Terms Tenure Earliest instalment
date March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Secured debentures: Principal payment 36 June 30,2023 - 1,000.00
1,000 (March 31,2024 - | frequency: Entire
NIL, March 31,2023 - principal repayable
1000), 12.00% at maturity
redeemable, non-
convertible debentures | Coupon payment
of Rs. 1 million each frequency:
Quarterly
- 1,000.00

. The secured redeemable non-convertible debentures issued by the company are secured by exclusive charge on

hypothecation of specificloan receivables aggregating to a security cover of up to 110% as per the terms of issue.
. The couponrate for secured redeemable non-convertible debenturesis 12% payable quarterly.
. These secured redeemable non-convertible debentures are to be repaid as bullet payment on 30" June 2024,

Note 14: Borrowings (other than debt securities) (Refer note 14.1) INRin Lakhs
Particulars As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
At Amortised Cost
Term loans (secured)
From banks 145475 117154
From other parties 10,323.70 3,373.29
Loans repayable on demand (secured)
Cash Credit and working capital demand loans from banks 3,25176 5,032.41
External Commercial Borrowings (secured) 442899 5134.33
Term loans from others parties (unsecured)
Other (ICD-Borrowing) 19.05 66.43
Total 19,478.25 14,778.00
Borrowings in India 15,049.26 964367
Borrowings outside India 442899 5134.33
Total 19,478.25 14,778.00
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Loansrepayable on demandincludes on cash credit and working capital demand loans from banks which are secured by specific charge
onidentified receivables. Please refer note 14.1for details of borrowings.

The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of the borrowings (including debt securities) and was regular in repayments.
The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specified purpose as per agreement with the lender.

The quarterly returns/statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions in relation to secured
borrowingswherever applicable, are inagreement with the books of accounts.
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Note 15: Subordinates-Debts INRin Lakhs
Particulars As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Subordinates-Debts in India
At Amortised Cost
Secured - -
Unsecured 1,000.00 1998.30
Total 1,000.00 1998.30
Details of Subordinates-Debtsin |Balance as on Tenure Repayment ROI %
India 31-03-2024 (Months)
Mas Financial Services Limited - 72 Bullet payment of principal in 72" month  |15.30%

(year 2024)
Maanaveeya Development & Finance |1,000.00 72 To be repaid in equal installment of Rs. 16.00%
Pvt Ltd 500.00 Lakhs in 66" month (year 2024) &
72"month (year 2025)

Total 1,000.00
Note 16: Other financial liabilities INRin Lakhs
Particulars As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 7075 4355
Security Deposit 4733 93.87
Other liabilities 50.28 44.66
Total 168.36 182.07
Note 17: Current tax liabilities (net) INRin Lakhs
Particulars As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Provision for tax (net) 431.36 44041
Total 431.36 44041
Note 18: Provisions INRin Lakhs
Particulars As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Provision for Expenses 275 275
Provision for Gratuity 128.35 10415
Total 13110 106.90
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Note 19: Other non-financial liabilities INR in Lakhs
Particulars As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Statutory Dues Payable 46.97 3955
Total 46.97 39.55
Note 20: Equity share capital INRin Lakhs
Particulars As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Authorised Share Capital
5,00,00,000 shares (March 31, 2023- 3,50,00,000) of Rs. 10 each 5,000.00 5,000.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up
316,74,996 shares (March 31, 2023- 3]16,74,996) of Rs. 10 each 316750 316750
Previous year(March 31,2022 - 2,18,16,506) of Rs. 10 each
Total 3,167.50 3,167.50

INRin Lakhs
20.A Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
No. of shares Amount| No. of shares Amount

At the beginning of the year 36,74,996 316750 21816,506 218165
Add: Share issued during the year - - 71,32,068 713.21
Add: Bonus issued during the year - - 2726422 27264
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,16,74,996 3,167.50 3,16,74,996 3,167.50

Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares:

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the
Company'sresidual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend to the extent the shares are paid up, as declared from time
to time subject to payment of dividend to preference shareholders. Dividends are paid in Indian Rupees. Dividend proposed by the
board of directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the General Meeting, exceptin the case of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders, to
the extent the sharesare paid up.
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20.B Promoter Holdings:
As at March 31,2024

Name of the Promoter Number of Shares Movement Number of % of Total % of Change

at the beginning | during the period | Shares at the end Shares

of the period of the period
Fully paid up shares
(i) Nirmal Kumar Jain HUF 1277470 - 12,77470 403% -
(i) Deepesh Jain 697880 - 697,880 220% -
(i) Nirmal Kumar Jain 114,07590 2,500 114,10,090 36.02% 0.01%
(iv) Manju Devi Jain 1,61,480 - 11,61,480 3.67% -
Grand Total 1,45,44,420 2,500 1,45,46,920 45.92%
As at March 31,2023

Name of the Promoter Number of Shares Movement Number of % of Total % of Change

at the beginning | during the period | Shares at the end Shares

of the period of the period
Fully paid up shares
(i) Nirmal Kumar Jain HUF 12,77470 - 12,77470 4.03% -
(i) Deepesh Jain 697,880 - 697,880 2.20% -
(iii) Nirmal Kumar Jain 5771970 56,35,620 114,07590 36.01% 9.55%
(iv) Manju Devi Jain 11,61,480 - 11,61,480 367% -
Grand Total 89,08,800 56,35,620 1,45,44,420 45.91%
20.C Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company
As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Name of the Shareholder No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Nirmal Kumar Jain 114,10,090 36.02% 114,07590 36.01%
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Note 21: Other Equity INRin Lakhs
Particular Other Equity
Reserves and surplus Other Comprehensive Total other
Income equity
attributable
to equity
Share Special Foreign Retained | Impairment Equity Others holders
premium reserve Currency earnings Reserve | Instuments
reserve Monetary through
Item other
Translation comprehen
Difference sive income
Account
Balances as at April 1, 2022 3834.39 1,603.14 - 5,334.75 830.84 - - 1,603.12

Changes in equity for the year
ended March 31,2022

Equity shares issued during the year 448914 - - - - - - 4,489.14
Less: Bonus Shares Issued during the (272.64) - - - - - - (272.64)
year

Transfer to special reserve - 290.372 - (290.37) - - - -
Profit for the year - - - 1,451.86 - - - 1,451.86
Reversal of excess provision of income - - - - - - - -
tax

Others - - - - - - 3206 32.06
Balances as at March 31,2023 8,050.89 1,893.51 - 6,496.23 830.84 - 32.06 17,303.53
Balances as at April 1,2023 8,050.89 1,893.51 - 6,496.23 830.84 - 32.06 17,303.53

Changes in equity for the year
ended March 31,2024

Equity shares issued during the year - - - - - - - -

Less: Bonus Shares Issued during the - - - - - - - -

year
Transfer to special reserve# - 37058 - (370.58) - - - -
Profit for the year - - - 1,852.92 - - - 1,852.92
Others - - - - - - (0.08) (0.08)
Balances as at March 31,2024 8050.89 2,264.10 - 7,978.57 830.84 - 31.98 19,156.37
Note 22 : Interest Income INRin Lakhs
Particulars For the Period ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Interest Income on loans to customers 6,925.74 6,281.60
Interest income from investments 078 0.98
Other interest income 39.04 2842
Total 6,965.56 6,310.99
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Note 23: Fee and Commission Income INR in Lakhs
Particulars For the Period ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Commission Income 9.55 46.82
Service Charges and other Fee income on Loan Transactions 17709 162.96
Total 186.64 209.78
Note 24: Net gain on de-recognition of financial instruments under amortised cost INRin Lakhs
category

Particulars For the Period ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Gain / (Loss) on derecognised financial assets (341 (6.52)
Total (3.41) (6.52)
Note 25: Other operating Income INRin Lakhs
Particulars For the Period ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

W/off loans recovered 13274 43712
Total 13274 43712
Note 26: Other Income INRin Lakhs
Particulars For the Period ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Profit on Sale of Asset 66.52 545
Commission on insurance 2.06 -
Total 68.59 545
Note 27: Finance Cost INRin Lakhs
Particulars For the Period ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Finance costs on financial liabilites measured at amortised cost

Interest on borrowings

- Interest on term loans 2158.28 1978.65
- Interest on cash credit and working capital demand loan 599.54 71016
Other borrowing cost (incl. Bank Charges) 4580 3286
Interest on Others 2162 7561
Interest on ICD 285 351
Total 2,828.10 2,800.79
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Note 28: Impairment on financial instruments INR in Lakhs

Particulars For the Period ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

On financial assets measured at amortised cost

-Impairment on Loans 42545 4853
-Bad Debts written off against loans 144.59 310.59
Total 570.03 359.12

Note 28.1: The Company believes that no impairment of assets arises for the below mentioned periods as per the recommendations of

Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

Note 29: Employee benefits expenses

Particulars

INRin Lakhs

For the Period ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Salaries, allowances and benefits
Contribution to provident and other funds
Total

Note 30: Depreciation and Amortization

Particulars

70740 624.88
3229 144,04
739.69 768.92
INR in Lakhs

For the Period ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of Right to use Assets

Total

Note 31: Other Expenses

Particulars

3846 3557
1233 1251
- 10om
50.79 5819
INRin Lakhs
For the Period ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Advertisement & Business Promotion
Annual Maintenance Charges

Audit Remuneration (Refer note 31.1)
Books & Periodicals Expenses
Commission

Computer & Software maintenance
Conveyance

Credit Rating Charges

CIBIL Expense

CSR Expenditure

Donation

M ®
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3363
15.94
310
0.02
7703
15.88
373
6.81
274
39Mm

1233
18.08
275
0.06
36.53
12.93
293
8.28
0.05
36.68
0.06
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Note 31: Other Expenses INRin Lakhs
Particulars For the Period ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Electricity & Water 912 867
Fees & Subscription 0.78 197
Franking/ Stamping Expenses 10.21 4.82
Foreign Exchange (Gain)/Loss 7143 45763
Godown Rent for seized vehicles 335 0.81
Hedging Expense 14.47 17.81
Insurance Expenses 1784 167
Legal Expenses 5172 38.96
Mandate processing charges (NACH) 045 116
Misc. Expenses 2.37 199
Office Expenses 2334 19.09
Office Rent 3573 2718
Postage & Courier 8.88 245
Printing & Stationery 10.87 725
Professional Consultancy Fee 196.59 24216
Repairs & Maintenance 876 852
ROC fees 271 3227
Seizing exp 783 894
Recovery Expenses 2766 2591
Telephone and Internet Charges 425 515
Travelling Expenses 7181 42.28
Vehicle Insurance & RTO Expenses (0.03) 034
Field Investigation Charges 116 0.09
Demat Expenses - 034
Accommodation Expenses 519 337
Security Charges 141 141
Total 785.88 1,092.89
Note 31.1: Payment to Auditors INRin Lakhs
Particulars For the Period ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Audit Fees 310 275
Other Tax matters and Certifications - -
Total 310 275
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Note 32: Tax expenses INR in Lakhs
Particulars For the Period ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

i. Current tax

In respect of current year 648.00 478.82

In respect of prior years - -
648.00 478.82

ii. Deferred tax

Attributable to- Origination and reversal of temporary differences (125.28) (53.76)

Tax expense (i)+(ii) 52271 425.06

Note 33: Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by statutory INRin Lakhs

income taxrate for the year ended March 31,2024 and March 31,2023 is as follows:

Particulars For the Period ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Profit before tax 237563 187692
Applicable tax rate 2517% 25.63%
Computed tax expense 597.90 481.05
Tax effect of

Tax Impact of:

Income not subject to tax - -

Non-deductible expenses 2872 3273
IND-AS impact on Deductible Expenses 7743 31
Deduction under section 36 (1) (vii) (3377) (25.21)
Other Deduction (1.94) (1278)
Profit on sale of asset (16.74) -
Capital Gain on sale of Asset 6.41 -

Incremental Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) on account of Financial Assets and other items - -

Tax at effective Income Tax rate of 28.06% Previous year (FY 2021-22 - 33.28%) 648.00 478.82

Note: The Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as introduced by
the Taxation laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company had recognised provision for income tax and remeasured
its net deferred tax asset at concessional rate from the financial year 2019-2021onwards.
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Note 34: Contingent liabilities and commitments INRin Lakhs
Particulars As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

(A) Contingent Liabilities
Corporate Guarantee to Financial Institution 1465.34 203843

(B) Commitments - -
Total 1465.34 2038.43

Note: The Company's pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company by the customers and proceedings pending with
other authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where
provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in the financial statements. The Company does not
expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect onits financial results.

Note 35: Deferred tax assets / (liability): INRin Lakhs
Particulars As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Opening Balance (Deferred Tax Assets) 142.33 99.36
Deferred Tax Assets:

Unamortised Processing Fee - -

Impairment of Financial Assets 3471 240.02
Difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial - -
reporting

Others - -
Gross deferred Tax Asset (A) 3471 240.02
Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Unamortised Processing Fee - 13.95
Difference Between WDV of fixed Assets and as per Co. Act, 2013 and Income tax Act, 1961 766 2382
Unamortised Borrowing Cost 104.14 7535
Provision for Gratuity (3231 (26.21)
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities (B) 79.49 86.91
Net Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) 26761 15311
Amount (debited)/ Credited in Profit and Loss account 125.28 53.76

Deferred tax recognised on other comprehensive income

Provision for Gratuity (Actuarial Gain (Loss) (10.76) (10.78)
Deferred Tax Assets Recognised in Balance Sheet (10.76) (10.78)
Total Deferred Tax Assets Recognised in Balance Sheet 256.85 142.33
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Note 36: Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars

INRin Lakhs
For the Period ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurements of the defined benefit plan (Net of Tax) (0.07) 32.06
ii) Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Fair value gain/(loss) on equity instruments (Net of Tax) 0] 0
Total Other Comprehensive Income (0.07) 32.06
Note 37: Earnings per share INRin Lakhs
Particulars For the Period ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Profit after tax 1,852.92 1,451.86
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for calculation of earnings per share 3,16,74,996 2,69,93,386
Basic EPS* 585 538
Diluted EPS* 585 538

Note 38:SegmentInformation

An operating segment is a component of the company that emerges in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the company's other components, and for which
discrete financial information is available. All operating segments' operating results are reviewed regularly by the company's
management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance. The MD is considered
to be the chief operating decision maker (CODM") within the purview of Ind AS 108 operating segments.

The CODM considers the entire business of the company on a holistic basis for making operating decisions and thus there are no
segregated operating segments. The company is engaged into the business of providing Mortgage loans and Vehicle loans. The CODM
of the company reviews the operating results of the company as a whole and therefore not more than one reportable segment is
required to be disclosed by the company as envisaged by Ind AS 108 operating segments. Accordingly, amounts appearing in these
financial statementsrelate to the business of providing Mortgage loans and Vehicle loans.

The company does not have any separate geographic segment other than India. As such there are no separate reportable segments as
perIND AS108 operatingsegments.

Note 39: Related Party Transactions / Disclosures

Key Managerial Person Nirmal Kumar Jain (Managing Director)
Bobby Singh Chandel (CEO)
Rajni Gehlot (CFO)

Manoj Choubisa (Company Secretary w.ef. 01.01.2024)

Jay Shree Sharma (Company Secretary w.ef. 29.05.2023)*
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Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Manju Devi Jain (wife of Managing Director)

Dipesh Jain (Son of Managing Director )

Jenisha Jain (Daughter of Managing Director)
Kartika Jain (Daughter-in-Law of Managing Director)

Hira Lal Jain (Brother of Managing Director)

Other Directors and Related parties

Ramesh Kumar Jain (Executive Director)

Kiran Jain (Wife of Ramesh Kumar Jain)

Chirag Jain (Son of Ramesh Kumar Jain)
Rajendra Chittora (Executive Director)

Dhruv Chittora (Son of Rajendra Chittora)
Archana Chittora (Wife of Rajendra Chittora)
Megha Chittora (Daughter of Rajendra Chittora)
Shiv Prakash Shrimali (Independent Director)
Sanjay Dattaray Tatke (Independent Director)
Nishant Sharma (Independent Director)

Vimal Bolia Sardar Singh ji (Independent Director)
Antima kataria (Independent Director)

Akme Buildmart Private Limited

Akme Build Estate Ltd.

Hiraman Builders and Developers Private Limited
Hiraman Developers Private Limited

Hiraman Construction

Star Housing Finance Limited

Akme Sarvoday Dream Venture LLP

The Coronation Castles Private Limited

Akme Automobiles Private Limited

Arvind Multi Industries Private limited

Laxmi Marble and Steel Corporation

Siddhatva Enclave Pvt. Ltd.

* Jayshree Sharma (Company Secretary) resigned w.ef. 01.01.2024
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INRin Lakhs
Name of the Related Party | Nature of Transactions Amount Paid

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Nirmal Kumar Jain Remuneration 61.25 60.00
Manju Devi Jain Remuneration 42.00 42.00
Dipesh Jain Remuneration 1250 1360
Jenisha Jain Remuneration 16.25 12.00
Kartika Jain Remuneration 6.80 -
Ramesh Jain-Mumbai Remuneration 18.00 12.00
Kiran Jain-Mumbai Remuneration 3.00 9.00
Chirag Jain Remuneration 7.31 4.09
Rajendra Chittora Remuneration 1.63 776
Archana Chittora Remuneration 588 405
Dhruv Chittora Remuneration - 389
Megha Chittora Remuneration 540 365
Rajni Gehlot Remuneration 12.85 1234
Shalu Banoria Remuneration - 133
Bobby Singh chandel Remuneration 43.00 10.50
Jayshree Sharma Remuneration 271 -
Manoj Choubisa Remuneration 135 -
Antima Kataria Sitting Fee 103 -
Nishant Sharma Sitting Fee 103 150
Shiv Prakash Shrimali Sitting Fee 0.85 -
Sanjay Dattatrey Tatke Sitting Fee 0.80 -
Vimal Bolia Sardar Singhji Sitting Fee 0.80 -
254.43 197.71

Interest Income INRin Lakhs
Sr.No. |Name Nature of Transactions March 31,2024 ( March 31,2023
1 Akme Automobiles Pvt Ltd. Loans & Advances 1616 840
2 Akme Build Estate Limited Loans & Advances 1768 63.00
3 The Coronation Castles Pvt. Ltd. Loans & Advances 616 -
4 Arvind Multi Industries Pvt. Ltd. Loans & Advances 0.91 321
5 Hiraman Construction (Heera Lal Jain) Loans & Advances 1.01 3.38
41.92 7799
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Interest expenses INRin Lakhs
Sr.No. |Name Nature of Transactions March 31,2024 March 31,2023
1 Akme Star housing Finance Ltd. Loans & Advances - 055
2 Aarsh Fincon Ltd. Loans & Advances - 267

- 3.22

Share allotment
Sr. |Name Nature of FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
No. Transactions No. of shares Amount| No. of shares Amount
1 Nirmal Kumar Jain Share allotment - - 187500 150.00
2 Bobby Singh Chandel Share allotment - - 100000 80.00
3 Rajni Gehlot Share allotment - - 100000 80.00
4 Rajni Gehlot Bonus allotment - - 5000 -
5 Rajendra Chittora Bonus allotment - - 100000 -
6 Kiran Jain Share allotment - - 178750 143.00
7 Akme Build Estate P, Ltd. Share allotment - - 1437500 150.00

Purchase / Sale of Property INRin Lakhs
Sr.No. |Name Nature of Transactions FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
1 Akme Build Estate Ltd. Purchase of Property - 150.00
2 Nirmal Kumar Jain Purchase of Property - 15110

Loans & Advances INRin Lakhs

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Sr. [Name Nature of Opening| Amount | Amount| Outstan| Amount| Amount| Outstan
No. Transactions Received Paid ding | Received Paid ding
1 Akme Automobiles Private | Loan & Advances 9642 30 2073 8715 - 3852 96.42
Limited.
2 | Akme Build Estate Ltd. Loan & Advances 41301 430.69 1768 - - 41462 413.01
3 Akme Sarvodaya Loan & Advances -3.51 - 351 - 351 - -3.51
Dreamventure LLP
4 |Arvind Multi Industries Loan & Advances 20.24 2115 091 - 321 344 20.24
Private. Limited.
Hiraman Construction Loan & Advances 224 2342 1.01 - 338 393 2241
Hira Lal Jain Loan & Advances - - - - 8515 - -
Laxmi Marble and Steel Loan & Advances - - - - 358 - -
Corportion
8 [Star housing Finance Loan & Advances -4707 - 4707 - 19473 14516 -4707
Limited
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FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Sr. [Name Nature of Opening| Amount | Amount| Outstan| Amount| Amount| Outstan
No. Transactions Received Paid ding | Received Paid ding
9 | The Coronation Castles Loan & Advances - 9016 9016 - - - -
Private Limited
TOTAL 501.50 59191 177.56 8715 293.56( 605.67| 50150
40. Employeebenefits-postemploymentbenefitplans
A  Defined contributionplans
The Company makes provident fund and employee state insurance scheme contributions which are defined contribution plans,
for qualifying employees. Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs
to fund the benefits. The Company recognised INR 14.24 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 - INR 14.86 Lakhs) for provident fund
contributions and INR 173 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 - INR 2.78 Lakhs) for employee state insurance scheme contributions in the
statement of profit and loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the
schemes.
B Defined benefitplans
Gratuity

= 111 TS 111

The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the Gratuity plan) covering eligible employees. The gratuity plan is governed by
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit.
Thelevel of benefits provided depends on the member'slength of service and salary at retirement age/ resignation date.

The defined benefit plans expose the Company to risks such as Actuarial risk, Investment risk, Liquidity risk, Market risk, Legislative
risk. These are discussed as follows:

Actuarialrisk: Itis the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:

Adverse salary growth experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an increase in
obligation atarate thatis higher than expected.

Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption then the gratuity benefits
will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead
to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and Variability in withdrawal rates: If
actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption then the Gratuity Benefits will be paid earlier than
expected. Theimpact of thiswilldepend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

Investment risk: For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may
not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future
discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the
discountrate during the inter-valuation period.

Liquidity risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of
benefits. If some of such employeesresign/retire from the company there can be strain on the cash flows.

Market risk: Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One
actuarial assumption that has a material effectis the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. Anincrease
in discount rate leads to decrease in defined benefit obligation of the plan benefits and vice versa. This assumption depends on
the yields on the government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation
date.
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Legislative risk: Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the
legislation/regulation. The government may amend the labour laws, thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the
employees. This will directly affect the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the same will have to be recognized

immediately in the year when any suchamendmentis effective.

Funding

The Company has funded their gratuity liability with Life Insurance Corporation.Gratuity provision has been made based on the

actuarial valuation.

Reconciliation of net defined benefit (asset) liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit asset

(liability) and its components.

Particulars

Present value of obligations

Fair value of plan assets

Asset/ (Liability) recognised in the balance sheet

B. Defined benefit plans

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

INRin Lakhs
As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

128.35 104.15
128.35 104.15
INRin Lakhs

As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Balance at the beginning of the period/ year

Benefits paid

Total service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in other comprehensive income
changes in demographic assumptions
changes in financial assumptions
experience adjustments

Balance at the end of the period/ year

Expense recognized in profit and loss

Current service cost

Net Interest cost

Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gain) loss on defined benefit obligation

Return on plan assets excluding interest income
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B. Defined benefit plans INRin Lakhs

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Changes in the fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the period/ year
Expected return on plan assets

Contributions

Direct Contributions towards direct benefit payments NA

Benefits paid and Charges deducted from the fund

Direct Benefit Payments

Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period/ year

Net defined benefit (asset) liability 128.35 104.15
Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate 750% 750%
Future salary growth 5.00% 5.00%
Withdrawal rate (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%

41. Maturity analysis of assetsand liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analyzed according to when they are expected to be recovered or
settled. With regards to the loans and advances to customers, the company uses the same basis of expected repayment behavior

asused forestimating the EIR.

Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
Months Months Months Months
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 870.65 - 870.65 73739 - 73739
Bank Balance other than Cash and 17812 - 17812 235.80 58.97 29477
cash equivalents
Loans 9270.26 29,809.85 39,080M 10223.08 2433358 34556.66
Investments 2044 - 2044 2040 2040
Other Financial Assets 1121.26 26614 138740 1123.03 24267 1365.70
11,460.73 30,075.99 41,536.72 12,339.70 24,635.22 36,974.92
Non-financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net) - 256.85 256.85 - 142.33 142.33
Property, plant and equipment - 166116 166116 - 178276 178276
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Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
Months Months Months Months
Intangible assets - 9891 9891 - ma4 ma4
Other non-financial assets 5134 - 5134 31.69 - 31.69
51.34 2,016.92 2,068.26 31.69 2036.33 2068.02
Total assets 1,512.07 32,092.91 43,604.98 12371.39 26671.55 39042.94

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Financial liabilities

Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of 146 - 146 113 - 113
MSME creditors
- Total outstanding dues of 2361 - 2361 2554 - 2554
creditors other than MSME
Debt Securities - - - 1000.00 - 1000.00
Borrowings (Other than Debt 770823 1,770.02 19,478.25 4506.25 1027176 14778.01
Securities)
Subordinate Debts 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 999.62 998.68 199830
Other financial liabilities 50.28 18.08 168.36 4436 13771 182.07
8,783.58 1,888.10 20,671.68 6576.90 140815 17985.05

Non-financial liabilities

Current tax liabilities (net) 43136 - 43136 440.41 - 44041
Provisions 275 128.35 13110 275 10415 106.90
Other non-financial liabilities 4697 - 4697 39.55 - 39.55
Equity Share Capital - 316750 316750 - 316750 316750
Other Equity - 19156.37 19156.37 - 17303.53 17303.53

481.08 22,452.22 22,933.30 48271 20575.18 21057.89
Total liabilities 9,264.66 34,340.32 43,604.98 7059.61 31983.33 39042.94
Net Assets/(Liabilities) 2,247.41 -2,247.41 5311.78 -5311.78
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42.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT FAIRVALUEMEASUREMENT

a).Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31.03.2024 were as follows: INR in Lakh
Particulars Carrying Amount Fair value
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets not measured at fair value*

Cash and cash equivalents 870.65 870.65 870.65
Bank Balance other than above 17812 17812 17812
Loans 39080.10 39080.10 39080.10
Investments 2044 19.24 120 2044
Other financial assets 13874 138740 138740
Total 41536.71 1048.8 19.24| 40468.70 41536.70
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value*

Debt Securities

Borrowings 19478.25 19478.25 19478.25
Subordinated Debts 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00
Other financial liabilities 168.36 168.36 168.36
Total 20646.61 20646.61 20646.61
The carrying value and fair value of financialinstruments by categories as at 31.03.2023 were as follows:

Particulars Carrying Amount Fair value

Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets not measured at fair value*

Cash and cash equivalents 73739 73739 73739
Bank Balance other than above 29477 29477 29477
Loans 34556.66 34556.66 34556.66
Investments 2040 19.20 1.20 2040
Other financial assets 1365.70 1365.70 1365.70
Total 36974.92 103216 19.20 35923.56 36974.92
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value*

Debt Securities 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00
Borrowings 14778.00 14778.00 14778.00
Subordinated Debts 1998.30 1998.30 1998.30
Other financial liabilities 20874 20874 20874
Total 17985.04 17985.04 17985.04

b. Measurementof Fair Value

Valuation methodologies of financialinstruments not measured at fair value
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Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded
and measured at fair value in the financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purpose only.

Short Term financial assets andliabilities

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts, which are
net of impairment, area reasonable approximation of their fair value. Such instrumentsinclude: cash and cash equivalent, other financial
assets (excluding security deposit), trade payables and other financial liability.

Loansand advancestocustomers

In case of retail loans and term loans with floating rates, the interest rate represents the market rate. Consequently, the carrying amount
represents the fair value.

Term Loan with fixed rate: - The fair values estimated by discounted cash flow model that incorporates assumptions for credit risk,
probability of default and loss given default estimates. As per management assumptions, the fair value of the loans & advances has
been at par with the carrying value of the portfolio considering the fact that the competitive interest rates in the operational area of the
company and the portfolioin which the company has exposure are more or less as per prevailing market rates.

Investments

The fair values estimated by discounted cash flow model that incorporates assumptions for credit risk, probability of default and loss
givendefault estimates.

Borrowings

In case of borrowings with floating rates, the interest rate represents the market rate. Consequently, the carryingamount represents the
fair value.

TransferbetweenLevelslandll
There hasbeen no transferin betweenlevellandlevelll.
Capital

The company maintains an activity managed capital base to cover risksinheritin the business andis meeting the capital adequacy of the
local regulatory body, Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using, among other measures
theregulationissued by RBI.

The Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period. Equity share capital and
other equity are considered for the purpose of Company's capital management.

CapitalManagement

The Primary objectives of the company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed
capital requirement and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximize
shareholdervalue.

The company managesits capital structure and adjusts it according to changesin economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its
activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment of shareholders,
return capital to shareholder or issue capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the
previousyears. However, they are under constantreview by the board.

43.FINANCIAL RISKMANGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
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The Company Principal financial liabilities comprises borrowings. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company's operations and to support its operations. The Company's financial assets include loans, cash, and cash equivalents,
investments and other financial assets and that derives directly fromits operations.

The Company is exposed to credit risk; liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's board of directors has an overall responsibility for
the establishment and the oversight of the company's risk management framework. The board of directors has established the risk
management for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management committee, which is responsible for developing and
monitoring Company'srisk management. The committee reports regularly to the boards of directors onits activities.

The Company'srisk management policies are established toidentify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risk and adherence to limit. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changesinmarket conditions and the Company's activities.

The Company's risk management committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management
policies and the procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in the relation to the risk faced by the
Company.

(i) CreditRisk

Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counter party to financial instruments fails to meet its contractual
obligations and arises primarily from the company'sloan andinvestments.

The carryingamounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.
A. LoansandAdvances

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management
also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry.

The risk management committee has established a credit policy under which every new customer is analyzed individually for credit
worthy before the Company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company's review includes
externalratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information, industry information etc.

The Company's gross exposure to creditrisk for loans and investments by type of counterpartis as follows:

Carrying Amounts INR in Lakhs
Particulars As at 31March 2024 As at 31March 2023
Vehicle Loans 8,776.53 752518
Business/LAP Loans 31,595.46 2789094
Total (A) 40,371.99 35416.1
Investments (B) 2044 20.39
Total (A +B) 40,392.43 35436.50

The above exposures are entirely concentratedin India. There isno oversees exposure.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstances existing on that date to identify
expected losses onaccount of time value of money and credit risk. For the purpose of this analysis, the loan receivables are categorized
into groups based ondays past due. Each groupis then assessed forimpairment using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) modelas per the
provisions of Ind AS109- Financial instruments.
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Staging

As per the provisions of Ind AS 109 general approach all financial instruments are allocated to stage 1on initial recognition. However, if a
significant increase to credit risk is identified at the reporting date as compared with the initial recognition, then an instrument is
transferredto stage 2.If thereis objective evidence of impairment, then the assetis creditimpaired and transferred to stage 3.

The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore stage 3 (credit- impaired) for ECL calculationsin all cases when
the borrower becomes 90 days past due onits contractual payments.

For Financial assetsin stage 1, the impairment calculated based on defaults that are possible in next twelve months, whereas for financial
instrumentsin stage 2and 3 the ECL calculation considers default event for the lifespan of the instrument.

As per Ind AS 109, Company assesses whether there is a significant increase in credit risk at the reporting date from the initial
recognition. Company has staged the assets based on the day past dues criteria and other market factors which significantly impacts
the portfolio.

DAYS PAST DUE STATUS STAGE PROVISIONS

Current Stagel 12 Months Provision

1-60 days Stagel 12 Months Provision

61-90 days Stage 2 Lifetime Provision

90+ days Stage 3 Lifetime Provision
Grouping

As per Ind AS 109, Company is required to group the portfolio based on the shared risk characteristics. Company has assessed the risk
anditsimpact onthe various portfolios and has divided the portfoliointo following groups:

- Vehicle Loans
- Business/SME/LAP

Impairment-Expected CreditLoss ("ECL"):

The accounting standard, Ind AS 109 does not specifically prescribe any methodology for computing ECL. However, entities are
required to adopt sound and market acceptable methodologies which are in line with the size, complexity and risk profile of the financial
entity for computing the ECL. The Company uses following three main components to measure ECL: -

a.  Probability of default. (PD)
b.  Lossgivendefault(LGD).
c.  Exposure atdefault (EAD).

Probability of default (PD):

PD is defined as the probability of whether borrowers will default their obligations in an ensuring period of 12 months. Historical PD is
derived fromthe Company'sinternal data calibrated with forward looking macro-economic factors like current Pandemic scenarios etc.

For computation of probability of default company has considered four years' Historical data and the current Macroeconomic
conditions along with probable Impacts of COVID-19.Based on these factors PD has been worked out.

Loss givendefault (LGD):

LGD is an estimate of the loss from a transaction given that a default occurs. Under Ind AS 109, Lifetime LGD's are defined as collection
of LGD's estimates applicable to different future periods.
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Various approaches are available to compute the LGD. Company has considered workout LGD approach.

The following steps are performedto calculate the LGD.

1) Haircutwasapplied onthe value of the collateral (asset cost) as of reporting date.

2.) Theoutstandingamountwas adjusted with the haircut adjusted collateral value.

3) LGDhasbeencomputedusingthe outstandingamountinstep 2.

Overandabove the LGD hasbeen floored using regulatory guidelines.

Exposure atdefault ("EAD")

As per Ind AS 109, EAD is estimation of the extent to which the financial entity may be exposed to counterparty in the event of default
and at the time of counterparty's default. Company has modeled EAD based on the contractual and behavioral cash flows till the
lifetime of the loan and considering the expected prepayments.

Company has considered expected cash flows for all loans at DPD bucket level for each of the segments which were used for
computation for ECL. Moreover, the EAD comprised of principal component, accrued interest on the outstanding exposure for the
ensuring12months. So, discounting was done for computation of expected creditloss.

ECL Computation:

Proportion of expected creditloss provided for across the stage is summarized below:

INRin Lakhs
Particulars As at March 2024 As at March 2023
Stage 589.22 521.69
Stage 2 28.01 3239
Stage 3 76182 399.53
Amount of expected Credit loss provided for 1379.05 953.61

The loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over past years. These loss rates are then adjusted approximately to reflect
differences between current and historical economic conditions and the Company's view of prevailing economic conditions over the
expected lives of the loanreceivable.

Movementin provision of expected creditloss hasbeen providedin below note.

Movement of ECL
INR in Lakhs
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
ECL allowance - opening balance 953.61 905.08
Net Addition during the year 42544 48.53
ECL allowance - closing balance 1379.05 953.61
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Collateraland other creditenhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are in place
covering the acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral. The main types of collateral obtained are mortgaged properties
based on the nature of loans. Management monitors the market value of collateral in accordance with underlying agreement. The
Company advances loan to maximum extent of 65% of the value of the mortgaged properties.

(ii) LiquidityRisk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The
Company'sapproachinmanaging liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meetitsliabilities when due.

The company is monitoring its liquidity risk by estimating the future inflows and outflows during the start of the year and planned
accordingly the funding requirement. The company manages the liquidity by unutilized cash credit facility, term loan and the direct
assignment. The composition of the Company's liability mix ensures healthy asset liability maturity pattern and well diverse resource
mix.

The total cash credit and working capital limit available to the Company is INR 6000.00 Lakh spread across 3 banks. The utilization level
ismaintained in such away that ensures sufficient liquidity on hand.

Majority of the Company's portfolio is individual vehicle loans, Business Loans, SME Loans and Loan against property. The company is
also managing off book assets to the tune of Rs. 2,192 71lakhs as on March 31st2024.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's non-derivative financial liabilities based on contractual discounted
paymentsalongwithits carrying value as at the balance sheetdate.

INRin Lakh

Particulars As at 31March 2024 As at 31March 2023
Borrowing Trade payable Borrowing Trade payable

1day to 30/31days (one month) 55533 - 314.27 -
Over 1month to 2 months 56441 - 38176 -
Over 2 months to 3 months 768.69 - 147852 -
Over 3 months to 6 months 2,51819 - N76.96 -
Over 6 months to 1year 4.301.61 - 3154.36 -
Over 1year to 3 years 8,920.85 - 7304.36 -
Over 3 years to 5 years 244018 - 294235 -
Over 5 years 408.99 - 102373 -
Total 20,478.25 - 17776.31 -

(iii) MarketRisk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk includes interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.
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(iv) Interestraterisk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the company's investment in
bank deposits and variable interest rate on borrowings and lending. Whenever there is a change in borrowing interest rate for the
company, necessary change is reflected in the lending interest rates over the timeline in order to mitigate the risk of change in interest

rates of borrowings.
(v) AnalyticalRatios

(a) CapitaltoRisk AssetsRatio

INRin Lakhs

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
)} CRAR % 49.86 5119
i) CRAR - Tier | capital % 4844 49.27
iii) CRAR - Tier Il Capital % 141 192
iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier Il capital 1000.00 2000.00
V) Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments - -
Vi) Unutilized amount at the end of the year - -
(b) Other Ratios
Ratio Numerator Denominator | As at March 31, | As at March 31, variation
(INRinLakhs) | (INRinLakhs) 2024 2023

Current Ratio N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Debt-Equity Ratio 20,478.25 22,32387 0.92 Times 0.88 Times 0.04
Debt Service Coverage Ratio N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Return on Average Equity Ratio 185292 21,39745 8.66% 848% 018
Inventory turnover ratio N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Trade Receivables turnover ratio N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Trade payables turnover ratio N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Net capital turnover ratio N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Net profit ratio 1852.92 735012 25.21% 20.87% 434

(vi) Foreigncurrencyrisk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency fluctuation risk for its foreign currency borrowing (FCB). The Company's borrowings in
foreign currency are governed by RBI guidelines (RBI master direction RBI/FED/2018-19/67 dated 26 March 2019 and updated from
time to time) which does not requires entities raising ECB for an average maturity of more than 5 years to hedge its ECB exposure
(Principal and Coupon). The Company however hedging its foreign currency payment obligations against ECB for the next one year as
per Board approved Interest Rate risk, Currency risk and Hedging policy.
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44. Subsequentevent

Thereisnosignificant subsequent event that has occurred after the reporting period till the date of these financial statements.
45. Otherstatutoryinformation

a. Detailsof BenamiProperty held:

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any Benamiproperty as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023.

b. Transactionswith Struck off companies:

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

c. Registrationof charges orsatisfaction with Registrar of Companies:
The Company does nothave any charges or satisfaction whichis yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
d. Detailsof Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency:

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period/ year ended 3l1st March 2024
and 31stMarch 2023.

e. Utilisationof Borrowed Funds:

The Company borrows funds from various Banks and financial institutions for the purpose of onward lending to end customers as

per the terms of such borrowings. These transactions are part of the Company's normal funding activities, which is conducted

after exercising proper due diligence including adherence to the terms of credit policies and other relevant guidelines.
f.  Otherthanthenature of transactions described above.

) No funds have been advanced or loans or invested by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies)
("intermediaries") with the understanding that the intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

i)  The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

g. UndisclosedIncome:

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or

disclosed asincome during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other

relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

h.  WilfulDefaulter:

The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

/\/ ® /\/
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Compliance with number of layers of companies:

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act read with Companies
(Restriction on number of layers) Rules 2017.

Revaluation of Property, Plantand Equipment and Intangible Assets:

There is no revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets during the period/ year ended, 3Ist March 2024

and 3lstMarc

h2023.

Title Deeds of Immovable Properties notheld in the name of the Company:

Details of the immovable properties whose title deeds are not in the name of company:

RelevantLine |Description of | Gross carrying | Title deeds held in | Whether title Property held | Reason for not
itemin the item of value (Rs. In the name of deed holderisa |since which being held in
Balance Sheet |property Lakhs) promoter, date the name of the
director or Company
relative of
promoter/directo
r or employee of
promoter/
director
As at 3T"March 2024
Property, Plant  |Land 3760 Bhagga S/o No 03-11-2014 Due to pending
and Equipment LogarGameti, Government
Kishan S/o Mana ji clearances,
Meena,Prathviraj execution of title
S/o Gumanaji deedin the
Dangi, Unkar S/o favour of
Bheraji Company could
Dangi,Shankar S/o not be
Bhera ji Dangi, accomplished
Kamlesh S/o Bhera
ji Dangi,Rambha
W/o Bhera Ji Dangi
As at 3T"March 2023
Property, Plant  |Land 3760 Bhagga S/o No 03-11-2014 Due to pending
and Equipment LogarGameti, Government
Kishan S/o Mana ji clearances,
Meena,Prathviraj execution of title
S/o Gumanaji deedin the
Dangi, Unkar S/o favour of
Bheraji Company could
Dangi,Shankar S/o not be
Bhera ji Dangi, accomplished
Kamlesh S/o Bhera
ji Dangi,Rambha
W/o Bhera Ji Dangi
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46. SurveyDisclosure

The survey operations were carried out by the Income Tax Department at the Office of the Company during the period from November
23,2022,to November 27,2022. The Company does not foresee any materialimpact on the current or future business operations.

47. Eventsafterthereportingperiod.

The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the Balance Sheet date but prior to the approval of the
financial statements to determine the necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactionsin the financial
statements. As of February 7, 2023, other than those disclosed and adjusted elsewhere in these financial statements, there were no
further subsequent eventsto be reported or recognised.

48. SocialSecurity Code
The date on which the Code of Social Security, 2020 ('The Code") relating to employee benefits during employment and post-

employment benefits will come into effect is yet to be notified and the related rules are yet to be finalised. The Company will evaluate
the code anditsrules, assess the impact, if any and account for the same once they become effective.

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Valawat & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants AKME Fintrade (India) Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 003623C CIN : U67120RJ1996PLCO11509

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA. Jinendra Jain Nirmal Kumar Jain Rajendra Chittora
Partner Managing Director & Chairman Director
Membership No: 072995 DIN: 00240441 DIN: 08211508

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : Udaipur Rajni Gehlot Manoj Kumar Choubisa
Date: 11-07-2024 (CFO) (Company Secretary)
UDIN: 24072995BKAMSI3420 PAN: BGEPG8519D ACS: A66176
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49. DISCLOSURES REQUIRED IN TERMS OF ANNEXURE XIV OF THE RBI MASTER DIRECTION DNBR. PD. 008 / 03.10.119
/2016-17 DATED 1 SEPTEMBER 2016 (UPDATED AS ON 17 FEBRUARY 2021) "MASTER DIRECTION- NON-BANKING
FINANCIAL COMPANY - SYSTEMICALLY IMPORTANT NON-DEPOSIT TAKING COMPANY AND DEPOSIT TAKING
COMPANY (RESERVE BANK) DIRECTIONS, 2016 AREMENTIONED AS BELOW:

50. CAPITAL INRIn Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
i) | CRAR (%) 49.86 5119
i) | CRAR-TierlCapital (%) 4844 4927
i) | CRAR-TierllCapital (%) 141 192
iv) | Amount of subordinated debtraised as Tier-Il capital 1000.00 2000.00
v) | Amountraised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -

50.1 INVESTMENTS INRInLakhs

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

(M | Value of Investments

O] Gross Value of Investments

(@) |InIndia 2044 20.39

(b) | OutsideIndia, - -

(i) Provisions for Depreciation

(@) |Inindia - -

(b) | OutsideIndia, - _

(i) Net Value of Investments

(@) |Inindia 2044 20.39

(b) | OutsideIndia, - -

(2) | Movement of provisions held towards depreciation oninvestments.

(i) | Openingbalance - -

(i) | Add:Provisionsmade duringtheyear - -

(i) | Less:Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year - -

(iv) | Closingbalance - -

50.2 DERIVATIVES
Company has hedged the forex payments due in next one year through Call Options.
50.3 DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SECURITISATION

The Company sellsloans through direct assignment transactions.
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Theinformation of securitization / direct assignment by the Company as soriginator as required by RBI circular DNBS. PD.No.301/
310.01/ 2012-13 dated 21 August 2012 isasunder:

@

For Securitization Transaction

INRin Lakhs

Sr. No.

Particulars

As at March 31,2024

As at March 31,2023

1

No. of SPVs sponsored by the Company for securitization transactions

2

Total amount of securitized assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored

by the company

Total amount of exposures retained by the Company to comply
with MRR as on date of balance sheet

Amount of exposures to securitization transactions other than MRR

(b)

For Assignment Transaction

INR in Lakhs

Sr. No.

Particulars

As at 31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2023

No. of SPVs sponsored by the Company for assignment transactions

Total amount of assigned assets as per books of the Company
(excluding accrued interest)

143.94

75551

Total amount of exposures retained by the Company to comply with
MRR as on date of balance sheet

a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures

- First Loss

- Others

b) On-Balance Sheet exposures

- First Loss

- Others

14.39

7555

Amount of exposures to assignment transactions other than MRR

a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures

I) Exposure to own assignments

- First Loss

- Others

i) Exposure to third party assignments

- First Loss

- Others

b) On-Balance Sheet exposures

I) Exposure to own assignments

- First Loss

- Others

i) Exposure to third party assignments

- First Loss

- Others

Dues to assignees towards collections from assigned receivables

129.55

679.96
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50.4 DETAILS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD TO SECURITISATION / RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR ASSET
RECONSTRUCTION

The Company has not sold financial assets to securitisation / reconstruction company for asset reconstruction during the year
(previousyear Nil)

50.5 DETAILS OF ASSIGNMENT TRANSACTION UNDERTAKEN BY NBFCs

INR In Lakhs

Sr. No. Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31,2023
® No. of accounts - -
(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold - -

(iii) Aggregate consideration - -

™) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in

earlier years

) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value - -

50.6 DETAILS OF NON-PERFORMING FINANCIAL ASSETS PURCHASED /SOLD

The Company has not purchased or sold non-performing financial assets during the year (previous year Nil)
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50.8 Exposure to Real Estate Sector:

INR In Lakhs

Category

As at March 31,2024

As at March 31,2023

Direct Exposure

(1) Residential Mortgages -

1578.26

219756

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be
occupied by the borrower or that is rented

(ii) Commercial Real Estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings,

retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family residential, land etc.).
Exposure would also include non-fund acquisition, development and construction,
premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, buildings, multi-based limits
tenanted commercial

(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities & (MBS) and other securitised
exposures -

a. Residential

b. Commercial Real Estate

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector

1578.26

2197.56

50.9 Exposure to Capital Market:

INR In Lakhs

PARTICULARS

As at March 31,2024

As at March 31,2023

direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible
debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus
of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

O]

120

120

advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities
or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including
IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and
units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

(ii)

advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds
or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are
taken as primary security;

(iif)

advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral
security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or
units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security
other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units
of equity oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances;

(iv)

secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees
issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers

)]

loans sanctioned to corporate against the security of shares / bonds /
debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources;

(vi)

(vii)

bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;

all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)

(viii)

Total Exposure to Capital Market

1.20

1.20
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50.10 DETAILS OF FINANCING OF PARENT COMPANY PRODUCTS:
The Company has no parent company; therefore, this clause is not applicable

50.1 DETAILS OF SINGLEBORROWERLIMIT ("SGL")/ GROUP BORROWERLIMIT ("GBL") EXCEEDED BY THENBFC
(i) Loans and advances, excluding advance funding but including off-balance sheet exposures to any single party in excess
of 15 per cent of owned fund of the NBFC:
Nil
(i) Loans and advances to (excluding advance funding but including debentures/bonds and off-balance sheet exposures)
andinvestmentin the shares of single party in excess of 25 per cent of the owned fund of the NBFC:
Nil
50.12 REGISTRATION NUMBER OBTAINED FROMRBI
Registration No.-10.00092

50.13 DISCLOSURE OF PENALTIES IMPOSED BY RBIAND OTHERREGULATORS:
No penalty wasimposed by regulator.

50.14 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Refer note 40 to the standalone financial statements.

50.15 RATINGS ASSIGNED BY CREDIT RATING AGENCIES AND MIGRATION OF RATINGS DURING THEYEAR
By Acuite Ratings & Research Limited AND Infomerics Valuation and Rating Pvt. Ltd.

INR In Lakhs
Particulars Amount As at March 31,2024 | As at March 31,2023
Long term bank facilities 17000.00 Acuite BBB (Stable) ACUITE BBB-
Non-convertible debenture 1000.00 ACUITE BBB-
Long term bank facilities 11000.00 IVR BBB (Stable) IVR BBB-
Non-convertible debenture 1000.00 IVR BBB-

50.16 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Refer note 40 to the standalone financial statements

50.17 MANAGEMENT
The annualreport has a detailed chapter on Management Discussion and Analysis

50.18 NETPROFITORLOSSFORTHE PERIOD, PRIORPERIOD ITEMS AND CHANGE INACCOUNTING POLICIES
Refer note 2, 3 for change inaccounting policy.

50.19 REVENUE RECOGNITION
Refer note 3.1to the standalone financial statements

50.20 Provisions and Contingencies:

Particulars As at March 31,2024 | As at March 31,2023

Break Up of 'Provisions & Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in
statement of Profit & Loss

Provision for Depreciation on Investment - -

Provision towards standard asset & NPA 1379.05 95361
Provision Made towards Income Tax (Net of Deferred Tax) 52271 42506
Other Provision & Contingencies 13110 106.90
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50.21 DRAW DOWN FROM RESERVES INRIn Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31,2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Draw down from reserves - 27264

50.22 CONCENTRATION OF DEPOSITS (FOR DEPOSIT TAKING NBFCS)

Not Applicable
50.23 CONCENTRATION OF ADVANCES
INR In Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31,2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 1350.23 2113.39
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the NBFC 3.34% 5.96%
50.24 CONCENTRATION OF EXPOSURES
INR In Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31,2024 | As at March 31,2023
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 1350.23 213.39
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers to Total exposure of NBFC 3.34% 5.96%

50.25 CONCENTRATION OF NPAS INRIn Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31,2023
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 253.86 34137

50.26 MOVEMENT OF NPAS INR In Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 174% 3.44%

(i) Movement of NPA (Gross)
(a) Opening Balance 1619.88 1722.33
(b) Additions during the year 86164 35044
(c) Reductions during the year -1016.47 -452.89
(d) Closing Balance 1465.05 1619.88
(i)  Movement of NPA (Net)
(a) Opening Balance 122034 1426.01
(b) Additions during the year 499.35 24722
(c) Reductions during the year -1016.47 -452.89
(d) Closing Balance 703.22 1220.34
(iv)  Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
(a) Opening Balance 39953 29631
(b) Additions during the year 36229 103.22
(c) Reductions during the year 0] 0
(d) Closing Balance 761.82 399.53
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50.27 OVERSEAS ASSETS (FOR THOSE WITH JOINT VENTURES AND SUBSIDIARIE ABROAD)
Nil
50.28 OFF-BALANCE SHEET SPVS SPONSORED (WHICH ARE REQUIRED TO BE CONSOLIDATED AS PER
ACCOUNTING NORMS)
Nil
50.29 DISCLOSURE OF CUSTOMERS COMPLAINTS
Sr. No. | Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
(@) | No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 8 3
(b) | No. of complaints received during the year n 72
(c) | No. of complaints redressed during the year 14 64
(d) | No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 5 8
50.30 DISCLOSURE ON LIQUIDITY RISK PURSUANT TO RBI CIRCULAR DATED 4 NOVEMBER 2019 ON 'LIQUIDITY
RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK FOR NON-BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANIES AND CORE INVESTMENT
COMPANIES' IS AS FOLLOWS:
51 FUNDING CONCENTRATION BASED ON SIGNIFICANT COUNTERPARTY* (BOTH DEPOSITS AND
BORROWINGS)
INRin Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31,2024 | As at March 31,2023
Number of significant counterparties 9 9
Amount 19844.41 1754700
Percentage of funding concentration to total deposits - -
Percentage of funding concentration to total liabilities# 4551% 4494%

*Significant counterparty is as defined in RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No. 102/ 03.10.001/ 2019-20
dated November 4, 2019 on 'Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core

Investment Companies'.
#Total liabilities represent total liabilities as per balance sheet.

511 TOP 20 LARGE DEPOSITS
Not Applicable to the Company as it does not accept public deposits.

51.2 TOP 10 BORROWINGS

INRin Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31,2024 | As at March 31,2023
Total amount of top 10 borrowings 2027148 17641.00
Percentage of amount of top 10 borrowings to total borrowings 98.99% 99.24%
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51.3 FUNDING CONCENTRATION BASED ON SIGNIFICANT INSTRUMENT/PRODUCT:
INRin Lakhs

Particulars Asat31032024 | Percentageof | .. 31035023 | Percentage of

total liabilities total liabilities
Term Loans 16226.49 79.24% 9745.59 54.82%
Cash credit/Working capital demand loan 325176 15.88% 503241 28.31%
Non-convertible debentures - 0.00% 1000.00 563%
Subordinate-debt 1000.00 4.88% 1998.30 1.24%
Market linked Debenture - - - -

514 INFORMATION AS REQUIRED IN TERMS OF PARAGRAPH 19 OF THE RBI MASTER DIRECTION DNBR. PD. 008 /
03.10.119 / 2016-17 DATED 1 SEPTEMBER 2016 "MASTER DIRECTION-NON-BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANY-
SYSTEMICALLY IMPORTANT NON-DEPOSIT TAKING COMPANY AND DEPOSIT TAKING COMPANY (RESERVE
BANK) DIRECTIONS, 2016 AREMENTIONED ASBELOW:

(As required in terms of paragraph 9bb of non-banking financial companies prudential norms (reserve bank)
directions,1998)
SL.NO. PARTICULARS 2 In Lakhs
AMOUNT AMOUNT
LIABILITIES SIDE : OUTSTANDING OVERDUE
] Loans and Advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of interest accrued

thereon but not paid:
(a) DEBENTURES : | Secured NIL NIL

: |Unsecured NIL NIL

(Other than failing within the
meaning of public deposits)*
(b) Deferred Credits NIL NIL
(© Term Loans 1620744 NIL
Inter-corporate
(d Loans and Borrowing 19.05 NIL
(e) Commercial Paper NIL NIL
® Public Deposits* NIL NIL
Other Loans (Cash Credit from

(9 Banks) 325176 NIL
* Please see Note 1below

il
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Break up of (1) (f) above (outstanding public deposits inclusive of
2 . . NIL NIL
interest accrued thereon but not paid):
In the form of
(@ | Unsecured NIL NIL
debentures
(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures NIL NIL
where there is a shortfall in the value of security.
Other public
(© | deposits NIL NIL
* Please see Note 1below
3 Break up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included
in (4) below]:
(@) Secured 19459.20 NIL
(b) Unsecured 1019.05 NIL
4 Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and hypothecation loan counting
towards EL/HP activities:
10 Lease assets including lease rentals
under sundry debtors:
@ Financial Lease NIL
(b) Operating Lease NIL
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges
under sundry debtors:
€)] Assets on Hire NIL
b) Repossessed Assets NIL
(i) Hypothecation loans counting
towards EL/HP activities
Loan where assets have
@) been repossessed NIL
(b) Loan other than (a) NIL
above
5 Break up of Investments:
Current Investments
1. Quoted:
0 Shares: (a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL
(i) Debentures and Bonds NIL
(] Units of Mutual Funds NIL
(iv) Government Securities NIL
) Others (please specify) NIL
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SL.NO. PARTICULARS Z In Lakhs
AMOUNT
ASSETS SIDE : OUTSTANDING
2. | Unquoted:
0] Shares: (a) Equity 120
(b) Preference NIL
(i) Debentures and Bonds NIL
iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL
(iv) Government Securities NIL
V) Others (please specify) NIL

Long Term Investments

1. | Quoted:
0) Shares: (a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL
(ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL
iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL
(iv) Government Securities 19.24
v) Others (please specify) NIL
2. | Unquoted:
0) Shares: (a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL
(i) Debentures and Bonds NIL
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds 0.00
(iv) Government Securities 0.00
) Others (please specify) NIL

6 Borrower group-wise classification of all leased assets, stock-on-hire and loans and advances:

Please see Note 2 below

Amount net of provisions (INR In Lakhs)

Category
Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties **
@) Subsidiaries NIL NIL NIL
(b) gaomngpgapgﬁ;m the NIL NIL NIL
(©) Other related parties NIL 8715 8715
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2. | Related Parties **
Other than
related parties NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total NIL 8715 8715
7 Investor group-wise classification of all investments (Current and long term) in shares and

securities ( both quoted and unquoted):Please see Note 3 below

Catedqor Amount net of
gory provisions
1. Related Parties **
@) Subsidiaries NIL
Companiesin the
(b) samepgroup NIL
(©) Other related parties NIL
2. | Related Parties **
Other than
related parties 2044 2044
Total 2044
sk As per Accounting Standard of ICAI( Please See)
* Cost or market value whichever is lower.

52 DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED IN TERMS OF RBI NOTIFICATION NO. DOR (NBFC).CC.PD. NO.109/22.10.106/2019-
20 DATED 13 MARCH 2021 ON IMPLEMENTATION OF IND AS ARE MENTIONED AS BELOW:

As at March 31,2024 INR in Lakhs
Asset Loss Allowances Difference
cee  as Asset Gross .. ..
Classification pe s . (Provisions) . Provisions between Ind
classification Carrying R Net Carrying .
as per RBI Norms asrequired required as per AS 109
asperind | Amountas per Amount ..
as at 31March AS109 ind AS 109 under Ind IRACP norms | provisions and
2023 AS 109 IRACP norms
(1 [2] (3] [4] (5)=(3)-(4) [6] (7) = (4)-(6)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 3798548 58922 37396.26 9475 49447
Stage 2 92149 28.02 89347 230 2571
Subtotal 38,906.96 617.23 38,289.73 97.05 520.19
Non-Performing
Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 40130 20867 192.62 5537 15330
Doubtful
up to Tyear Stage 3 23564 122.53 n3n 6514 5739
1to 3 years Stage 3 336.81 17514 161.67 1m.e2 63.52
More than 3 years Stage 3 49129 25547 235.82 24565 9.83
Subtotal for doubtful 1,063.74 553.14 510.59 422.41 130.73
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Loss Stage 1 - - - - -
Stage 2 - - - - -
Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA 1,465.03 761.82 703.22 47778 284.04
Other items such as Stage 1 - - - - -
guarantees, loan Stage 2 - - - - -
commitments, etc. Stage 3 _ _ _ _ _

which are in the
scope of Ind AS 109
but not covered
under current
Income recognition

Asset Classification

and Provisioning

(IRACP) norms.

Subtotal - - - - -

Total Stage1 37,985.48 589.22 37,396.26 9475 494.47
Stage 2 92149 28.02 893.47 2.30 25.71
Stage 3 1,465.03 761.82 703.22 47778 284.04

Total 40,372.00 1,379.05 38,992.95 574.83 804.22

* Computedonthe value asper the IRACP norms.
The disclosure requirement of the policy for sales out of amortized cost business model portfolios  of the Company is notapplicable to
the Company asithas FVVOCI business model.

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Valawat & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants AKME Fintrade (India) Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 003623C CIN : U67120RJ1996PLCO11509

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA. Jinendra Jain Nirmal Kumar Jain Rajendra Chittora
Partner Managing Director & Chairman Director
Membership No: 072995 DIN: 00240441 DIN: 08211508

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : Udaipur Rajni Gehlot Manoj Kumar Choubisa
Date: 11-07-2024 (CFO) (Company Secretary)
UDIN: 24072995BKAMSI3420 PAN: BGEPG8519D ACS: A66176
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REGISTERED OFFICE :
Akme Business Center (ABC), 4-5 Subcity Center, Savina Circle,
Opp. Krishi Upaz Mandi, Udaipur - 313002, Rajasthan, India

Q Phone: (0294) 2489501/02

Email : cs@aasaanloans.com

CORPORATE OFFICE:
Tulsee Chambers, Office No 501, 5th Floor, Panch Pakhadi, Teen
Petrol Pump Thane, West, Pin Code - 400602
M.: +919136961538, 9136961282

www.aasaanloans.com
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